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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Ind AS financial statements of Edelweiss Finvest Private
Limited (“the Company"), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31, 2020, the Statement of
Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and
the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the Standalone Ind AS financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 ("the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2020, its profit including other comprehensive income its cash flows and the changes in equity
for the year ended on that date,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing (SA), as specified under section 143(10} of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (*ICAI") together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act
and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Standalone Ind AS financial statements.

Emphasis of matter

We draw attention to Note 55A to the Standalone Ind AS financial statements, which describes the
economic and social disruption as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic of the Company's business and
financial metrics including the Company's estimates of impairment of loans to customers and that such
estimates may be affected by the severity and duration of the pandemic. Our opinion is not modified in
respect of this matter,

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our apinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each
matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our
report. We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements’ section of our report, including in relation to these matters,
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Key audit matters

| How our audit addressed the key audit matter

(a) Impairment of financial assets at balance sheet date (expected credit losses)
(as described in note 12 of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements)

Ind AS 109 requires the Company to provide for
impairment of its financial assets as at the
reporting date using the expected credit loss
(ECL} approach. ECL involves an estimation of
probability-weighted loss on financlal
instruments over their life, considering
reasonable and supportable information about
past events, current conditions, and forecasts of
future economic conditions which could impact
the credit quality of the Company's financial
assets (loan portfolio).

In the process, a significant degree of judgement
has been applied by the management for:

+ Staging of financial assets (j.e. classification
In 'significant increase in credit risk’ ("SICR")
and ‘default’ categories);

o Calculation of past default rates

e Assigning rating grades to customers for
which external rating is not available

 Calibrating external ratings-linked probability
of default to align with past default rates

» Applying assumptions regarding the
probability of various scenarios and
discounting rates for different loan products

* Grouping of the loan portfolio under
homogenous pools in order to determine
probability of default on a collective basis:

» Estimation of management overlay for macro-
economic factors which could impact the
credit quality of the loans.

Pursuant to the Reserve Bank of India circulars
dated March 27, 2020 and May 23, 2020, issued
as part of the COVID-19 Regulatory Package
("RBI circular”), allowing lending institutions to
offer moratorium to borrowers on payment of
instalments falling due between March 1, 2020
and August 37, 2020, the Company has extended
moratorium to its borrowers in accordance with
fts Board approved policy.

In management’s view and considering the
guidance provided by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India, providing moratorium to
borrowers at a mass scale, based on RBI
directives, by itself is not considered to result in

{E&\Q}(‘)R for such borrowers. The Company has
o

‘E@{f\" reflect among other things an increased
prisk&F|Heterioration in macro-economic factors

g %ﬂ: a management overlay as part of its

Read and assessed the Company's
accounting policy for impairment of
financial assets and its compliance with Ind
AS 109 and the governance framework
approved by the Board of Directors
pursuant to Reserve Bank of India
guidelines issued on March 13, 2020,

Read and assessed the Company's policy
with respect to moratorium pursuant to
the RB! circular and tested the
implementation of such policy on a sample
basis.

Tested the operating effectiveness of the
controls for staging of loans based on their
past-due status. Tested samples of
performing (stage 1} loans to assess
whether any loss indicators were present
requiring them to be classified under stage
2or3.

We performed test of details of the inputs
used in the ECL computation, on a sample
basis.

Tested assumptions wused by the
management in determining the overlay
for macro-economic factors (including
COVID-19 pandemic),

Tested the arithmetical accuracy of
computation of ECL provision performed
by the Company In spreadsheets.

Assessed disclosures included in the
Standalone Ind AS financial statements in
respect of expected credit losses inciuding
the specific disclosures made with regards
to the management's evaluation of the
uncertainfies arising from COVID-19 and
its impact on ECL estimation.
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Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter
caused by COVID-19 pandemic. Given the unique
nature and scale of the economic impact of this
pandemic, and its timing being close to the year-
end, the management overlay is based on various
uncertain variables, which could result in actual
credit loss being different than that being
estimated.

In view of such high degree of management's
judgement involved in estimation of ECL,
accentuated by the COVID-19 pandemic, it is
considered as a key audit matter.

(b} Information technology {IT) systems and controls

The reliability and security of IT systems play a | We performed the following procedures for testing
key role in the business operations and financial | IT general controls and for assessing the reliability
accounting and reporting process of the|of electronic data processing, assisted by
Company. Since large volume of transactions are | specialized IT auditors:

processed daily, the IT controls are required to
ensure that applications process data as
expected and that changes are made in an
appropriate manner. Any gaps in the IT control
environment could resuit in a material
misstatement of the financial accounting and
reporting records.

s The aspects covered in the IT General Control
audit were (i) User Access Management (ii)
Program Change Management (iii) Other
related ITGCs ~ to understand the design and
test the operating effectiveness of such
controls;

= Assessed the changes that were made to the

Therefore, due to the pervasive nature and key systems during the audit period and
compiexity of the IT environment, the assessing changes that have impact on
assessment of the general IT controls and the financial reporting;

application controls specific to the accounting o . .
and preparation of the financial information is | ® Tested the periodic review of access rights. We

considered to be a key audit matter. inspected requests of changes to systems for
apprapriate approval and authorization.

s Performed tests of controls (including other
compensatory controls wherever applicable) on
the IT application controls and IT dependent
manual controls in the system.

» Tested the design and operating effectiveness
of compensating controis, where deficiencies
were identified and, where necessary,
extended the scope of our substantive audit
procedures.

Other Information

The Company’'s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board report, but does not include the Standalone Ind AS
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon, which we obtained prior to the date of this auditors
report, and the Annual report, which is expected to me made available to us after that date.

Our opinion on the Standalone Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

When we read the Annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these Standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with
the Companles (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes
malntenance of adequate accounting records In accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities: selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Standalone Ind AS financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the Standalone Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liguidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do s0.

Those Charged with Governance are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Ind AS financlal
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SA will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these Standalone Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional Judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
Nexpressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system
tiptace and the operating effectiveness of such controls.
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* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by managerment.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the Standalone Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone Ind AS financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Standalone Ind AS financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events In a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance In the audit of the Standalone Ind AS financlal statements for the financial year
ended March 31, 2020 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order"), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure 1* a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

{a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) Inour opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books:

{¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account:

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone ind AS financial statements compty with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting
R, Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended:

“i?«?(é)\ On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2020

1\ taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on

)F“}i' March 31, 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

7
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(f} With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company with reference to these Standalone Ind AS financial statements and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2" to this report;

(g) The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Company
for the year ended March 31, 2020;

{h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 17 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

f. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position In its
Standalone Ind AS financial statements - Refer Note 41 to the Standalone Ind AS financial
statements;

ii. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting
standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including
derivative contracts ~ Refer Note 53 to the Standalone Ind AS financial statements:

fii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For S. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

va\r’@_ﬂ— i

per Shrawan Jalan
Partner
Membership Number: 102102
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our report of even date

Re: Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited

(i) (@) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) All fixed assets have not been physically verified by the management during the year but there is
a regutar programme of verification which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size
of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given by the rmanagement, the titie deeds of
immovable properties included in property, plant and equipment are held in the name of the
Company.

(ii) The Company's business does not involve inventories and, accordingly, the requirements under
clause 3(ii} of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(i) (a) The Company has granted loans to three parties covered in the register maintained under section 189
of the Companies Act, 2013. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to
us, the terms and conditions of the grant of such loans are not prejudicial to the Company's interest.

{b) The Company has granted loans to three parties covered In the register maintained under section 189
of the Companies Act, 2013. The schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been
stipulated for the loans granted and the repayment/receipts are regular.

(c) There are no amounts of loans granted to companies, firms or other parties listed in the register
maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 which are overdue for more than ninety
days.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no loans,
investments, guarantees, and securities granted in respect of which provisions of section 185 and
186 of the Act are applicable and hence not commented upon.

(v The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act
and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

(vi) To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central Government has not specified the
maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the Act, for the services of the Company.

(vii) (a) The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues
including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, goods and service tax, cess and
other statutory dues applicable to it. As informed, the provisions of sales tax, wealth tax, value
added tax, excise duty and customs duty are currently not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, goods and service tax, cess
and other statutory dues applicable to it were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more
than six months from the date they became payable.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, the dues outstanding of income tax,
sales-tax, service tax, customs duty, excise duty, value added tax and cess which have not been
deposited on account of any dispute, are as follows:
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Name of Nature of | Amount under® | Amount paid* Period to Forum where
the statute | disputed dispute (Rs. in which the dispute is pending
dues (Rs. in millions) millfons) amount
relates
Income Tax | Income Tax 83.82 24.25 AY 2014-15 | The Commissioner of
Act, 1961 Income Tax
{Appeals)
Income Tax Income Tax 12.57 - AY 2015-16 | The Commissioner of
Act, 1961 Income Tax
(Appeals)
Income Tax | Income Tax 127.57 - AY 2017-18 | The Commissioner of
Act, 1961 Income Tax
{Appeals)
* paid under protest

# includes interest

{viii}  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the
Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to a financial institution or bank
or dues to debenture holders.

{ix) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not
raised any money way of Initial public offer / further public offer / debt instruments) and term
loans hence, reporting under clause (ix) is not applicable to the Company and hence not
commented upon.

{(x) Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of
the Standalone Ind AS financial statements and according to the information and explanations
glven by the management, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company by the
officers and employees of the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

(xi) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the provisions of
section 197 read with Schedufe V of the Act are not applicahle to the Company and hence
reporting under clause 3(xi) are not applicable and hence not commented upon.

(xi) In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of
the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

{xiif}  According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with the
related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and the
details have been disclosed in the notes to the Standalone Ind AS financial statements, as required
by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
balance sheet, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review and hence, reporting
requirements under clause 3{xiv) are not applicable to the Company and, hence not commented
upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as referred
to in section 192 of the Act.
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(xvi)  According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the Company has
registered as required, under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For 5. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
iCAl Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

Kgosr— 2 57

per Shrawan Jalan
Partner
Membership Number: 102102

UDIN: 20102102AAAAHI19544
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Annexure 2 referred to in paragraph 2 (f) under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our report of even date

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Edelweiss Finvest Private
Limited (*the Company") as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the Standalone financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financlal Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing
as specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and If such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of Internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the Standalone Ind AS financlal statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We belleve that the audit evidence we have obtained Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Standalone Ind AS financial

statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, A

company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the

transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that

transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Standalone Ind AS financial statements

s, IN Accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the

‘._,.f‘%qy’&jﬁﬁ@gij%%ompany are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the

r;,xf';‘%f’ ;f\{’?=;gsé{ppany: and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised

. N "ggz‘!yisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
itandalone Ind AS financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibifity of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become Inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

For S. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301 003E/E300005

L\t‘c_ s ‘2—-————?
per Shrawan Jalan

Partner
Membership Number: 102102

UDIN: 20102102AAAAHI9544

Mumbat
July 03, 2020



Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited
Balence Sheet as at March 31, 2020

tCurrency - Induns rupees in million)

ASSETS
Financial nssets
(a) Casl and cash cquivalents
th) Derivavive financial instruments
(e} Securities held for irading
(d) Receivables

(1) Trade receivables

{ii} Other receivables
(£} Loans
(N Investnwents
(g} Other financial assets

Men-financial assets

{ay Currenl tax assets (nct)

(b) Delerred tax assets (nel}

(¢} Propeny, Plant and Equipnent
(dy Other Intangible assets

ey Other non- Rnancial assels

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Lizhilities

Financial liabilities

() Derivative financial instruments

(b} Trade payables
(i) towsl outstanding dues of micro enterprises and smail enterprises
(i} 1o0tal outsianding dugs of creditors eiher than micro emterprises and
small enzerprises

(¢} Debt sccunties

(d) Borrowings {ather than debi securities)

(e} Subardinated liabilitics

(Y Other financial Habilities

Non-financial liabilitics

{av Currenl 1ax liabilities (net)
tb) Provisions

{ey Quher non-financial liabiities

Equity

{u} Equiwy share capilal

th)  Inssrumems emtirely equity it nature
tcy Other equily

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

* Refer Nute no, 54
The accompanying nates are an integral part ol the financial statements

As pes cor report of ever date attached

For 8. R. Batlihoi & Co. LLI*
Chartered Accaunlants
ICAT Firm Registraton Number. 301003E/A300003

[\mw"“’”" "_53/%

Ty U3, 2020

a B
Asat Asat Asat
Note March 31, 2020 Aarch 31, 2019 April 81, 20§ 8
3 1,455.29 467001 63175
9 1.563.67 70685 287.70
i 507058 114286 1.68%.74
El 260 2134 1285
3 2,78 2046 10.60
[z ©v,237.96 24.560.55 2747743
B3 6.327.45 1.862.01 4.617.50
&) 534.40 66812 19.33
24,154.53 33,658.30 34.988.90
s 15663 147.32 146.82
11i] 261.1% 114.22 18697
E7 219 t 35 113
£7 403 6.35 -
] 146.46 10}.56 58.90
570,52 370,80 443.82
24,725.05 34,629 10 3548272
9 23646 42249 2244
i 22645 323 %9 M554
e 13,160.17 2227576 17.970.76
21 5211 33748 8.198.80
22 16109 H inl.26
23 045 2274 16.54
14,136.73 23,543.23 26.905.34
24 163.23 1140 66,45
25 742 14.90 136
26 43.03 42.07 18.63
213.69 134,37 q7.40
27 33326 33326 3326
28 - -
29 10,045.37 1{LO1S 24 8.156.60
10,374.63 £0,351.50 5.489.92
24,725.05 34,029,10 35,482,792
| 1056

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Amit Diawan

Managing Direcior & CEO

DIN: 02800746

'LLM

Ashish
Darector
DIN- 07789472

ehair



Ldelweiss Finvest Private Limited
Stitement of Profil snd Loss for the vear ended Mareh 31, 2020

{Currency” Endian rupees m million;

Revenue from operations

Interest tncome

Dividend income

Fee income

Net gain / (loss) on [air value changes tincluding treasury income)

Other income
Total Revenue

Expenses

Finance casts

Net {oss on derecognition of finarcial instrumenis
Impairment en financial instruments

Employee beneliis expense

Depreciation. amortisition and impairment
Crher expenses

‘Total expenscs
Profit efore {ax

Tax expenses (Refer Note 398)
(1) Current tax
a) Current Tax
b) Adjustment in respect of carrent income lax of prior years

{23 Deferred tax expense / (credit) tnet

Profit foe the year

Other comprehensive income

(a3 Items that will not e reclassified 1o profit or loss
Remeasurement gain / {loss) en delined beneliy plans (QCI
Income tux - OCI - that will not be reclassified

Total

Tatal comprehensive income
Earnings per equity share {Face value of Rs. 10 cach):

(1} Basic {INR)
(2} Diluted {INR)

The accompanying notes are an inlegrad part of the Nrancnl stalements

A per our report of even dale attached

For 8. R. Batliboi & Coe. LLP
Chastered Accounianis
[CAl Firm Registration Number: 331003E/E300005

Lfc, g

i S

Total Tax

Note For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2620 Marek 31, 2019
30 288,70 4.702.61
31 o+ 17LIR
32 41.27 119,39
33 1,095.17 265.60
34 394 (+03
3,229.7% 5.257.79
35 177278 2,264.01
36A 2043 -
36B S00.31 119,59
k1) 9941 112.76
17 2.83 089
38 Sl6.62 21748
1,912.08 2,714,273
317791 232300
39 176,70 680.12
39 160.39) 19.95)
216.37 67017
3 (147.04) 164,47
69.33 835.04
248,38 1,708.02
0.21 (R
{0.035) .60
0.16 (1,23)
248.54 1,706.79
40 745 5125
40 743 51.25
1056

For and on helall of the Board of Directors

Amit Dhawan
Managing Director & CEO
[IN: 02500746

DN 07789972



Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited
Statement of Cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2020

(Currency: Todhan rupees in million)

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
A Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax 31771 2,543.06
Adjustiments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Drepreciation and amortisation 2.83 0.89
Impairment on financial instruments (net) 500.31 119.50
Fair value of financial instruments (net) 1,027.09 (167.73)
Provision for geatity and compensated absences (7.27) 10.65
Profit on sule of of fixed assets (aet) - 0.19)
Working capital changes (net) 1,840.67 2,506.27
Increase / (Decrease) for working capital changes (net)
Trade and other receivables (6.87) (23.42)
Securities held for trading (4,594.03) 529.37
Other financial assets (943.38) (1.005.96}
Loans 14,871.79 3,296.36
Investments (4,658.91) 2.888.75
Other non firanciaf asscts (44.88) (42.66)
Trade payables (97.44) (21.65)
Non firanciaf Habifitics 0.97 2342
Other financial liabilisy 304,88 438.37
6,672.80 8,588.85
Income taxes paid {139.87) (659.72)
Nel cash generated from / (used in) operating activities -A 6,532.43 7,929.13
B Cash flow from investing activities

Purchase of property. plant and equipment and intangible assels (1.40} (8.13)
Sale of property, plant and equipment and intangible asseis 0.03 0.86
Net cash used in investing activities - B (L.37) (7.27)

C  Cash flow from financing activities
Increase in debt securities {refer note 1 below) (9,765.03) 4,246.27
(Decrease}/ increase in borrowings other than debt securiiics {refer note | helow)

(21.3% (7.86L.71
Increase / (Decrease) in Subordinate Debt -
Net cash (used in) / generated from financing aclivities - C (9,786.38) (3,615.50)
Nel increase in cash and cash cquivalents (A+B+C) (3,254.82) 4,306.36
Cash and cash equivalent as at the beginning of the year 4.670.11 363.75
Cash and cash equivalent as at the end of the year 141529 4,670,114

Operational cash flows from interest and dividends

Interest paid
Interest received
Dividend received

For the yvear ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
1,233.04 2.058.56
3.846.56 4,213.58

0.71 17018




Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited
Statement of Cash fows for the vear ended March 31, 2020

(Currency: Indian rupees in miilion)

Cash Flow Statement (continued)

Notes:
{  Cash receipts and payments for transaction with group companies in which the turnover is quick, the amounts are large. and the maturities
are short are presented on net basis in accordance with Ind AS-7 Statement of Cash Flows
2 Above Cash Flow Staternent has been prepared under indirect method as set out in Ind AS 7 prescribed under the Companies Act {Indian
Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015 under the companies Act 2013,
3 Refer note 43 for disclosure refating to changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

As per our report of even date attached

For S. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
artered Accountanis
CAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

. ;2 x5
L%’gav\‘*

per Shrawan Jalan Amit Dhawan Ashish-Hehair
Partrer Managing Director & CEO /MDirector
Membership No: 102102 DIN: 02800746 DIN: 07789972

Mumbas July 03, 2020




Edchweiss Fiavest Privite Limited

Statement of Changes in Eguily for the yeas ended March 31, 2020

(Curreney Indran rupecs momtlion)

AL Equily Stiare Capilal

For the year ended March 31, 2020 For the vear ended March 31, 2012
Qugstanding as un | lssued during the § Quistanding as on | Qutstanding as on | Issued during | Qutstanding as on
April 1, 2019 year Mareh 31, 202¢ April 1, 2018 the yezr March 31,2019
Instred, subseribed and pand up 333.36: “ 333.26, 333 16 (L] 133.26
1 Lpeity shares of Rs 10 cach. fully parl-ups
1L Othier Equity
jits emed Cupital - .
Capt ']_l Sccuritics . —_— DchL. C-fl" s Tutal Attrilluiable
redemplion . Stalstory Reserve | Retained Eamings | Contribution - -~ )
Premiom . N 10 equity holders
reserve Equity Preference Shares ¢
Batance us at 1st April 2018 84.34 375255 HOT.0D 1510.52 325 B,156.06
Profit Tor the year - LHB.02 . - 1708 02,
Oiher comprehensn ¢ mcome - . - 1133 B - [§RAT]
5434 375235 Hi.(Hy 523331 325 - 9.863.45
Shares paued during Lhe vear - - -
Premutm reeened ne issue of debentures - 163 33 . 163 33
Income tax impact un ESOPs - (834 18 543
Transfer 1o statnon feserve - Mo 1341.600
Balance as at March 31, 2019 5.3 391588 1.142.60 4873.17 135 - 10,018.24
Profit for the yeir - . 248.38 . 248 38
Oiher comprehensive incange - 0.18] - - & 16
§4.34) 391588 1.142.60 512171 128 - 10,206.78]
Peemaun teanstes 1o finaneizt liabilicy {1724 7244
Transfer (o staWIOnN reserve - - 86 UK 156.98 1 - -
Deemed distributton during she year - {32.897) (52 97)
Halance as at Macch 31, 2020 .3 3, 74244 1,229.58 5034.73) 225 132.97) 10.045.37
As per vt report ot even date attached
The accompanyang dotes 110 30 gre an wtegral part of the fnanvial staiements
~

For 5. R, Batliloi & Ce. LLP
Chartered Aveounnints
ICAT Firm Registratien Nenber: 30 1003E/E300005

L{ o ‘w&"’g'v -

per Shrawan Jalun
Purtner
Membership N 102102

For and on rehall of the Buard of Directors

Amit Dhawan
Managing Diector & CLO
LN 02800740

l):recluri
DIX. OF789972

Mumbm July 03 2020




Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

1. Corporate information:

Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited (‘the Company’) a private limited company domiciled and incorporated
under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India is subsidiary of ECap Equitics Limiled. The
Company was incorporated on August 23, 2006, and is registered with the Reserve Bank of India (‘'RBT') as a
Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC-ND-SI).

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of corporate credit and retail credit. Under the corporate
credit vertical it offers structured collateralised credit to corporates and real estate finance o developers and
under the retail credit vertical it offers loan against securitics.

2. Basis of preparation:

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules. 2015 (as amended from time 1o
time).

These financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis. except for certain financial
instruments such as, derivative {financial instruments, and other financial insiruments held for trading, which
have been measured at fair value. The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees {INR} and alf values
are rounded to the nearest million, except when otherwise indicated.

3, Presentation of financial statements:

The Company presents its balance sheet in order of Hquidity in compliance with the Division [11 of the Schedule
[II to the Companies Act, 2013. An analysis regarding recovery or settlement within 12 months after the
reporting date (curreni) and more than £2 months afler the reporting date (non—curreni) is presented in “Note
44-Matarity Analysis of assets and liabilities”.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally reported gross in the balance sheet, They are only offset
and reported net when, in addition to having an unconditional legally enforceable right to offsei the recognised
amounts without being contingent on a future event, the parties also intend 10 settle on a net basis in ail of the
following circumstances:

¢ The normal course of business
* The event of defaull
¢ The event of insolvency or bankrupicy of the Company and or its counterparties

Derivative assets and liabilities with master netting arrangements fe.g. ISDAs (Intemational Swaps and
Derivatives Association)] are only presented net when they satisfy the eligibility of netting for all of the above
7 criteria and not just in the event of defautt,




Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited

Noles {o the financial statemend for the year ended March 31, 2020

4. Significant accounting policies

4.1 Recognition of interest income and dividend income

4.1.1 Effective interest rate (EIR):

4.1.2

4.1.3

4.1.4

4.1.5

Under Ind AS 109 interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR) method
for all financial instruments measured at amortised cost and debt instrument measured at
FVOCI. The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts cstimated future cash {lows through the
expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate a shorter period to the gross
carrying amount of finaacial instrument.

The EIR is calculated by laking into account any discount or premium on acquisition, fees and
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The Company recognises interest income using a rate
of return that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of retum over the expected life of
the financial asset. Hence, it recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates charged
at various stages, and other characteristics of the preduct life cycle including prepayments
penalty interest and charges.

If expectations regarding the cash flows on the financial asset are revised for reasons other
than credit risk, the adjustment is booked as a positive or negative adjustment to the carrying
amount of the asset in the balance sheet with an increase or reduction in interest income.

Interest income:

The Company calculates interest income by applying the EIR o the gross carrying amount ol
financial assets other than credit-impaired assets.

When a financial asset becomes credit-impaired and is, theretore, regarded as ‘Stage 3°, the
Company calculates interest income by applying the EIR to the amortised cost {net of expected
credit foss) of the financial asset. If the financial assets cures and is no longer credit-impaired.
the Company reverts to calculating interest income on a gross basis,

Penal interest income on delayed EMI or pre EMI is recagnised on receipt basis.
Dividend income:

The Company recognised dividend income when the Company’s right to receive the paymens
has been established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will
flow to the Company and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Fee and Commission Income:
Fee and commission income include fees other than those that are an integral part of EIR. The
Company recognises the fee and commission income in sccordance with the terms of the
relevant contracts / agreement and when it is probable that the Company will collect the
consideration.

Other Income

Other Income represents income eamned from the activities incidental to the business and is
recognised when the right 1o receive the income is established as per the terms of the contract.
Other ancillary charges arc recognized upon realisation.

4.2 Financial instruments:

4.2.1

Date of recognition:

Financial assets and labilitics with exception of loans and borrowings are initially recognised
on the trade daie, i.e. the date the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. This includes regular way trades: purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time {rame generally established by regulation or convention in the




Edehweiss Finvest Private Limited

Notes (o the financial statement for the vear eaded March 31, 2020

4.2.2

4.2.3

4.2.4

markes place. Loans are recognised when funds are transferred o the customers’ account, The
Company recognises borrowings when funds are avaitable Tor utilisation o the Compuny.

Initial measurement of financial instruments:

Financial assets and {inancial liabilities are initially measured a1 fair value. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial Habilities
{other than financial assets and financial liabilitics at fair valuc through profit or loss) are added
10 or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss arc recognised immediately in profil or
loss.

Day 1 profit and loss:

When the transaction price of the financial instrument differs from the fair value at origination
and the fair value is based on a valuation technique using only inputs observable in markel
transactions, the Company recognises the differcnce between the transaction price and fair value
in net gain on fair value changes. In those cases where {air value is based on models for which
some of the inputs are not observable, the difference between the transaction price and the fair
value is deferred and is only recognised in profit or loss when the inputs become observable, or
when the instrument is derecognised,

Classification & measurement categories of financial assets and liabilities:

The Company classifies all of its financial assets based on the business model for managing the
assets and the asset’s contractual terms, measured at either:

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (AC)

A financial assel is measured w1 amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contraciual cash {Tows and the contractual terms
of the financial asset give rise on specified dates 10 cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount ousstanding. The changes in carrying value of
financial assels is recognised in profit and loss account.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCH

A financial asset is measured at FVTOCT if it is held within a business model whose objective
is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the
contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding, The changes in fair
vaklue of financial asscts is recogaised in Other Comprehensive Income,

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are measured at FVTPL.

The Company measures all financial assets classified as FVTPL at fair value at each reporting
ate. The changes in fair value of financial assets is recognised in Profit und loss account.

4.3 Financial assets and liabilities:

4.3.1

Amortized cost and effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrunient
and of allocating interest income over the relevant period,

For financial instruments other than purchased or originated credit-impaired financiai assets, the
cffective interest rate is the rate thai exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including




Edehveiss Finvest Private Limited

Notes to the financial siatement (or the year ended March 31, 2020

4.3.2

4.3.3

434

4.3.5

4.3.6

4.3.7

ali fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) excluding expected credil losses, through
the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorler peried, to the gross
carrying amount of the debt instrument on initial recognition.

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at which the financial usset is measured at
initial recognition minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative amortisation using the
effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount,
adjusted for any loss allowance. On the other hand, the gross carrying amount of a financial
assel is the amortised cost of a financial asset before adjusting for any loss allowance.

Financial assets held for trading:

The Company classifies financial assets as held for trading when they have been purchased
primarily for shori-term profit making through trading activities or form part of a portfolic of
financial instrumenis that are managed together, for which there is evidence of a recent pattern
of short-term profit taking, Held-for-trading assets are recorded and measured in the balance
sheet at fair value, Changes in fair value are recognised in net gain on fair value changes.

s

Investmen{ in equily instruments:

The Company subsequently measures all equity invesiments (other than subsidiaries,
asscciates, and other group companies) at fair value through profiv or loss, unless the
management has elected to classify irrevocably some of its stralegic equity investments to be
measured at FVTOCI, when such instruments meet the definition of Equity under Ind AS 32
Financial Instruments: Presentation and arc not held for trading. Such classification is
determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis. Investments in subsidiaries and associates
ar¢ carried at cost as permitted under Ind AS 27 (Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements), The invesiment in other group companies are carried at cost

Financiai liabilities:

All financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost except loan commitments. financial
guarantecs, and derivative financial liabilities.

Derivative financial instruments:

The Company enters into a variety of derivative {inancial instruments to manage its exposure to
interest rate, market risks.

Derivatives are initially recognised at f{uir value at the date the derivative coatracts are entered
into and arc subsequently re-measured 10 their fair value at the end of cach reporting period.
The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Debt securities and other borrewed funds:

The Company measures debt issued and other borrowed funds at Amorised cost at cach
reporting daie. Amortised cost is caleulated by taking into account any discount or premium on
issue funds, and costs that are an integral part of the EIR.

The Company issues certain aon-converiible debenwres, the return of which is linked to
performance of specified indices over the period of the debenture. Such debentures have a
companent of an embedded derivative which is fair valued at a reporting date. The resuliant *net
unrealised loss or gain” on the fair valuation of these embedded derivatives is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss. The debt component of such debentures is measured at amortised
cost using yield to maturity basis.

Financial assets and {inancial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:




Edelweiss Finves( Private Limited

Motes to the financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2020

Financial assets and financial liabilities in this calegory arc those that are not held for trading
and have been either designated by management upon initial recognition or are mandatorily
required to be measured at fair valuc under Ind AS 109. Management only designates an
instrument at FVTPL upon initial recognition when onc of the following criteria are met. Such
designation is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

*  The designation eliminales, or significantly reduces, the inconsisient treatment that would
otherwise arise from measuring the assets or liabilities or recognising guins or losses on
them on a different basis; Or

»  The liabilities are part of a group of financial labilities, which are managed and their
performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk
management or investment strategy; Or

¢ The liabilities containing one or more embedded derivatives. uniess they do not
significantly modify the cash {lows that would otherwisc be required by the contract, or it
is clear with little or no analysis when a similar instrument is first considered that
separation of the embedded derivative(s) is prohibited.

Financial assets and financial liabilitics at FVTPL are recorded in the balunce sheet at fair value.
Changes in fair value are recorded in profit and toss with the exception of movements in fair
value of liabilities designated at FVTPL due to changes in the Company’s own credit risk. Such
changes in fair value are recorded in the Own credit reserve through OCEand do not get recycled
to the profit or loss. Inferest earned or incurred on instruments designated at FVTPL is accrued
in interest income or lfnance cost, respectively, using the EIR, 1aking into account any discount/
preimium and qualifying transaction costs being an integral part of instrument. Interest carned
on assets mandatorily required to be measured at FVTPL is recorded using contraciual interest
rate.

4.3.8 Loan commitmenis:
Undrawn loan commitments are commitments under which, the Company 1s reguired 1o provide
a loan with pre-specified terms to the customer over the duration of the commitment. Undrawn
loan commitments are in the scope of the ECL requirements.
4.3.%9 Financial liabilities and equity instrumenits
Financial instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financtal [iabtlities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of
a financial liability and an equity instrumeni.
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity
alter deducting all of its Habilities. Equity instruments issucd by the Company are secognised
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
4.4 Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities
The Company does nol reclassify s financial asseis subscquent to their iniual recognition, apart from
the exeeptional circumstances in which the Company acquires, dispose< of, or terminates a business line,
The Company didn’t reclassily any of its financial assets or liabilities in current period and previous
period.

4.5 Derecognition of financial Instruments:

4.5.1 Derecognition of financial asset




Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited

Notes to the financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2020

A financial asset {(or. where applicable a part of a financial assct or a part of a group of similar
financial assets) is derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assed
have expired. The Company also derecognises the financial asset i it has both transferred the
financial asset and the transfer gualifies for derccognition.

The Company has transferred the financial asset if, and only if,, either

* The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash {lows from the financial asset or

s [tretains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset. bul assumed
a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows in full without material delay to third party
under pass through arrangement.

Pass-through arrangements are transactions whereby the Company retains the contractual
rights 10 receive the cash flows of a financial asset (the 'original asset'}, bul assumes a
coniractual obligation to pay those cash flows to one or more entities (the ‘eventual
recipients’), when all of the following conditions are met:

* The Company has no obligation to pay amounts Lo the eventual recipients unless it
has collected equivalent amounts frotn the original asset, excluding shori-term
advances with the right 1o full recovery of the amount lent plus accrued interest at
markel rates.

* The Company cannot sell or pledge the original asset other than as security to the
eventual recipients.

The Company has to remit any cash flows it coliects on behalf of the eventual recipients
without material delay. In addition, the Company is not entitled 10 reinvest such cash
flows, excepl for investments in cash or cash cquivalents including interest eamed, during
the period between the collection date and the date of required remittance to the eventual
recipients.

A transfer only quatifies for derecognition if either:
¢ The Company has iransferred substantially alk the risks and rewards of the assct: or

* The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

The Company considers control to be transferred il and only if, the transferee has the
practical ability 1o seli the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party and is able o
cxercise that ability unilaterally and without imposing additional restrictions on the
wransfer.

The Company also derecognises a financial asset, when the terms and conditions have
been renegotiated to the extent that, substantially, it becomes a new financial asset. with
the difference recognised as a derccognition gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment
s has not already been recorded. The newly recognised financial assets are classified
as Stage | for ECL measurement purposes, unless the new financial asset is deemed 1o be
POCL

If the modilication does not resull in cash flows that are substanuaily different. the
modification does not result in derecognition. Based on the change in cash flows
discounted at the original EIR, the Company recerds a modification gain or loss, 1 the
extent that an impairment foss has not alrcady been recorded.

4.5.2 Derecognition of financial liabilities




Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited

Notes to the financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2020

A financtal lability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged,
cancelled or expires. Where an cxisting financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
maodified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and the recognition of a new liability. The difference between the carrying value of the ariginal
financial Hability and the consideration paid, including modified contractual cash (low
recognised as new financial liability, is recognised statcment of profit and loss.

4.6 Impairment of linancial assets:

The Company records provisions based on expected credit loss modet (“ECL™) on all foans, other debt
financial assets measured at amortised cost together with undrawn loan commitment and financial
guarantee contracts, in this section all referred 10 as “Financial instrument”. Equity instruments are not
subject 1o impairment.

ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. A credil loss is the difference between the cash
flows that are duc to an entity in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the entity expects
to receive discounted at the original effective interest rate. Because ECL consider the ameunt and timing
of payments, a credit loss arises cven if the entity expects to be paid in full but later than when
contractually due.

Simplified approach

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade
receivables. The application of simplified approach does not require the Company (o track changes in
credit risk. Rather, il recognises impairment {oss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at eachi reporting date,
right from its initial recognition. The Company vses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss
allowance on portfolio of its receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default
rates over the expected life of the receivables. However, if receivables contain a significant financing
component, the Company chooses as its accounting policy to measure the loss allowance by applying
generai approach to measure ECL.

General approach

For all other financial instruments, the Company recognises lifetime ECL when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk (SICR) since initial recognitien. If, on the other hand, the credit risk on
the financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures
the loss allowance for thai financial instrument at an amount egual 10 F2-month expected credit losses
(12m ECL). The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial recognition instead of an evidence of
a financial assct being credit-impaired at the reporting date or an actual default occurring.

Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses that will result from all possible default events over
the expected life of a financial instrument. In contrast, 12m ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL
that 1s expected to resule from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 moaths
after the reporting date.

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of the probability of default (PD), foss given
default (LGD) (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessmeni of the probability of default and loss given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. As forthe exposure at default (EAD), for financial assets, this is represcented
by the assets” gross carrying amount at the reporting date: for loun commitments and linancial guarantee
contracts, the exposure includes the amount drawn down as a1 the reporting date, together with any
additional amounts expected to be drawn down in the future by defauls date determined based on historical
trend. the Company’s understanding of the specific {uture financing needs of the debtors, and other
relevant forward-looking information.

Company categories its financial assets as follows:
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4.7

4.8

4.9

Stage 1 assets:

Stage 1 assets includes financial instruments that have not had a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition or that have low credit risk at the reporting date. For these assets, 12-month ECL
(resulting from default events possible within 12 months from reporting date) are recognised.

Stage 2 assets:

Stage 2 Assets includes financial instruments that have had a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition For these assets lifetime ECL (resuiting from default events possible within 12 months from
reporting date) are recognised.

Stage 3 assets:
Stage 3 for Assets considered credit-impaired the Company recognises the lifetime ECL lor these loans.
The method is similar to that for Stage 2 assets, with the PD set at 1005,

The ongoing assessment of whether a significant increase in credit risk has occurred for working capital
facilities is similar to otber lending products. The interest rate used to discount the ECLs for working
capital facilities is based on the average effective interest rate that is expected to be charged over the
expecled peried of exposure to the facilities.

Company recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment 1o their carrying amount through a loss allowance account.

The expected credit losses on the loan commitment have been recognised together with the loss allowance
for the financial asset.

The Company's product offering includes a working capital facilities with a right to Company to cance]
and/or reduce the facilities with one day’s notice. The Company does not limit its exposure 1o credit losses
to the contractual notice period, bul, instead calculates ECL over a period that reflects the Company’s
expectaiions of the cusiomer behaviour, its likelihood of default and the Company’s future risk mitigation
procedures, which could include reducing or cancelling the facilities.

Collateral valuation:

To mitigate its credit risks on financial assets, the Company secks to use collateral, where possible. The
collateral comes in various forms, such as cash, securities, letiers of credit /guarantecs, real estale,
receivables, inventories, other non-financial assets and credit enhancements such as netting agreements.
Collateral, unless repossessed, is not recorded on the Company’s balance sheet. However, the fair value
of collateral affccts the calculation of ECLs. 1t is generally assessed, at a minimum, a1 inception and re-
assessed on a quarterly basis. However, some collateral. for example, sceurities relating 1o margin
requirements, is valued daily.

To the extent possible, the Company uses active market data for valuing financial assets held ax collateral.
Gther financial assets which do not kave readily determinable market value are valued using models
Nen-financial collateral. such as real estaie, is valued based on data provided by third parties such as
morigage brokers, or based on housing price indices.

Write-ofis:

Financial assets are wrilten off either partially or in their estirety only when the Compuny has no
reasonable expectation of recovery.

Determination of fair value:

The Company mcasures linancial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value ut cach reporting date.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer @ liability in an orderky
transaction between market participams ai the measurement date. The fair valae measurement is bused
on the presumption that the transaction o sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place cither:
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4.10

¢ In the principal market for the asset or Hability. or
* In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the assel or lsability.

The princips] or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an assel or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest, A fuir value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability
to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. The Company uses valuation
techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs. In order to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are classified based on
a hierarchy of valuation techniques, as summarised below:

Level 1 financial insiruments:

Those where the inputs used in the valuaiion are unadjusted quoted prices from active markets lor
identical assets or liabilities that the Company has access to at the measurement date. The Company
considers markets as active only if there are sufficient trading activities with regards to the volume and
liguidity of the identical assets or liabilities and when there are binding and exercisable price quotes
available on the balance sheet date.

Level 2 financial instruments:
Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant, are derived from directly or
indirectly observable market data available over the entire period of the instrument’s life.

Level 3 financial instruments:

Those that include one or more unobservable input that is significant 1o the measurement as whole,

For assets and liabilitics that are recognised in the financial statcmenis on a recurring basis. the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization
(based on the lowest [cve! input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end ol
cach reporting period. The Company periodically reviews its valuation technigues including the adopted
methodologies and mode] calibrations.

Therefore, the Company applies various techniques to estimate the credit risk associated with its [inancial
instruments measured at fair value, which include a portfolio-based approach that estimates the expected
net exposure per counterparty over the full lifetime of the individual assets, in order to reflect the credit
risk of the individual counterparties for non-collateralised financial instrements.

The Company evaluates the levelling at each reporting period on an instrument-by-instrament basis and
reclassifics instruments when necessary based on the facts at the end of the reporting petiod.

Leases:
Company as a lessec:
The Company has applied Ind AS 116 using the partial retrospective approach,

The Company assesses al contract incepltion whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. Thal is, if the
contract conveys the right te control the usc of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases,
excepl for short-term leases and teases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities w
make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease labilities measured at the present
value of lease payments (o be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments
(including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable. variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expecied 10 be paid under residual value guarantees, In
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4.13

caleulaiing the present vaiue of tease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After
the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the aceretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of fease liabililies is remeasured
if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the fease payments (e.g., changes to
future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a
change in the assessment of an option to purchase the vaderying asset.

Short term lease

The Company has clected not to recognise right of use asset and lease liabilities for short term leases of
property that has lease term of 12 months or less. The Company recognises lease payment associated with
these leases as an expense on a straight line basis over lease term.

Company as lessor:

The Company’s accounting policy under Ind AS 116 has not changed from the comparative period. As a
lessor the Company classifies its leases as either operating or finance leases. A lease is classified as a
finance Jease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidentat to ownership ol the underlying
asset and classified as an operinting lease i it does not..

Earnings per share:

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax attributable 10 the cquity
shareholders for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for the year,

Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts (o
issue equity shares were exercised or converted during the year. Diluted camnings per share is compuled
by dividing the net profit after 1ax attributable 1o the equity sharcholders for the year by weighted average
number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and weighted average number
of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all potemial equity shares.

Foreign currency transaction:

The Standalone Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees which is also functional cusvency of
the Company. Transactions in curreacies other than Indian Rupees (i.e. forcign currencies) are recognised
at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period,
monetary jlems denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-maonetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated a1
the rates prevailing at the date whea the [air value was determined. Non-maonetary items that are meuasured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranstaled.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise
Retirement and other employee benefit:
4.13.1 Provident fund:

The Company contributes to a recognised provident fund and nwtional pension scheme which is
a defined contribution scheme. The contributions are accounted for on an accrual basis and
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

4.13.2 Gratuity:

The Company’s gratuily scheme is a defined benefit plan, The Company s net obligation in
respect of the gratuity benefit scheme is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit
that the employees have carned in veturn for their service in the current and prios periods, that
benefitis discounted 1o determine its present value, and the fair value of any plan assets. il any.
is deducted. The present value of the obligation under such bencefit plan is dewermined based on
independent actuarial valuation using the Projecied Unit Credit Methaod.
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Re-measurement, comprising of actwarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling.
excluding amounts included in netl interest on she net defined benefit lability, are recognised
immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit 1o retained eamings
through OCl in the period in which they occur.,

Remeasurement are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.
4.13.3 Compensated absences:

The eligible employees of the Company are permitted to carry forward certain number of their
annual leave entitlement to subsequent years, subject to a ceiling. The Company recognises the
charge in the statement of profit and loss and corresponding liability on such non-vesting
accumulated leave entitlement based on a valuation by an independent actuary. The cost of
providing annual leave benefis is determined using the projected unit credit method.

4.13.4 Deferred bonus:

The Company has adopted a Deferred Bonus Plan under its Deferred Variable Compensation
Pian. A pool of identified senior employees of the Company is entitled {or benefits under this
plan. Such deferred compensation will be paid in a phased manner over a future period of time
The measurement for the same has been based on actuarial assumptions and principles.

4.13.5 Equity-settled share-based payments:

Equity-seilled share-based payments 1o employees are granted by the ultimate parent Company,
These are measured by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-sculed share-based payments is
expensed over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of equity instruments that will
eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity. At the end of each reporting period,
the Group revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected 1o vest. The impact
of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the
cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the "ESOP
reserve’. In cases where the share oplions granted vest in instalments over the vesling period,
the Group treats each instalment as a separate grant, because cach instalment has a differem
vesting period, and heace the fair value of each instalment differs.

4.14 Property, plant and equipment:

Property plant and equipment is stated at cost excluding the costs of day-to—day servicing, less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment ia value. Changes in the expected useful life are
accounted for by changing the amortisation period or methodology. as appropriate, and treated as chianges
in accounting estimates.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as 4 separale asset, as
appropriale, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will ftow to
the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate assel is derecognized when replaced, All other repairs and maintenance are
recagnized in profii or loss during the reporting period. in which they arc incurred.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other than frechold land and properties
under construction) less their residual values over their usclul lives. Depreciation is provided on a4 written
down value basis from the date the asset is ready for its intended use or put 1o use whichever is earlier. In
respect of assets sold, depreciation is provided upto the date of disposal.

As per the requirement of Schedule iE of the Companies Act. 2013, the Company has evaluated the usciul
lives of the respective fixed assets which are as per the provisions of Part C of the Schedule 1T for
calvalating the depreciation. The estimated useful Hves of the fixed assets are as {ollows:
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4.15

4.16

4.17

4.18

Nature of assels Estimated uscful lives
Building (other than factory building) ) 60 years

Vehicles 8 years

Office equipment 5 years

Compulters - servers and networks 6 years

Compulers - end user devices, such as desktops, laptops, etc. 3 years

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. The carrying amount of those
components which have been separately recognised as assets is derecognised at the time of replacement
thereof. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment arc
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusied prospectively, if appropriate.

Intangible assets:

Intangible assels are recorded at the consideration paid for the acquisition of such assets and are carried
a1 cost less accumulated amortization and impairment, if any. Intangibles such as software are amortised
over a period of 3 years based on its estimated useful life.

Impairment of non-financial assets:

The Company assesses at cach balance sheci date whether there is any indication that an asset may be
impaired based on internal/external {actors. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the
recoverable amount of the asset. If such recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of
cash generating unit which the asset belongs to is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is
reduced (o its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an impatirment loss and is recognized in the
staternent of profit and loss. If at the balance sheet date there is an indication that a previously assessed
impairment oss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the impairment is reversed
subject to a maximum carrying value of the asset before impairment.

Provisions and other contingent liabilities:

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required o settle the obligation, aad a refiable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material,
provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash {lows to net present value using an
appropriate pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of moncy and,
where appropriate, the risks specific 1o the liability,

A present obligation thal arises from past events, where it is either not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required 1o settle or a reliable estimate of the amount canaot be made, is disclosed as a
contingent liability. Contingent liabilities are also disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising
from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of
ane or more uncertain {utare events not wholly within the control of the Company Claims against the
Company, where the possibility of any outflow of resources in settlement is remolte, are not disclosed as
contingent liabilities,

Conlingent assets are nol recognised in the financial statements since this may resull in the recognition
of income that may never be realised. However, when the realisation of income is virtually certain, then
the related asset is not & contingent asset and is recognised.

Income tax expenses:

Income 1ax expense represents the sum of the (ax currently payable and delerred tax
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4.18.1 Current tax:

The tax currenily payable is based on 1axable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
“profit before tax’ as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income or
expense that arc taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Company’s current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enuacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

4.18.2 Deferred tax:

Deferred tax js recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of asscts and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences
to the extent that it is probable thal taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differcnces can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets s reviewed at the end of each reporting peried and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.,

Deferred 1ax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expecled to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates {and 1ax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

4.18.3 Current and deferred tax for the year:

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate (o items that
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current
and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.

4.19 Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash eguivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits
with an original maturity of three months or less.

5. Significani accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions :

In the application of the Company’s sccounting policies, which are described in note 4, the management s
required (o make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
The estimates and underlying assumplions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions te accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period. or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies:
The following are the critical judgemeats, apart from those involving estimations, that the management his made
in the process of applying the Company’s accounting poticies and that have the most significant effect on the

amounts recognised in the financial statements.

3.1 Business model assessment :
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Classification and meusurement of financial assets depends on the results of the solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI) and the business moded test, The Company determines the business model
at a level that reflects how Company’s of financial assets are managed together 1o achieve a particular
business objective. This assessment includes judgement reflecting all relevant evidence including how
the performance of the assets is evaluated and their performance is measured, the risks that affect the
performance of the assets and how these are managed and how the managers of the assels are
compensated. The Company monitors financial assels measured at amortised cost that are derecognised
prior to their maturity to understand the quantum, the reason for their disposal and whether the reasons
are consistent with the objective of the business for which the asset was held, Monitoring is part of the
Company’s continuous assessmeni of whether the business model for which the remaining financial
assets are held continues to be appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there has beea a change in
business model and 50 a prospective change to the classification of those assets.

Significant increase in credit risk:

As explained in note 48.D.1, ECL is measured as an allowance equal to 12-month ECL for stage 1 assets,
or lifetime ECL for siage 2 or stage 3 assels. An assel moves Lo stage 2 when its credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition. In assessing whether the credit risk of an asset has significantty
increased the Company takes into account qualitative and quantitative reasenable and supporable
forward-looking information.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty:

The following are the key assumptions conceraing the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period thai may have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustrent to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, as described
below. The Company based its assumptions and estimales on parameters avaiiable when the financial
stalements were prepared. Existing circumsiances and assumptions about futurc developments, however.
may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company.
Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Fair value of financial instrumentis:

The fair value of firancial instruments is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid 1o transfer
a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement
date under current market conditions (i.e., an exil price} regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technigue. When the fair values of financial asscts and
financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be derived from active markets, they are
determined using a variety of valuation techniques that include the use of valuation models, The inputs
to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible,
estimation is required in establishing fair values. Judgements and estimates include considerations of
liquidity and model inputs related to items such as credit risk (both own and counterparty). funding value
adjustments, correlation and volatility.

Effective Interest Rate (EIR) Method:

The Company’s EIR methodology, as explained in Note 4.1.1, recognises interest income / expense using
a rate of return that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected behavioural
life of loans given / taken and recognises the effect of potentially different interest rales at various siages
and other characieristics of the product life cycle including prepayments and penalty interest and charges.

This estimation, by nature reyuires an element of judgement regarding the expecied behaviour and life
eycle of the instrument, as well expecied changes India’s base rate and other fee income, expenses that

are integrat part of the instrument

Impairment of Financial assets:
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The measurement of impairment losses across all categorics of financial assets except assets valued at
fair value through Profit & Loss accoum (FVTPL} requires judgement, in particutar, the estimation of
the amount and liming of luture cash flows and collateral values when determiring impairment losses
and the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk. Thesc estimates are driven by a number of
factors, changes in which can result in different levels of allowances.

The Company’s ECL calculations are ouiputs of models with a number of underlying assumptions
regarding the choice of variable inputs and their interdependencies. Elements of the ECL models that are
considered accounting judgements and estimates include:

e PD calculation includes historical data, assumptions and expectations of future conditions.

* The Company’s criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit risk and
s0 allowances for firancial assets should be measured on a life-time expected credit foss and the
qualilative assessmeni

* The segmentation of financial assets when their ECL is assessed on a collective basis

¢ Development of ECL models, including the various formulas and the choice of inpuis

s  Determination of associations between macroeconomic scenarios and, economic inputs, such as
unemployment levels and collateral values, and the effect on PDs, EAD and LGD

*  Selection of {orward-looking macroeconomic scenarios and their probability weightings, o
derive the economic inputs into the ECL models

It has been Company’s policy to regularly review its models in the context of actual loss experience and
adjust when necessary.

Impairment of Non-Financia! assets:

The Company assesses at cach reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.
If any indication exist, the Company estimaies the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable
amount is higher of an assel’s fair value less cost of disposal and its value in use. Where the carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its
recoverable amount.

Pravisions and contingent liabilities:

The Company operates in a regulatory and legal environment that, by nature, has a heightened efement
of litigation risk tnherent 1o its operations. As a resull. it is involved in various litigation, arbitration and
regulatory investigations and proceedings in the ordinary course of its business.

When the Company can reliably measure the outflow of economic benefits in refation o a specific case
and considers such outfiows 1o be probable, the Company records 4 provision against the case. Where the
probability of outflow is considered (o be remote. or probable. but a reliable estimate cannot be made. u
contingent liability is disclosed.

Given the subjectivity and uncertainty of determining the prebability and amount of tosses, the Company
takes inte account a number of factors including legal advice. the stage of the matter and historical
evidence {rom similar incidents. Significant judgement is required to conclude on these estimates.

Provisions for Income Taxes:

Significant judgments are involved in determining the provision for income taxes including judgment on
whether tax positions are probable of being sustained in 1ax assessments. A Lax assessment can involve
complex issues, which can only be resolved over extended time periods.

Estimaies and judgments are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectation of future events that may have a financial impact on the Company and that
are believed 10 be reasonable under the circumstances

Standards issued but not vet effective ;

6.1

There are no ner standard or amendment issued bul not effective
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1. Subsequent Events:
7.1  Scheme of Amalgamation for Merger

A Scheme of Amalgamation for merger of the Company ("Transferor Company”} with Edel
Finance Company Limiled ("Transferce Company”) and their respective sharcholders under
section 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made there under has been filed
with National Company Law Tribunal ("NCLT™) on May 22, 2020.
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(Curreney - Indan supees i mifhion)

Cash anl cash equivilents

Cashin hand
Casiv in hand

Balances with banks

~ N CUrFenl ACCaunts

- in fixed deposits with hanks

- in fixed deposits with banks 1o the extent held as security against borrowings (refer note
$.A belowy

Fixed depasit balinces with banks earn interest af fixed rate

Encumbrances ot fixed deposits held by the Company :

Fixed deposies pledged against overdraft facilicy
RBL Bank Limited

Asat
tlarch 31, 24020

Asat
Mareh 31, 2019

Asal
April 01, 238

001 ¢l

1.415.2% 11819 313.73
- 4501.91

50.01 0.1

1,415.29 4,670.11 363,75

- 50.01 30.01

- S0.0E S0.0E
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(Cumeney Indian rapeces i omthons

Y. Berivative finuncial instruments

The Campany eciters v densatives Tor nsk ma

perment purposes. These inciude hedges that esther meet the hedge sccoununy requirenients o hedges that are economc
hedges. burthe Company s elected ot 1o apply hedge Sceounting fegiirements

The lable below <haws tle fur values of derivative financial instaments recorded as asseis of fubilines together with e notonal amounis 7 unts hedd

Murch 31, 2020
Noli B N uti f
Unil Currency Notivnal Fair villue Asset Unit Curreney National Fair value liability
Particulars amount amaount
(i) Equity linked derivatives
Stock Futures Ne ol Shares INR 447353 13.60 § No ol Shares INR 25774 w14
Less; amounts ulfset {13.60); (10.14)]
[Refer Note 9.0)
Sulitotali} - -
(3} Tndex linked derivatives
Index Futures Index Units INR 27,630 3421 index Unins INR G303 n.32
Options purchased Index Units INR 415,650 172.01
Options sold {wriven) - Index Unils ENR Rt 2741
Less; amounts alfsel 1342) (22.32)
[Refer Note 900
Subtotakii) 17001 127.41
(§ii) Enshicdded derivatives
In market finked debemures* 1.391.66] 109.05
Subtota 1.39L.66 169,05
Total Devivative Finaocial Instruments 1,563.67 236,40
Murch 31, 2089
. Unil Currency Naotiuna) Fair vidue Assel Unit Currency Naotivmab Fair vabue liability
Particulars amoudt amount
(i) Equity linked derivatives
Stock Fulures No ol Shares INR €.47.349 1379 | Noof Shares. INR 307828 .24
Less: amounts alfsel (1379 .24y

tRefer Nowe % A

Suhtotalkiy - B

1} Index linked derivalives

Index Futures Index Units INR 191175

Optiuns purchased Index Units INR 2.13.150

Options sold (written) - Index Umits INR 2950 1.33

Less amounts affet (2055} (1 33)]

{Refer Note ¥ A4
Subtatakii) 7935 -
(3if) Embedded derivatives

In markel hnked debentures™ 327.50] 42249
Sublotaliiil I27.50 $22.49

ive Finuncial lnstruments T0683 42249

April 0], 2015

- . Netiont o N . Nution: . P
T Unit Corrency tional Fuir value Asset it Currency utivnul Fair value Jisbility
Particulars anssnl N unmount N
(i) Equsity linked derivatives
Stock Futures No of Shares INR 2017 £.40] No ol Shares (NR 1.68.250 0356
Less: amounis oitket 1 10y (0.50)
(Refer Note Y A}
Subtotali) - -
tii) Index Jinked derivatives
Index Fuwres Index Linns INR 38925 077
Cptions purchased Index Units INR 35475 0.03
Gptians sold 08 Aleay . Index Umits INK 18 T8 10 56
Less. amounits ofTvet 77y <1050}
[ Reper Note 9 4)
Subtutalfiiy .03 -
{iii) Emhedded derivatives
In market hnhed debentures” 25767 224
Subtetaliiil) 2R7.67 2124
Tatal Derivstive Fingneial {nstruments 287,70 21234

Nate. The notionaliemis held idwate the valtie ol Izansactions oustanding it the yeur end and zre not indicatve ol either the market risk or credit risk

*An embedded demabive v a compunent of 3 hybrd instrument that alvo meludes 3 mon-densanve hosg coniract waih the elfect tha seme of the cash fons of die combined

MRl vary s aowas sinblar o stasd-alone derivative Reler Noie 2 3 6and 4 37 hog funher deiails

Hueduing activilies and derivatives
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Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited
Nntes to the financial statentents for the yewr ended Marck 31, 2020

tCurrencys Budian rapees in million

El. Receivables
a) Trade receivables
Receivabies considered good - unsecured

Receivables - credit impaired

Allowuance for expected credit [osses

Receivables - credit umpaired

Trade receivables (a) @)
by Other receivables
Receivables considered good - unsecured $
Other receivables (b )
Toatal receivables {a+h) a+h)

Asat
Alarch 3F, 2020

Asar
Marcls 31, 2019

Asa
April 01, 2018

2.60 213 12.85
73.70 5649 5743
76.30 77.43 70.28

(73.70) {86.49) 37.41)

2.60 2134 12.85

178 26.46 10,63

278 2646 10.60

5.38 47.59 23,45

$ Includes receivables rem companies in the sume group. The Company has no history of delaults and expects no default on these recen ables. aceordingly no allowance

for ECL. has been recognised on these reeeivables,

¢} Reconciliation of impairment allowsance on trade receivables:

Asat Asat Asat
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2014 April 01,2018
Impairment allowance measured as per simplified approach
Impairmest allowance - opening balaace 56,49 5743 57.40
Add/ (fess): asset originaled or scquired inet) 17.21 (.54 0.03
In:pairmest allowance - closing balance 73.70 36,49 57.43
Notes;
1j No rrade or other receivables are due from direciars or other officers of the compuny either severatlc or joiniv wih any other persen
2j Ne trade or other receivables are due from fivms or private companies in which directars 1s partner, a direcior or a meniber
d} Trade reecivables days past due
As at March 31, 2020 1-9¢
Current davs 41-180 days 181-360 days > 360 days Total
ECL Rates 0% 0% 0% 0% RO
Estimated total gross carrying amount a defuult = - 260 7370 76.30
ECL - Simplilied appreach - E 7370 7370
Net carrying amount - 2.60 - .60
As at March 31, 2019 1-90
Curremt days YE-18¢ days 181-364 days > 360 days Tatal
ECL Rates 0% % 0% 0% 10044
Estimazed otal gross carying amount w defaeh * - 2134 - 3649 7783
ECL - Simplified approach - - . 36,49 56.49
Net carrying amound - 21.34 - - - 21.34
*actndes receivables from stock exchanges /elearing house. The Company fras no fnstory of defawds und expects no defandt on these recenables cecordmghy no
alfonvance for ECL kus been recogrised on these receiviebles.
As at April 01, 2018 1290
Current davs 91-180 days 181-360 days > 360 days Total
ECL Rates 0% 0% 0% 1% 1Exyoeg
Estimiied wotal gross carrying wmou = at delaul * 1285 3743 7028
ECL - Simplified approach - - - 743 5743
Net carrying amount - §2.B5 - - - 12.85




Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited
Notes Lo the financial stiiements Cor the year cnded Marcls 31, 2020

(Curreney: Indian rupecs in mllon)

Asat Asal Asat
March 31, 2020 Alarch 31, 2014 March 31, 2018
12, Louans (a1 ansrtised cost)
Term Loans;
Corporate eredit 4,443.32 19,733.51 2700013
Retait credil 5,142,230 3.308.69 1.821.98
Total gross 9,5§5.62 25,042.20 25822.11
Less: Impzairment foss atlowance (347.86) (181.65) (844.08)
{Refer nate 124}
Total net 9,237.76 24,560.55 27,977.43
Collateral :
Secused by
Secured by langible assets (property including land & building) 2.218.18 12,676.39 15.182.08
Secuzed by inventories, unlisted securities, project receivables & other 4,285.34 9.688.87 13,101,119
marketsble securities
Unsecured 3.082.11 2676094 538.84
Taotal gross 9,583.63 25,042.20 28,822.11
Less: Impairment Joss allowance (347.86) (481.65) (#44.68)
{Refer note 12.A)
Total net 9,237.77 24,560.55 27,977.43
Loans in India
Public secior - - -
Others 9.585.62 25042.20 2882211
Total gross 9,585.62 25,042.20 28.822.11
Less: [mpairment loss allowance 1347.86) 481.65) (B4 .68)
tHefer nore 12.4)
Total net 9,237.76 24,560.55 2797743
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3.

Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited
Notes to the Moaneial statentents for she vear ended March 31, 2020

Currency: ndian rupees in miltive

Invesiments

13.A Summary «f Investments

As at darch 31, 2020 At fair valoe
At Amortised cost Th b OCI D";_fi_g“f"]"\d “ Subtotad Al cost {Ecllow Tivtak
1) U TFhruugh P&L (3) AL VAU B=(24344) subsidisries) (6) {h= (143261
2] through Profit
ot Joss (4)
Equily instruments - 21419 - 2151 SO0 14 50424
Preference Shares 447.61 . 36.09 - 36.9¢ 151,60
Secunty receipts (Refer belov nowe 3) - - 2,30345 . 270345 - 270345
Units of AIF - E 2.103.64 . 2.103.63 2,103.64
Units of veniure Jund - 11502 v 119.02 - 11962
Warranis 5250 5250 - 3250
TOTAL - Gruss {A) 447,61 - 5,28%.70 - 5,280.70 500.14 6,327,435
(i} Investrients vutside India - - - - .
(ii) lavestment in [ndia 447.61 - 5,289.70 . 5,280.70 590,14 6,327.45
Total (B) 447.61 - 528070 - 5,289.70 S4L14 6,327.45
Less: Allowance far impairmens (C) - - - - - - .
Total Net (A-C} 447,61 - 5,280.70 - 5,259.70 590,14 6,327.45
As at Mureh 31, 2019 At Jair valoe
AL Amartised cost Th b OCI Dcrs'f'lm'lfd al Subiotal At cust (fellow Tutal
roag N air value _ bl o iFat
[4)] (;, Through P&L (3} through Profit 5= {2+3+h subsidiaries) (6) (N={l+5+8)
or loss {4)
Equity instruments - 6.58 . 658 300 44 59672
Prelerence Shares . .27 17.17 3727
Securily receipts [Reler beiow note 33 B845.69 . 8456 84509
Linits of AIF . - 290.68 - 2510 68 290,68
Units of venture Fand . - 91.65 - 4163 . 9165
TOTAL - Gross {A) - - L27L.87 - 127087 390.14 LE02,0]
(i) Invesintents vutside Indes . - .
(i) [nvestment in ndia - - i,271.87 - 1,271 87 50014 1,56201
Tutul (B) - . F271.87 - 1.271.87 00,14 186201
Less: Allowunce for imparmen: (C1 - - - - .
Total Net (A-C) - - E271.87 - 1.271.87 90,14 1.562.01
As ot April 01, 2018 Ad fadr value
At Amurtised cost Th 0 Oc B‘:i?’"ml“d ut Subtetal At cost (Tellow Totul
rough ) air vatue = y . -
! P& 5= 24354 sushsidizries) (6 T1= {14546
h B Through Pé&d. (3) through Trofit t subsidiaries) t6) =t )
or loss (4)
Equity mstruments - 3463 - ol AE I ER) 3T
Prefercive Shares - . 2568 . 25w 1569
Securily Teceipls - 3,692.00 3692100 369200
Untats of AIF 22367 - w7 22167
Units ol venture fund 82.37 . B 7 8237
FOTAL - Gross (A) - . 4027.36 - S027.50 290.14 461730
1) [nvestments ouside India . - By R B 9014
) Investment in India - - 4.027 36 - 4027 36 - 4027 36
Totsl {E) - - 4027.36 - 402730 SHL14 J4.617.50
Less: Allow ance Tor mmpamiient (Cy - - -
Total Net {A-C} - - 402736 - 4,027.36 S90.14 4,655

Nutes
1) Piease refer nowe 13 8 & 130 Invesment deiails for lunther de
2) Please reler aoe 37 - Fair value measurement Tor valuabion methodolugy

3) Duning e year eaded March 31, 2020 and March 31 2014, the Company ha soid inanond asseis aggrepating o Ry 4850.90 nullions snes ol prossnns & lossesy and By N (et of pravisions
dr Tossest respectively 1 LATIOUY dvset TECHMMRICHONS COMpany usts © ARC Trasts 1 and B acipnted securnity recapls [SR) fram ARU Trusts annmtmg 0 R 2677 37 milkons The Board
approsed commuttee approved such sale ol inancial asseis to ARC Truss ind AS 1% Fimanuiad Instruments, presenbed under secnon 133 of the Companes w2013, neguires substanual
risks and rewards 1o be transterted for e purpose of de-recognton ol such lnancal assets from the Company™s financial statements Edelwesss Fnanaal Servces Limted tEFRSL). holdiag
company. and Edehwens Rurad and Corparitie Services Lonled (ERCST 3 a tellow subsahian. on March 310 2020 have guaranteed signlicant iks and assumed sigmificant sewards w res pect al

an agpregate value ol financial assels of R T68E 31 ellons sald o ARC Toasts As o resuli shese inancial assets are de-recopmyzed @ Company b sl saemients Fandier, as the nsks and

rewands canunuey i ERCSL and EFSL L these conttimue te he aceounted as finsngal aoets m e consehidated finanetal stemenis of the Group and the respe- ine consequaent expected credit lose
cral statemients of EFSL or EROSL
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Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited

Notes to the Tinancial statemoents For the year ended March 31, 2020

tCurreney: Indian rupees in miltion}

14

Other Gnancial assels

Margin placed with broker frefer note 9.4
Acerted inferest on margin
Advanves recoverable in cash or in kind or for value 1o be seceived

. Current {ax assets {net}

Advanee incorne taxes {Net of provision for tax )

. Deferred fax assets (net)

Deferred $ax assels / (Liabilities)
Leans{ Security Receints
Pravision for expected credit foss

Receivables
Pravision for expected credit foss

Investments and other financial instruments
Long term capital loss

Emplovee henefil obligations
Disallowances under section 438 of the Income Tux Act, 196)

FEatr valuation of emplovee stock opiions

Borrowings
Adjustment of elfective inrerest rate an borrowings

Properiv. pinnt and equipment and intangibles
Difference between book and tax depreciation

Investmienis and other financial insirmments
Unreatised (gain) / loss an derivative transactions (net)
Unreatised (gain) / loss on investments inet)

Others

Asal
Mazrch 31, 2021

Asat
March 3E, 2019

Asal
April 01, 24018

50092 666.34 1933
1823 1.78
1525 -
534.40 668.12 14.33
156,43 15712 146.82
156.63 147.32 146.82
234,74 168.31 30374
18,55
2158 2139 17.39
| 87 321 082
8.54
(.03 66,83 64.69
(0.28) 0.3y 1007)
39.80 (21.66) 525
{54 97) (125,49 [EEIREY]
4215
261.1% 114,22 286,497
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Edclweiss Finvest Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended AMarch 31, 2020

(Curreacy : Indian rupees in million)

As at Asal As at
March 31, 2020 Narch 31, 2019 April 01, 2018
18.  Other non-financial assets
(Unsecured considered good, unless stuted otherwise)
[nput tax credil 74.67 100.20 55.69
Capitel Advances 70.00 - -
Prepaid expenses 0.01 .50 (L350
Vendor Advances 1.77 .85 270
Advances lo employees 0.01 G0l Q.04
146,46 101.56 58.90
19. Trade Payables
Payable to:
Trade payables to non-related parties 36.85 B4.44 45.60
(includes sundry creditors, provision for expenses,customer payables
and net payable for seltiement to clearing house )
Trade payables to refated parties 189.60 239.45 29988
226,45 323.89 345.54

19.A  Details of dues to micro and small enterprises
Trade Payables includes Rs.Nil (31 March,19 : Rs,Nil & 31 March 2018 : Rs.Nil ) payable to “Suppliers™ registered under the Micro, Small
and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2000. No interest has been paid / is payable by the Company during the year 1o “Suppliers™
registered under this act. The sforementioned is based on the responses received by the Compuny Lo its inguiries with suppliers with regard to
applicability under the said Act.

20.  Debt securities
At amortised cost
(Refer note 20.A and 20.8)

Secured
Non-convertible redeemable debentures

Privately piaced . 3.487.74 347551
Benchmark linked debentures 1013876 15.798.30 12,373.73
Unsecured
Nan-convertible redeemable debentures
Privately placed - - .
Benchmark linked debentures 30214 2.989.72 2,121.52
13,160.17 22,275.76 17,970.76
Debt Securities in India 1316017 22.275.76 £7,970.76
Debrt Securitics outside India . . B

E3,E60.17 22.375.7% 17,970.76




Edehweiss Finvest Private Limited
Nntes to the financial statements for Uie year ended March 3t, 2020

(Curreney Indian ripees in antlion)

20 Debt securitics {eontinued
20,4 Detabls of debl secueities ¢

Secwred non-convertible redeemable debentures

Privately placed:

Privazely placed debenteres are seeurcd by charge on inymovable property and flosting charge on reecivables from financing business, sccuritics
held for trading.

Benchmark linked debentures

Benehmark linked debentures are secured by way of u pari passe mortgage and charge over the mortgage premises. a charge on the reecivables
from finuncing business und securitics held for trading and corporaie guarantee from the ultimate holding campiny

In cuse of benchmark linked debentures, the interest rute is linked to the performance of the underlying indices and is fluctuating in nature.

Certain benchmark linked debentures have a clause for an carly redemption event which is automaticully riggered en the achievement of pre
determined benchmark index level (s),

20.B M aturity profile and rate of interest of debt sccurities are set out below:

Secured Benchnark Linked Debentures Unsecured Benchoark Livked Debentures

) Amaunt outstanding as at Anmwount outstanding as at
Matuority Month

March 31,2020 Mareh 31, 2019 March 31,2018 March 31,2020 March 31,2019 March 31,2018

Apr-2018 - - 91.00 - - -
May-2018 - - 563.30 - - -
Jun-2018 - - 264.00 . - -
Fui-2018 - - 549.00 - - -
Aug-2018 - - 2.334.30 - - 200.00
Sep-2018 - - 403.30 - - 1500
Oet-2018 i - 1.098.00 - - -
Nov-2018 - B 2850 - - -
Dee-2018 - - 335.00 - - -
Jan-2019 - - 140.20 - - -
¥eb-2014 - - 4150 - - -
Mar-2019 - . 331.00 - -
Apr-2009 - 95 60 147.10 - -
May-2019 - 65250 658.10 - -
Jun-261Y - 103.00 118.00 - . -
Jul-2009 - 700 298.00 - - -
Aug-201Y - 22130 230.10 - 1)K 100
Sep-201% - 72470 184,90 - 43 10.00
Oer2019 - 346030 497.00 - - -
Nov-201% - 000 36,00 - - -
Jan-2020 - 177490 180.50 - - -
Fed-2020 - 11950 132.00 - -
Mar-2020 - 780 199.10 - sa.0t S0
Apr-2020 - - . - - -
May-2020 119.00 o 119.00 - - -
Jun-2026 544,40 54140 54640 - -

Jul- 2020 112450 [RER] $46.50 - - -
Aug-2020 108.00 108 00 108.00 38000 WG GO 3R0.00
Sep-2020 33530 32550 32550 10.00 Hu 1000
0er-2020 45,30 4530 57.50 3250 3250 3256
Nov-2020 - - - 10.00 oo 10006
Dec-2020 1000 140 12.00 2000 2000 Hoe
Jan-2021 - 10.00 - - -
Mar-2021 10,00 - - - -
Jul-2021 A04.3G 434490 94.50 - . -
Sep-2021 88740 87400 21250 - - -
Oct-2021 - - - 28004 28000

Dee-2021 1250 1250 - B . -
Jan-2022 27.50 3730 15.00 28.56 2850 28 50
Feb-2022 68940 T R0 63030 e 10 on Hieo
Mar-2022 1,143.00 LI4300 j00 - - -
Apr-1022 £5.00 - - -

May-2022 27150 7150 100 -

Jun-2022 2348.460 PARES ) - C -

Aug-2022 47.9¢ $790 - .

Sep-2022 105 FLO0 - -

Dec-2022 250




Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited
Notes o the financinl sttentessts for the year ended Mareh 31, 2020

(Cumreney: Indim rapees w million)

20.B Maturity prolile and eate of idecest of debt secerities ire set oul helows

Secured Beneclinzick Linked Bebenturey Unsecured Benclimark Linked Bebentures

Ankiunt outstanding as at Amount vutstanding as at
Alaturity Manth ! s 1

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 March 31,2018 March 31, 2020 Murch 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Dee-2023 T.50 - - . - -
Jan-2024 33.50 - -
Ieh-2024 470 - - . -
Mar-2024 30060 300.00 300.00 - - -
Jun-2027 17000 170.00 §70.00 - - -
Jan-2027 - - - 40,00 2000 000
Jan-2028 - - - 1.524.00 1925480 1.235.00
374140 14.902.50 11.558.10 273500 230500 205100
Assoctated sceruals < 1,397.36 §Y35.50 815.63 28641 184.73 70.52
Fotal £0,138.76 15,798.30 1237373 3021441 2989.72 2,12552

20.C  Maturily profile and rate of interest of debt securitics are set aut helow:

Secured non covertible debentures
Maturity Month Anxiint autstanding as at

March 31, 2020 March 31,2019 March 35,2018

Rate nfinterest ©.10% pa. 9. 10% pru, 9.30% pa.
Apr-HNG - 3.500.00 3.500.00
- 3.500.00 3.500.00
Assiwcated acerazly * - (12.26) {24.49)
Tatal - 348774 34?558

* Assovinted accruals inchude interest acerued & effective interest rale amorsation Interest accrued but not due i payable on next interest payment date
for respective 1$1Ns




Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited
Notes to the [Inancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

(Curreney: Indian rupees i million)

Asal Asal Asat
March 31, 2020 WMarch 31, 2019 April 01, 2018
21. Borrowings other than Debt Sccurities
Ar amortised cosr
Secured
Term loan from bank 219.36 33478 424,63
(First Pari Passu charge on the current assets of the Company which
includes trade and other receivables. loans and cash and cish
equivalents with Letter of Comfort)
(Refer note 21.A)
Unsecured
Inter corporate loan from others - 12,480 12.21
{Repayable on demand. camry interest 31 March 2019 - 5.5% pa.,
March 3. 2018 - 5.5% p.a)
Loan and advances from related parties 132.75 - 1.761.96
[Repayable on demand. carry interest - 12.25% pa. {31 March
2019 - 10% p.a. & 31 March 2018 - 9% p.a)]
352.11 337.18 8,198.50
Borrowings ia India 352,14 3718 8.198.80
Borrowings cutside India - . -
35211 337.18 8,198.30

2L.A  Details of Borrowings ather than Debt Securities

Loan from banks - Amount eutstanding as at
Maturity Month £

Marceh 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Rate of interest 1100 pa. 9.T0% pa. 8.55% p.a.
Jun-2018 - 2500
Sep-2018 - - 25.00
Dee-2018 - . 25.00
Mar-2019 - - 25.00
Jun-201% - 2500 2500
Sep-2019 - 2545} 2500
Dec-2019 - 2500 25,00
Mar-2020 - 500 235,00
Jun-2020 25,00 25400 25,00
Sep-2020 25.00 25.00 25.00
Dec-2024} B 2500 25.00
Mar-2021 15.00 2500 25.00
Jur-202) 25.0¢ 25400 25.00
Sep-2021 25.00 25.00 25.00
Dec-2021 25.04 25.00 25.00
Jun-2022 25.00 25.00 25.00
Mar-2022 25,00 25.00 25.00
225.00 325,00 425,00
Associted aceruals # {5.64) (0.22) (L37)
Taotal 215.36 324.7% 424.63

* Associted accruals include interest acerved & effective interest rale amortisation. Inierest accrzed but not due is pavable on nest interest payment




Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited
Notes to the linancial statements for the year ended Marceh 31, 2020

(Currency Indian rupees in muillion}
As al As ot Asat
March 31,2020 March 31, 2019 April 01, 2018

22, Subordinated Liabilities
At eanortised cost
(Refer note 22.4)

Unsecured
Subordinated debentures
Privately placed redeemable non-convertible debentures 161.09 161.17 161.26
161.09 161.17 161.26
Subordiated liabilities in India [61.09 161.17 [61.26
Subordiated liabilities outside India - - .
161.09 161.17 161.26

22.A Maturity prefile and rate of interest of subordinated liabilities are set out below:

Unsccured subordinated liabilities - Interest Rate 11.00 % p.a.

Amounlt eutstending as at
Maturity Month

March 31, 202¢ March 31, 2019 March 31, 2118

Jul-2025 150.00 150.00 150.00

150.00 150.00 150.00)

Add: interest acerued” 11,09 HAK 11,26
Total 161.09 161.17 161,26

* Tnterest accrued bul not due is payable on next interest payment dale.

23, Other financiat liabilities

Accrued salaries and benefits 043 20.05 16 54
Book overdrafi - 269 -
0.45 22.74 16.54

24.  Current tax labilities (net)

Provision for axation {(Net of advance tax) 163.23 77.40 066.43

163.23 77.40 66.45

25. Provisions

Provision for employee benefits

Gratuity {Refer pote 37.4) 6.55 12.66 2.1
Compensated leave absences 087 224 0n.2s
7.42 14.90 2.36

26. Other non-financial labilities

Stawtory liabilities® 13.45 36,94 ’ 18.17

Advances from costomers 26.74

Orthers 287 313 (14
43.06 42,07 18.65

* Includes withholding laxes, profession wax and aother statitony dues pavables




Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited

Naotes 1o the financial statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2024

(Currency: Indian nipees in million)

27.

27.A

27.8B

21.C

As ai March 31, 2020

As at March 31, 2019

Asat April 01,2018

No of shares  Amount No of shares  Amount No of shares  Amount

Equity share capital
Authorised :
Equity Shares of Rs.10 euch 3.50.00.000 330.00 3.50,00.000 350.00 3.50:00.000 350.00
Preference Shares of Rs. [0 each - - - -

3,50,00,000 350.60 3,50,00,000 350,00 3,541,010, (K0 350,60
Issued, Subscribed and Paid wp:
Equity Shares of Rs,10 each 3.33.23.875 33326 3.33.23.875 33320 33325875 333,26

3.33,25,873 333.26 3,33,25.875 333.26 3,33,25,875 333.26

Reconciliation of number of shares
As at March 31, 2029

As at March 31, 2019

As at April 01, 2018

No ol shares  Amount No ol shares  Amount No ol shares  Amount
Qurstanding at the bepinning of the year 3.33.25.875 33326 3.33.23.875 333.26 2805998 28.06
Shares issued during the year - - - - 3.05.19.877 305.20
Outstanding at the end of the year 3,33,25,875 333.26 3,33,25875 333.26 3,33,25.875 333.26

Notes:

During the finuncial year 2087-18 the Company has issued 8,279,275 fully paid-up cyuity shares of Rs.10 cach al & premium of Rs 168.35 each
upgregating to Rs. 1.476.61 million 10 Edelweiss Financial Services Limited as part of consideration for acquisition of fending & wnvestment business of

Edeiweiss Finance & Invesments Limited

During the financial year 201718, the Company has issued 22,240,602 fuily puid-up equity shares of Rs. 10 each ul par aggrezating o Ra, 22241

million for conversion of preference shares in o equity.

Terms/rights attached to equity shares :

The Company Das oaly one class of equitly shares having a par value of Rs, 104~ Each holder of equity shares 45 entitled w one vote per share held.

I the event of Hquidation of the Company, the equity sharchelders will be entitled 1o receive the remaining assets of the Company. after distribution of
ali preferential amounts, if any, in proportion 1 the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Shares held by holdingfultimate holding company andfor their subsidiaricsfassocintes

As at March 31, 2020

No ol shares % holding

As at March 31, 2019

No of shares % holding

As al April 01, 2018

No of shares % holding

Ultimale Holding company

Edebweiss Finunctal Serviees Limited 56.06.761 28.83% 82,79.375 2484 829295 MBA%
Holding company

ECap Equities Limited 2.24.59720 67.39% 22459720 67.39% 22059720 6R.39%
Fellow subsidiary company

Edelweiss Securities Limited 1259394 3.78% 1259399 3785 1239390 378%

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

(Formety known as Edelweiss Commaditics . 13.27.486 I987% 13.27.486 3985

Services Limited)

3,33,25875  100.00% 3,33,25.875  100.00%% 33325875 10000 %




Edelweiss Finvest Private Limiled

Neotes to the financial statements Tor dle year ended March 31, 2020

{Currency: Indian rupees in million)

27.D Details of shares held by sharehalders helding more than 3% of the aggregate shares in the Company

As at March 31, 2020
No of shares

% holding

As at March 31, 2019
No of shares

%o _holding

Asat April (1, 2058
No of shares % holding,

ECap Equities Limited 2,24,59,720 67.39% 2.24,59.720 67.39% 22459720 067.39%
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 96,06,761 28.83% 8279275 2484% 82.79.275 24.84%
3,20,66,48] 96225 307,385 92.24% 30738995 92.24%

27.E There are no shares reserved (or issue under oplions and contracis / commitments for the sale of shares / disinvesiment.

27.F

28.

a)

i

<)

The company has not issued any shares for consideration other than cash

Reconciliation of number of shares
0.01% Coempulsorily convertible non- cumulative preference shares - Series A

As at March 31, 2020

As at March 31, 2019

Asat April 01, 2018

Quistanding at the beginning of the year - -
Less: Shares cancelled on account of demerger " -

No of shares Amount No of shares  Amount No ol shares  Amount
- - 3.33.700 3.3
- - 3.33.700 3.34

Less: Shares converted into cguity shares - -

Qutstanding at the end of the year - -

0.01 % Compulsorily convertibie non- cumulative prefercnce shares - Series B

As al March 31, 2020

As al March 31, 2019

Asat April 0F 2018

Qurstanding ar the bepinning of the year - -
Less: Shares converted into equity shares - -

No of shares Amouni No of shares Amouni No of shares  Amount
- - 11345363 1:3.45
- - 1.£3.45.363 1£3.43

Outstanding at the end of the year - -

0.01 %¢ Cempulsorily convertible non- cumutlative preference shares - Series C

As al March 31, 2020

As at March 31, 2019

Asat April 01,2018

Quurstanding at the beginning of the year - .

No of shares  Amounl No of shares  Amount Noof shares  Amounlt
- - 1.05.61.539 105.62
- - 1.05.61.539 105.62

Less: Shares converted into equity shares - .

Ouistanding at the end of the year - -

2D\




Edclweiss Finvest Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended March 3, 2020

(Currency: Indian repees in million)

29. Other Equity

Asatl Asal As at

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 April 01, 2018

a. Capital redemption reserve 84.34 84.34 84.34

b. Securities premium reserve 3.743.44 3.915.88 35355

. Statutory reserve 1,229.58 114260 801.00

d. Retzined earnings 5.034.73 4.873.17 3.516.52

e. Deemed capital contribution - Equity 2.25 225 2,25
f. Deemed Distribution - Preference Capital (Holder) (52.97) -

10,041.37 10,018.24 8.156.66

29.A Nature and purpose of Reserves
a. Capital redemption reserve
The reserve can be utilised only for hmited purposes such as issuance of bonus shares in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act.
2013.

b. Sccurities premium reserve
Securilies premium reserve is used 10 record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be wilised only for limited purposes such as

issuance of bonus shares in accordunce with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

c. Statutory reserve
Reserve created under 45-1C(1) in The Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 a sum not less than twenty per cent of its net profit every year as
disclosed in the profit and loss account and before ary dividend is declared. During the current yeur the company bas reinstated its retained
earnings as al April 01, 2018 and accordingly incremental transfer amounting 1o Rs. 37.31 mitlion has been considered in statutory resenve
transfer made in the current year . (Refer Note 54)

d. Retained carnings
Retained camings comprises of the Company’s undistributed eanings afier taxes

e, Deemed capital contribution - Equity
Deemed capital contriblion relates to share options granted 1o eligible employees of the Company by the parent company under 115 employes

share option plaa.

f. PBeemed Distribution - Preference Capital (Holder)
Represent discount on fair value of investment at the date of the investment in group company’s preference shares as required under Ind AS
102. This amount will get amortise in Statement of profil and loss over maturity of such preference share.




Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited

Notes to the fimancial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2020

(Currency: Indian rupees in mitlion)

2.8 Movement in other equity Asal Asal Asat
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 April 01, 2018
a. Capital redemplion reserve
Opening balance 84.34 84.34 84.34
Add : Additions during the year - - .
84.34 84.34 84.34
b, Securities premium reserve
Opening balance 398588 3.752.55 3714344
Add ; Premium Received on issue of Debentures - 163.33 9.11
Less: Peemium trunsler 10 financial liability (172.44) - -
3,743.44 3.915.88 3,752.55
¢. Statutory reserve
Opening halance £.142.60 801.00 534.56
Add : Reserve crealed for the year 86.98 34160 26644
1,229.58 1,142.60 $01.00
d. Retained earnings
Opening balance {Refer Note 54) 4.873.17 3.516.52 222642
Add: Profis for the year 248.38 1.708.02 1.250.36
[ess/Add : Other comprehensive income 0.16 (1.23) 0.05
[ess/Add : Income tax cftect of ESQPs - (8.3 6.13
Add/Less : Deemed distribution during the year - - 300.00
Amounlt available for appropriation 5.121.71 5214.77 3.782.96
Appropriations:
Transfer to statutory reserve (86.9%) (341.60 1260.44)
(86.98) (341.60) 1266.44)
5,034.73 4,873.17 3,516.52
e.  Deemed capital contribution - Equily
Opening balance 2,25 225 G.68
Add : ESOPs charged during the year - 1.57
2.25 225 2.25
. Deemed Distribution - Preference Capital (Holder)
Opening balance -
Add : Additions during the year {52.97) -
Less: Issue of equity shares - -
(52.97%) - -
g, Share capital pending allotment on account of nterger
Opening balance - 82.79
Add: Consideration payable on rerger - -
Less: Isue of equity shares - - (82,79}
Total = (a+b+e+d+e++g) 10,041.37 10,018.24 8.156.66




Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited
Noies to the financial stalements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2020

(Currency: Indian rupzes in million)

30. Interest Income

on {inancial assets measured at amortised cost
Enterest on loans
Interest on fixed deposits with banks
Interest incone on preference shares
Other interest Income
On margin with brokers

on linancial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss
Interest income on debt securities

31. Dividend Income

Dividend on securities held for wrading
Dividend on investment

32. Fee income

Processing and other Tees

33. Net gain on fair value changes {including treasury income)

Net pain/ (loss) on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
On investments and securities held for trading
On derivatives finarcial instrument
On secarity receipts (Refer Note in 36B)

Fair value changes
Realised
Unrealised

34, Other iacome

Miscellaneous income
Interest on Income Tax Refund

N\

For the year ended

March 31, 2020

For the year ended
March 31, 2619

1.314.96 4,054.55
5.15 5.71
0.58 -

£23.48 1.86
644,53 40.49

2,088.70 4,702.61

0.7 17011

- 0.07
0.71 170.18
41.27 119.3%
41.27 114.39
{8111 {161.301
843.06 47.24
33323 379.66
1,095.17 265.60
2,122.26 97.87
(1.627.09) 167.73

109517 265.60
0.48 .01
346 -
3.94 0.01
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36A

Il

tn the finaocial statements for the year ended Murch 31, 2026
ney : Indian rapees in miilio) Far the year enided Fur the year ended
March 31, 2020 March JE 209
Finance costs
On flinancial liabilities measured at amortised cast
Imterest on borrewings other than debt securities 103.98 45640
Interest on debt securities 152142 1.633.63
Interest on subardinated Habilities 16.51 16.45
Other finunce cost and bank charges i3.87 157 40
1,772,78 2,264.01
Net loss on derecognition of financial instrunients *
On linaneial instruments measured at amartised cost
Less on Sale 10 ARC 013 -
Impairment on financial instruments®
On financial instruments measured at amaortised cost
Expected credit loss
Loans (including undrawn commitments} 451.02 120,52
Trade receivables 49.29 10.93)
500,31 119,59

* During the year ended March 31, 2020, the Compuny completed its re-assessinent of probability of defauft, Joss given default in respect of
expasures [o certain sectors thal were experiencing operational challenges, Credit and market risks For certain counter panties incredsed
significanily relative ta such risks at initial recagnition. resulting in recognition of higher amount of expected credit losses and gainfloss on fair
vitue changes for the year ended March 31, 2020. Management judgement for expected eredit losses and gain/loss on fair values changes his been
accentuated on account of factors caused by the COVID-1Y pandemic. Aceordingly. the Company has recorded for the year ended March 31,
2020 50 amount of Rs.532.0% millions towards expected credit Josses, wnlte-offs, loss on sake 10 ARC Trusts and net loss on fair value changes

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2014
Employee benefits expense

Sularies and wages {refer note 38.0) £9.20 103.24
Contribution to provident and olher funds 549 616
Expense an Empleyee Stock Option Scheme (ESOP) trefor note belon in +.65
Staff welfore expenses 1.51 07
49.41 112,76

Notes:

Edelwerss Fimancial Services Limited ("EFSL™) the holding Company has granted an ESOP optien o acquire equity shares of EFS]. thar would
vest in g graded manner w Company s employees. Based on group pohiey 7 arrungement, EFSL has charged the fair value of <uch stock options.
Company has accepted such cross charge and recognised the same under the cmplayee cost.

37.A Employee Benefits

a) Defined contribution plan - Frovident funds
In accordance with Employees’ Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952, employees of the Company ane entilled o receive
benelits uader the provident fund, a dedined contribution plan, 10 which, koth the employee and the Company contribute monthly at 2 determined
rate. These centributions ate made 1o a recognized provident fund adimistered by Regional Provident Furd Commussioner The emplovees
cuntribute 125 of their basie salary and the Company contribules an equal amount.

The Company recognised Rs. 399 million (Presious year - Re. 356 milbon) for provident fund and other contnbutions i the Stalement ot profn and
luss,

b) Defined benefit plan - Gratuity

In accordance with the Payment of Grituity Act. 1972, the Compamy provides for grateity, a non-contributory defined benelit amugement
providirg fump-sum gratity benefis expressed in tenms of fial monthly safany and year of service, covering all employees The plan provides o
fump sn pazinent 1o vested employees 28 retirement ur termination v§ empleyment in accordance with the rules laid dosvn in the Payment of
Gratwity Act, 1972

The most recent actaanal viluation of the present value of the delined benefit oblipation for gratuity were castied out as at March 31 220 The
present alie of the defined benetn obligations and the relaied current sersice cost and past service cosl, were measured usig the Projected Unst
Credit Method

Buased on the actuaral saluation obtained in this respeet. the Tollowing Lable sets out the status of the gratuity plan and the amonnts recognised
the Companys financial statements as at balance sheet dae
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Notes Lo the financial sttements Tor the yeae ended March 31, 20240

(Cugreney: Indian rupees in million)

A

Employee Benelits (continued)
By Defined beaefit phin - Grataity

i) Movement in defined benefit Bability

The following table shows a reconeifistion from the opening balnces to the cloving balances for defined beacfit liability and s compuonenls

Defined benefit ohligation

Particnlars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Opening Balance 12.66 201
Current service cost 1.03 1.95
Interest cost 0414 (L64
14.15 4.70
Other comprehensive Income
Remeasurement loss {gain):
Acruariaf loss (guin} arising {rom:
Expericnee 0.5%) 1.67
Financial assumptions 0.38 .32
(.21} 1.8%
Others
Transfer In/ (Out) (6.42) a.69
Benefits paid 0.97 {0.62)
Clesing Balance .55 12.66

i} Components of defined bencfit plae cost:

For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Recognised in Statement of prafit or loss
Current service cost .05 195
Inzcrest cost 0.44 0.64
Total 149 2.59
Recognised in elher comprehensive income
Remeasuremnent of net defined benefit Linbifity/(asset) 0.2 {89
Towl 0.21) 1.89
iii} Reeonciliation of Fair Valuc of Plan Assels
Asal Asat
Murch 31, 2028 March 31,2019
Fuir Valye of Plan Assets at st of the year - -
Contributions by Employver 097 0.62
Benefits Paid 1097 10.61}
Interest Encome on Plan Asscts - -
Re-measurements - -
Return on plan assets exeluding smoont included in net inteeest on the -
Effeet of acquisitzon/ (divestiture} -
Changes in foreign exchange mes - -
Fuir Value of Plan Assets at end of the year
Actual Returit on Plan Assets
Expected Employer Cortributions for the coming vear
iv) Net Liability/ (Assed) recognised in the Balance Sheet
Asat Asal
March 31, 2020 Marceh 31, 209
Present Vatue of DBD 455 12.66
Fair Value of Plan Assets - -
Erubility/ (Asset} recognrised in the Balunce Sheet 633 12 66
Funded Sttus {Surphus/(Deficit) 1635 112 66}
OFf which, Shos wrm Liabilits 038 L6l
Experience Adjusiment on Plar Liabilities: (Gain¥l_oss 0 39 L 67
v) Percentage Break-down of Totaf Plan Assets
Asat As at
March 3L, 2020 March 31, 2019
Eqquity instruments 0% 5%
Dbt insiruments 0% (%
Real estate 0% %
Derivatives i %
Investment Funds with Insurimee Company 0% L
Of which, Unit Linked ¥ %
Qich, Tradittonal/ Now-Unit Linked 0% 1%
Dycked secunties 0% R
deby [ %
b egvakenis % 5354
000% 0%




viy Movermnent in Other Compreliensive Income

Asad Asat
March 31, HEY March 31,2014
Balance 3t start of year (Loss) Gain HRD Nil
Re-measurements on DBO
. Actuariad (Loss)y Gain from changes in demographic assumptions - -
b. Actuarial {Loss) Gain from changes in finuncial assumptions t0.38) 0.22)
<. Actuarial (Loss) Gain frons expericnee over the past year 0359 (1.67)
Re-measurernents on Plan Assets
Return on Pian asscts, cxcluding smount included in net interest on the niet defined benefit abitity/ (asset)
Bilance at end of vear (Loss¥ Gain (1.68) {1.89)
viiy Movement in Surplus/ (Deficit)
As at Asat
Mareh 31,2030 March 35, 2019
Surplus/ (Deficit) at start of yeur {12.66) (2.11)
Net {Acquisition Divestiture - .
Net Transfer (In) Out 642 (6.69)
Movemient duing she your . .
Current Service Cost (1035 (1.55)
Fast Service Cost - -
Net Interest on net DBO (044 (0.64}
Changes in Forcign Exchange Rates . .
Re-measurcments ~ {Losses¥ Gains 0.21 (1.8}
Contributions/ Benefits 097 0.62
Surptus/ (Defici) at end of year 16.35) t12.600
Actuarial assumptions:
The following were the pnneipal acanal assumplions at 1he ceporing daic. Asat Asat
Particulars March 31,2020 March 31, 2034
Discount Rate 3.80% 7.00%
Salary Growth Rate 700% 7.00%
Withdrawa¥Auition Rute (bascd on categorics) 136 - 23% 13% - 25%
Interest Rate on Net DBO (% pa) TO0% 1.30%
Mortulity Rate 1ALM 201 2-14 TALM 2012-14
Expected weighted aversge emaiming working fives of employees 4 5

Netes:

«) The discount raie are based on the benchmark yiclds avardabie on Government Bonds ar the valuation date with tevmy matching that of the Habrilines
B2} The estimates of future salary increases lakes into accotat the nflation, senioriry, promation and other refevant factors

] Assumptions regurding future martalite experience are set in accordance with the statistics published by the Life Inyerance Corporation of tedia,

Sensitivity analysis:
Reasonubly possible changes a1 the reporting date to one of the relevant actuanal assumptions, holding other assumptions constant would have affecied the
defined benefit obligation by the amounts shawn below

As at March 31, 2020 As at Mareh 31, 2014
Inciease Decrease Increase Decrease
Sulary Growth Rate (+/- 1% 0.38 (0.3%) a8l 074
Discount Rate (+/- %) 035 .39 [N 0.82
Withdrmwi Rie (+4- 1) 0.02) 0402 HOa) 0.05

The ubove sensitivity anulysis have been cateulated 10 show the movement in defined benefit obligation in iselution and assuming there are no other changes in
market conditions at the reposting date. In practice, generitly it does not accus When we change one varable. it affects w others In caleulanng the sensiuvity,
project unit eredit method at the ond of the reporting period has been applicd

Company provides for accumuluted compensated absences as 4t the bakinee sheet date using projected unit credil methad based on actuanal vuluanon. The
encashment on sepanation is paid on busic sulary
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Nates tu the finuncil statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2020

{Currency: Indian mpees 1o melhon)

Ja.

A

8.

£ #0)

Fur the year ended For the year ended
Murch 31, 2020 Murch 31, 2014
Other expenses
Advertsersent and busifiess promotion 3 0.05
Auditors' remuneration (refer mate 48.A44 1.78 [
Comnussion and brokerage 56.78 31.33
Commaunicaliva 0.67 1.43
Diseclors sitting lees 678 051
Insurance (] -
[egal and professional lees 24743 .38
Printing and stationery 0.0% ool
Ratex and taxes 7168 ERC
Rent frefer nofe 38.C and 38.034 17.56 §.93
Repaizs and maintenance {refer nete 38.0) or? 01l
Electricily charges (refer note 38.0) - 0.8%
Coniputer soliware 093 023
Corporate social responsibilily -Danation (refer nate 38 8) . 500
Clearing & custodian charges 883 0.16
Rating suppon lecs {refer neie 38.0) 094 Gl
Mermbership and subseziption .02 0.03
Office expenses (refer note 380} 0.67 5330
ROC Expenses 0.02 097
Seminar & Conference Q02 -
Goods & Service tax expenses 7913 2773
Stamp duty 20.68 -5.80
Teavelling and canveyance 0.92 .97
Miscellaneous expenses 0.80 1.50
Others 007 .
Housekeeping and security charges (refer nure 38.04 926 203
516.62 212,48
Auditars' remunerition:
As u Auditor
Audit fees 0Ys 1.36
Limiled Review 073 D.3g
Reimbursement al expenses 0.08 003
178 1.78
Details of CSR Expenditure:
Gross Arwunt required 1o be spent by the Company as per the provisions of Section 135 of i 2394
Cempanics Acl 20E3.
Amount Spent (paid in cash}
1) Construction/ acquisition uf any assets -
it} On purpose uther thas (i) above 500
Amoual Spent (yet Lo be paid i cushy
i) Canstruction! acquisition ol any assels
) On purpose ather than (1) above
- 5.00
Amount paid o EdeiGive Foundadon . 500
frefer note 43 related party disclusure)
Paid 1o extermal parties - .
. 500

The Company 15 & whally onned subsidiary of Edlelweiss Financial Services Linnted. Edelweiss group s constious of 1 Corporawe Social Responsibality and, haid
accordingly established a CSR arm, "EdelGive Foundatian™ in the year 2008, As an amount of Rs 308 L4 miilion (Previaus year: Rs. 225,19 milhon) trepresenting
more than 25 of the consolated profit of the group) was spemt by the proup as & whole lowards CSR act ities dutsng the year ended 31 March 2020, the Company
has net incurned the prescribed CSR expendsture on a standalone hasis during the year ended 3 Mareh 2020

Operating leases
The Company has not wken premises on operanng lease. Rental expenses for the year ended 31 March 2020 aggregated 1o Rs 17.56 amlhon (Previous year Rs 893
millioa} which kas been inclused under the head nther expenses — Reat in the Statemeat ol prafit and oas are allacanons from the fellow subsidiasies

Cost sharing

Edelweiss Bnancial Services Linited. being the holding company along with Tellow subswdiaries meues expenditure like Group medickam, insumnee, enl. electnedy
charges etc wiich ix for the common benelit of imell and ik cernin subsidsares, fellaw subsidianes ncluding the Company This cost so expended 15 rexmhursesd by
the Company on the bass ol number of employees. me speat by employees of other compamwes. acteal wentificanions ewe. On the same Bnes, emplasees cosi
expended (il any) hy the Company lor the benefit of leliow subsidianes iy recovered by the Company  Accordingly, and as wleralied by (he management, the

Sependiture heads in note 37 and 38 include reimbursements pad and are net of reimhomsements recened based nn the management’s best estimate are R< 73.24
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(Currency: Indian rupees in miliion}

39, Income Tax

Component of income tax expenses

Currenl tax
Adjustment in respect of current income tax of prior years
Deferred rax relating to temporary differences

Total tax charge {or the year (refer note 39.A)

Current tax
Deferred tax (refer rote 39.8B)

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
276.76 680.12
{60,359} (9.95)

(147.04) 164.87

69.33 835.04

216.37 670.17

(147.04) 164.87

39.A The income tax expenses for the year ¢an be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:

Profit / (Loss) before taxes
Statutory Income Tax rate

Tax charge af siatutory rale
Adjustment in respect of current income tax of prior year

Tax effect of :

Income [/ ftems not subject to tax or chargeable at lower tax rate

Dividend Income

Non deductible expenses
Others

[mpact of tax rate changes (between Lwo aceounting periods)
Others
Profit from EARC Trusts (taxed on realisation}

Others

Current Tax Expenses Reported in Statement of Profit and Loss

Effective Income Tax Rate

Fer the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
3177 2,543.06
25.168% 34945
79.96 BH8.65
(60.39) (9.95)

(0.18) (59.47
4.41 k.16
26,23 6.90
0.08 Q.75
19.22
69.33 835.04
21.82% 32.84%
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Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

(Currency: Indian rupees in million)

40. Earnings per Share

41,

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit atiributable 1o equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the year,

Diluted carnings per share is caleulated by dividing the profit astributable 10 equity sharcholders of the Company with the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the period adjusted for assumed conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

For the year ended  Fur the year ended

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Net profit aiributable to equity holders of the Company (A) 248,38 1,708.02
Weighted average number of shares
- Number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 3,33,25875 3,33,25,875
~ Number of equity shares issued during the year - -
Totat number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year 3,33,25,875 3,33,25,875
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year (B) 3,33.25,875 3,33,25,875
(based on the date of issue of shares)
Weighted average number of diluted equity shares outstanding during 3,33.25.875 3,33.25.875
the year (C)
Adjusted net profit for diluted EP§ (m 248.38 1,708.02
Basic carnings per share (in rupees) (A7B) 745 51.25
Diluted carnings per share (in rupees) {DIC) 7.45 51.25

The basic and diluted earnings per share are the same as there are no difutive/ polentiat equity shares issued or oulstanding as al March 31, 2020 &
March 31, 209,

Contingent Liability & Commitment:

Contingent Liability

In the ordinary course of business, the Company faces claims and assertions by various partics. The Company assesses such claims and assertions and
monitors the legat environment on an ongoing basis, with the assistance of external legal counsc), wherever necessary. The Company records a lability
for any claims where a potential loss is probuble and capable of being estimated and disclases such matters in its financéal statements. if material. For
potential losses that are considered possible, but not probable, the Company provides disclosure in the financial statements but does not record a
liability in its accounts unless the loss becomes probable,

The Company believes that the outcome of these proceedings will not have a materially adverse effect on the Company's financial posilion and resulls
of operations.

Details of contingent liahility

Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 April 01, 2018

Taxation matters of assessment year AY 2014-15 & AY 2015-16 in

respect of which appeal is pending with tax authorities 114.88 46.38 46.38

‘Fhe Company has received demand notices from tax authorities on necount of disallowance of expenditure for carning exempt income under Seciion
14A of Income Tax Act 1961 read with Rule 8D of the Income Tax Rules, 1962, The company has filed appeal/s and is defending its position. Based
on the favaurable outcome in Appeilate proceedings in the past and as advised by the tax advisors, company is reasonably certain about sustaining its
position in the pending cases, hence the possibility of outflow of resources embodying cconomic benefits on this ground is remote”

Commitment

To meet the financial nceds of customers, the Company enters iato various irrevocable commitments, which primarily consist of undrawn commitment

to fend.

Details of commitment

Particulars As at Asai As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 April 01, 2018
a) Estimated amount of contracts remaining 1o be executed on eapital
account (net of advances) and not provided for _ 0.06 1.96
b) Undrawn commiited credit lines 1,639.89 8,823.44 828.12
d commitments on investments in AIF Venture Fund 3,345.13 233.87 2649.84




Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited
Notes 1o the Beancial statesests for the sear ended March 31, 2020

tCurreney: Inchan rupees in milliony

42, Segment repurting

Primary Segment (Business sepment}

The Company *s business is organised und management reviews the performance based on the business segments as mentivned below

Segment Activitics covered

Cupitzl based business income from invesiments und dividend inceme
Treasury busiicss incomne from Treasury operativns

Finuncing business Wholesale and retaif financing

Income for cach segnient has been specifically identificd. Expenditure. assets and liabilities are cither specifically identificd with individual segments or huve been
atlocated 10 scgments on a sysicmatic basis. Buscd en such ailocations. segment diselosures relating 1o revenue. results, wssets and liabilities have been prepared.

Secondnry Scgment
Since the husiness operutions of the Company are primarily concentrated in Indis, the Compuny s considered o operate only in the domestic segment and
therefore there is no reponable geographic segmaent,

Segment information as at and for {he year ended March 31, 2020

Particulars Em“,“cmg C:ipllz.l.] based Tm,‘sur"' Unallocated Total
business b 58 I
Revenue from operations
Interest mwsntic 1.314.96 573 16501 - 2088.70
Other vperting meone 41.27 13299 962.8% 3.94 1,141.09
Total revenue from operations 1.354.23 138.72 1,730.%0 394 3,229.79
Interest expeiises 73836 15.5% 94234 16.55 L¥72L78
Olliet expenses 783.41 2645 329.82 0.02 1.139.40
Tatat expensesy 152147 101.98 1,272,160 16.57 291218
Segment profit huss) belomne taxation (165.24) 36,74 45874 {12.63} 317.61
Dircine fav expenses - - -69.33 (69.33)
Peofit fur the year (165.24) 36,74 454.74 -51.96 248,28
Onher compreliensive meome 0.07 0.01 a9 - .16
Total comprekensive income (165.17) 36.73 458.82 {81.96) 248.44
Segment assels 12.602.60 295277 8,751 %6 41782 1. 72508
Segment liahifitie 5.882.3% 0771 TSO7.0 163.33 1.£,350.44
Capital expenditure 0.59 0.06 075 : 1.40
Depreciation and amortisation 119 Q.12 1.A2 2.83
Signifivant pon-cash items (nel 1497 2% 931 {R023 19 {1.320.13)
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42, Segpurent reporitng (coutitued)

Segment information as at and for the year ended March 31, 2019

Particulars Fum_ncmg Cnp:t;'ll Lased Tru;_lsur_v Unallacated Taotal
business business Business
Revenue leom vperations
Tnlerest meome 4.654.55 371 42,35 - 4,702.61
Other operiing mcotae 119,39 67.02 368.76 (.01 555.18
Total revenue fram operalions 4,773.94 72.73 4111t 0.0t 5,257.79
Inlerest expenses 205563 31.32 171.02 .04 2,264.01
Other expenses 415.56 4.50 25.65 5.06 45072
Total expenses 247119 35.82 202.67 504 2,714.73
Segnent profiv(loss) before taxation 2,302.75 3691 208.44 (5.03) 2.543.06
Incortie tax expenses - ~ - {835.01) {835.04)
Profil for the yeur 230275 3691 844 {840,07) 1,708.02
Other compreliensing income (E12) (000 (0. 10} (0.00) (1.23)
Tota) comprehensive income 3,301,63 36.49 208,34 (840.07) 1,706.7%
Scgment asscts 29.284.74 945.53 3.337.28 161.55 34,029.10
Segmacnt tabiities 2149779 316.02 1.786.3% 71.44 23,677.60
Capital expenditure 738 on 064 0.00 B.13
Diepreciation and amortisation 0.81 a0l 0.07 0.00 .89
Signiticant non-cash items {nct) 1129.26) (0.83) 166.90 (0,00} 37.49
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43, Clunge in labilities arising from financing acitivies

As at April 01,

Changes in Fuir

As al March 31,

o 7 e STy n v P et
Particubars 2019 Cash Flows value Others (ntet) 2020
Debt securitics 22.275.76 (9.765.03) . 649,44 13.160.17
Borrowings other than debt sccuritics 337.18 (2135 - 1508 3521t
Subordinated labilities 161.17 .00 - {0.08) 161.09
22,774.11 (9,786.38) - 685.64 13.673.37
SR As at April 01, b Flee Changges in Fair e el As at March 31,
Particulars 2018 Cash Flows value Others (nel) 2019
Debt sceuritics 17.970.76 4,246,227 - 5871 2227576
Borrowings other than debit sccuritics 8.198.80 (7.861.77) - 0.15 337.18
Subordinated linbilities 161,26 - (0.09 I6E.17
26,330.82 (3,615.50) - 38.7¢ 22,774.11

*+ Includes the cffect of accrued but not paid interest on borrowing, secuntics premium on issuc of debt sccuntics
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4

o

d Trisclsure of Related Party Transactions prrsiant le INEAS 24 " Related Party Tramsactions”

List of pebided partes and eebitunship:

Nanes of 1elated panies by whom control s execrenad Exlelweiss Fpsacial Services Limited ¢UTumaie Holding compiny)
Hotding Company ECap Equities Lamncd

Fellow sgbsidurus winh whom the tronsactons have tken plaee Ldelwetss Adternative Assel Advisors Lanned
1N CHITCHR OF previos Year

Eikelwiss Global Wealih Management Limatcd

Blelweiss Finznee & Tavestments Limited

Flelwiss Rural & Carporaic Scrvices Lamned

Ealelweiss Custodral Serviees Limited

Eudclweiss Broking Limited

Edelweiss Toko Life Insuraice Company Limied

Eaernny Business Cemre Limited (Merped with Eeap Byaues Limited)

Edelweiss Seeurities Limited

ECL Finance Limited

Edel Finance Company Limind

Clelweiss Asset Management Limied

Gileleap Sccurities Limied

Cilelweiss Fance and Investments Lunnod

CdeiGive Faondauon

Edclweiss Asscl Reconstructon Company Limied

Fadelwerss Real] Finanee Limited

Eiletwerss Private Equity Tech fund

Gadelweiss Value and Growth Fuad

Koy Manuzement Personacl (KAPY Amn Dhaw an Managing Dirgctor & CEO
Sheewl Gandh (il 3t June 2019) Chig! Financiat Oficer
Ruesh § Jain {from 27 December 2019 ull 4 May 2021 Chet Financial Officer
Bhavin N Maeha (bl 2 Augus 2018y Manager
Niket Joshy ifrom 2 May 2018 4ll 10 July 2019 Comgaany Secrelary
Nishant Salvi 1 Froun 6 January 2020 1o 31 March 2020 Company Secretary
Ashish Kehar ifrom 23 May 2018) Nof-executive Dwecton
Puj D'sorzz Non-erocutive Dregior
Sunjay Shab (til} 14th fanuary 20200 independent Directar
Bhara Biksh Independent Director

Kunnusagaran Chmmah (ull 22th December 20193 Inciependant Disector




Dischsure of Rebated Magty Fransactions pussuiant (¢ IND AS 23 "Redned ety Fraasactions™

Sc.No. Nuature ol Pransaction Rebated Party Name W19-2& 2841K-1%,
Transactions wilh related pafias:
(1} Caphaiaccount transactions
1 Invesunenis i preference shares ¢ Face Valuer al Edelwetss Rural & Corporate Services Limtied 0,00
) Investments. i units of Calelwaiss Value 2l Growth Fund 443 3507
Galelweiss Private Eouity Tech fund .00 -
41h Currenl decount iransactivng
1 Short term loans wken from (Refer note 1 below) Edelwyiss Rural & Corporate Serviees Limned 13 850.08 1530806
2 Shart wrm loans repaid to (Refer mite | helow) Edciweiss Rurgl & Corpurate Services Limned 12.770.1% 2322952
1 Short erm loans given o {Refer note § below Cudelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 95,350,158 3T706.13
Ede! Finance Company Limited 1,190.08 1.200.00
ECap BEquities Limited 1.000,00 -
4 Short icrm founs given repand by (Refer nofe | helow ) Edetwerss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 79,895,085 L502.04
Edcl Finance Company Limiited 1.190.00 -
ECap Fuities Limied 490.00 -
5 Iasge vl - benchmark linked debeatures Edelwerss Rural & Corporate Services Linted - 4040
<] Redemption - benchmark finked debenigees ECap Eymtes Limted 29713 5. 78262
fdefweiss Rural & Corporae Services Linuted - 68,94
7 Redempron - Debentires ty Edelwerss Asset Recomstruction Company Limned AE146 -
¥ Buxhack - benchmark hnked debentures ECap Bguities Lintited 417913 95.24
Y Interca expense on losns tihen from Edclwerss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 742 £48.94
i Inieresy expease on benchmark, lked debentures Feap Egoies Lamted 208 604,22
ECL Finanee Limited L.67
Fdelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Laimued 0.1 13.94
111 Other Fioanaal Cow Pad 1o Ldelwens Asset Management Limated 5183
Laleiweiss Broking Limited 194 .

uclweins Alerautive Assel Advisers Liued

$7.02




Diekosure of Rebised Party Trunstetions persganl to INE AS 24 "Relled Pagis Frvassctons™

Sr.No.  Nature of Transaclion Rekited 1Mty Name 201y-20 iR-1y
Current account Iransaclions
i1 Tnterest exgrense s subordmins debt Baletvwts Toki Lt isucance Company Lioned 16,38 1645
£ Interest income ecenesd franm seonrnties Laletw oo Retanl Frrance Linutad 6,3% pAR 1S
Edetw e Asset Reconstniction Company Limted 579.13 .
i3 laterest incomie on shar term foan from ECap Bymnes Limnad 12.11 -
Edeloap Securitics Limated
Edelwens Rutsl & Cerporate Services Limited 7843 YT
Edel Fmanee Company Lindted 14246 .08
fafelvens Finance & Invextments Lamted . 2155
15 Iatereat income an magn from Edebwers Seeurmes Temuted 338 #Ak
Fdebwens Custndid Services Laimited £26.09 184
10 Enerpriss Service charges pard w Edelwens Financiat Services Limited 0.03 -
Cdelwens Rural & Corporale Services Limied .41 3333
17 \anagement fee pad 10 LEdelwens Alernative Asset Advisors Limited - 3432
13 Legal and profesmenat focs paid o Ldelwens Raral é Corporate Servioes Limited 0.41 -
9 Astanges fee pand 1o ECL Fivance Limaed - 1736
Cilelwens Retail Finance Lanuted 106,568
a Loan portfolm wranslerred ECL Fance Limned 17.780,12 -
21 Cost reimbursement receved lram (nes) Fdetwens Finaneral Scryices Linited 1.67 083
Cdetwens Rural & Corporate Services Limated 1.08 n.2y
E£CL Finance Lanned - ni2
Edebnci Broking Lmuted 0.19 .35
Edehvers Securties Limdted ER2) -
Bdehwera Cusiodtal Services Limnted 0.m -
ECap Layraties Lanited 0.02 [}
Eddehveas Asset Manapement Limited 13.35 .02
Eelelwens Alternuine Axset Advisors Limited pLE ] 0.6}
22 Loty lavesutent Parchased from ECap Laptsties Linnted 205.20
Ealebwens Rural & Corporate Seivices Lined SES
n Oither fnvesimem Purchased from ECap Squnies Limited 165340
Galeleup Securies Limued {1 A
k2 Shated Premeses Cast pasd (nen Tlelwwiss Seouritres Limned 115
ECap Tyuities Lamited 638
Edehwers Ruml & Corporate Serviees Limited 338
Fdebwens Anset Manegement Limited 0.0%
Edvbwers Broking Lineted 5.4y
Eadehwens Custodial Services Lamined oay -
ECT Finanee Limated .53
25 Ranng Support fecs pod Fdelwers Financud Services Limted 1y 1Y
20 Corparae Sirial Respomabilry Edellins e Faundaton - X
3 Corporale Guarsiice suppart fee pand 1o Citedwens Frnaneal Services Lamated 575 12152
ey Commipason and Sob-brokerage pad 1o Cifelwens rates Linnsed §7.47 -
Fafetwens Global Wealth Managenwnt Lunned 35 6.1
® Busnes: Promioton Expeises padd o Edcbwers Fironcial Servies Limined 12,38
hil Levan purchased Trom Edviwera Rural & Corporate Services Limied 1039.40
ECap Egquitses Lumned 4704.70
M Sevumny Recopts Purchased from Eeelwens Asset Recomirzeson Company Liniiad 326814
3 Seeuniy Reseipt Sald w Eilelwens Asset Roconstruction Company Linsnad 403850

ECL Fmance Limited

[ EARI




Disclsure uf Rebuted Parey Frammactiony pursaamt o 150 A8 2 "Hibaed Parne Tramacnivn ™

Se.hu. Noture of Fransisction Rekited 'ty Name 201920 2015-19
Curgent agcount IFansactions (Cuntisued)

12 Claaomyg Charges pand o Eddelnn: Covaodiad Sers wes Limited .73 0n.14

Iz ESOP Cou Calelw o Financial Serviees Lamited + 4.65
Falelncias Seeupmies Limated 214 -
ECL Finunee Luted 005 .

u Remuneration o Key Menagement Personnel (Refer note 23 Amit Dhaw an H52 10,40
Sheveal Gandn L7? 7.53
Bhiw i N - .56

15 Directors St lees Sanjiay Shah .32 0.2%
Bharat Bakadn 0.31 a.24
Kunnasugarie Chinnih &14 a0.02

(5 Secondary markel toapsactions

1 Sale of sevunnes sS1ock in imdey w ECL Pmange Limited 66386 359235
Edelwens Mnaove & Invesunenys Limied 4,54 102,41
Fdelwens Rural & Corporate Services Limted 12849 102803
Edetwers Retarl Finatve Limited 234M
Frap Tgumies Limied 648.45

2 Purchase of seeuniies (Siock i tradet from ECL Fnance Limited 1.363.93
Eitp Gepnties Lamitnd vid49 -
Edehwerss Faance & Investmeats Limated L35 .
Cdelwenns Rurat & Corporate Services Limnied 355288 L ENI2E
Gadelwens Alcrnative Asset Advisors Dimied 093 -

5 Sule of Lozn w Fdelwersy Asset Revonstrucon Company Linted

3 Anvornt pad 10 Broker for trading m cash sepiens Fdchwerss Secunties Lnuted 2,946 SHRED

i Amount zecen ad Trom Broker for trading m cash sepment Lalelwens Sevoriies Lomted 10,137.27 70722

5 Margm placed with broker Ldelwens Cuvodes Sercices Linted 37,158,143 69043
Cdciwens Sevarmes Luned 637.10 153
Cdelwens Brokmp Limial A37.60 -

] Marpin woailudeaw o 1Fom broker Ldulwens Cusodial Services Limited 3747804 i
Ldelwens Seeurities Limued 593.79 1.9
Ldelwens Brokmg Limeed 1,537.67

7 Sirle al Sovuriies 100t 10 ECL Pioanee Limited §.833.34

? Purchise of Propeny Plagt & Cynpment ECL Mty Limited .60 0.ty
Edubwens Alernzuve Asset Advisers Limped 0.04 -
Edehwers Broking Lamned 4913 .58
Eddelw i Custodial Services Banaited LR} L]
Esebwarss Finaneal Services Linited o0 LX)
Eadehwverss Global Wezlih Management Limuied +00 -
Edvbweiss Rural & Curporate Serviees Limined #.03
Falelwens Seventies Linated DK

N Sake of Propuirs Pl & Cagwpiment ECL Finance Limned 000
Celelweiss Broking Lmneed Doz
Edelwens Rural & Carpanste Services Linnted n.0a

vy Bakipces with rebied pasiis

H Investmens m equay shares Gulelwens Retat Finanee Limpted 26460 26490
Edelners Anset Revonstiyenon Compuny Linwed 2604

1 Invesimcnts HE uiis of Fdelnews Privawe Bguits Tech fund Hindl
Eddelwers Valoe znd Crow th Fund THL27

? Subordinae ded weacd o Edebwens Tokio Lafe Insurance Comprany Linated LE0.00 13n.4am

el Benchmark Debemures held by Laap Exputes Diniied .00 195,55
ECL Fimapee Linned 56.00 -
Edelwerss Rugs) & Corporate Services Linned .04 -

5 Dubeawre and homds s Seeumes el o Tradme o dae setuer of Bdelwers Rewnl Finance Lanned 34.51
Ldelwens Assel Recanstruction Compiny bamncd 124802

& Investment i Prefercnce Shares di Fae valoe held of Ldciwees Rural & Corporate $ervves Linvted H161

7 Ineress aczrned an enchmark bnked debeneed heldd by Lcap Bauities Linmted 5.20 178
|4 ance Laimited L16
Fadelwens Rard & Corporate Services Lined LI
Edelwers Tk Life fnseeanee Compuny Lanhted 1.0y 1117




Disclosure of Refated Purty Transaciiom parvaant fa 45D A8 4 VRelaied Party Trionacdon”

SrNo.  Nadure of Fransaction Rebsted 1'arty Nime 2019.20 1Y,

akinces with related parties {comioedl

9 Shart terie lnans Gikeo from Bdelwens Rurl & Corparate Servsees Laimied 96.58
It Shart term Jaaas given Edelwenss Rural & Corporate Services Limnted 051 203,60
Edel Finsnee Company Limited 1,200.00 [.200.00
[ap Bapusties Limied 1.605.90 -
1 Trede Payahles 1a Edehwesss Financial Servaoes Linned 739 E4Z490
Fdehwess Secaritees Limned 2746 0.25
FCL Finance Limited 11947 240
Fcap Byuities Limited .63 223
Edelweiss Alternpuve Asset Advizors Linuted 1870 3592
Edelwens Global Wealth Management Limued 812 £.04
Ldelweiss Rura! & Corporate Services Limsted 074 EIEL)
Edelweis Asset Management Lamited 6,20 0,09
LEdelweiss Broking Limited 10,53 (LEX
Crernnty Busmess Cenwre Limited 1 Merged with Ecap Equities Limited? 0,00 ¢an
12 Other Fayable Cdelweis Sevurines Linmed o) -
Edelwens Asset Manzgement Lited 0.04 .
ECL Finance Dimned ny -
Fdelwenss Brokang bimated 257 -
Fdelwens Alernative Asact Advisers Limaed 134 -
Edelwenss Finance and Investents Linted 0.7 .
i3 Trade Revereables (rom ECL Furaner Lamned - 1734
Cdetwens Sccunmes Limated . L1
Edetw s Costodiad Seevices Dimated - L.78
Bdelwens Rural & Corpacate Services Limned 302 0.06
Cefeiwerss Finunce & Tovesimenis Limited 238 222
Erdehwenss Finsncal Services Limited - 0.13
LCap Gyvures Linnted - 0.02
Eddclwerss Adternativie Aaset Advisors Lonned - G023
Gatelwens Broking Limied 4.32 4.03
Eddehwerss Rural & Corpurate Services Lannied 0,02 .
14 interes receivableAccried -Oraup Company Edelwenss Rural & Corparate Services Lamited A .57
Fde| Finznee Company Limited 559 D98
ECap Buyutiies Limuted 625 .
Cabelwens ries Dined 0.63 -
Fdelwens Custodial Serviees Lamied 17.60 -
15 Intere payahle - Acerued -Group compuny Falelw et Rural & Corporate Setvices Lomted 3n.E? -
1 Interess recevable - seeried on debentires and bonds of Edelwets Retal Finance Limned L33 -
Gilelwens Asset Revoastucuon Company Limited 097 -
17 Margn placed w ik braker Cdeln s Cuntdsad Services Lanned 347.65 £67.67
Cdclwenss Securtues Lamned 153.28 -
18 Corporat Guursmiee taken frem Edelwers Fmancial Services Limited 2.748.30 5,030.10
Nomws
1 As pasrt al fund hased s 1S, anergoup Company loans and advtices soiiv fies orderitien ane generally 1 the namwre of rovolving demond Toans Such loans and
advinees, voluminous i pature, are carricd on at arm's kogth andd i the ordmary counse of Bosmess. Pursuant 1o {pd AS 24 = Related Pany Disclosures snavimism
amount of Toans pven and repand are discloscd ahove 25 in the Liew ol the managenent t provides meaningful reflecuon of such relaed pargy wansactons in e linsacal
stalements Interest meome and expenses on such Joans and ads anves dre disclosed un the basss of full amounts of such loans and advances given and repaut
.

Iatormatien relahing b remuneration pad 1o key mansgenal pecaon mentoned abuove exclides proviston made for grawity, keave encashnent and presison made (or
botus which are provudod for grovp of employees oo an ovesll basis These are ncteded on cash basis. Remunerition ws KMP's shall bz wihin the bant o prosonboed by
the Campanes at

3 Previous yeurs figures hune been recastrestited where neeesean
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(Currency: Indian rupees in million)

46. Capital Management

The primary abjectives of the Company's capital management policy are w ensure that the Company complics witl externally imposed capital
requirements from its regultators and maintains strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and to maximise
sharcholder value.

The Pillars of its policy are as follows:

a) Maintain diversity of sources of financing and spreading the maturity acrass ienure buckets in order to minimize liquidity risk,

b) Maintain investment grade ratings for all its liability issuances domestically and internationatly by ensuring that the financial strength of the
bakance sheets is preserved.

€} Manage financial market risks arising from Interest rate, equity prices and minimise the impact of market volatility on earnings.
d) Leverage optimally in order to maximise shareholder returns while maintaining strength and flexibility of batance sheet.

This framework is adjusted based on underlying macro-economic factors affecting business environment, financial market conditions and
interest rates environment

Regulatory capital

The below regulatory capital is computed in accordance with Master Direction DNBR. PD. 008/03.10,119/2016-17 dated September |, 2016
issued by Reserve Bank of India.

Asat Asat Asat

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 Aprii 01, 2018
Capital Funds

Net owned funds (Tier I capital) 3,568.11 8,744.79 4,327.38

Tier IT capital 150.57 589.86 670.56
Total capital funds 3,718.68 9,334.65 4,997.94
‘Fotal risk weighted assets/ exposures £8,735.99 32,828.41 18,150.75
% of capital funds to risk weighted assets/fexposures:

Tier 1 capital 19.05% 26.64% 23.84%

Tier II capital 0.80% 1.80% 3.69%

Total capital Funds 19.85% 28.44% 27.53%

No changes have been made to the objectives, policies and processes from the previous years. However, they are under constant review by the
Board.




Edchveiss Finvest Private Limi{cd

Notes to the financial statements lor the year ended March 31, 2020

(Currency: Indisn mupees in million)

47.  Fair Value measurement:

474 Valuation Principles
Fair value is the price that would be received 1o sell an asset or paid Lo ransler  habilily in an orderly transaction in the principal tor most advantageous)
markel al the measurement date under current market condilions (i.e., an exil price), regardless of whether that price is directly ebservable or estunated
using a valuation 1echnique. Ins vrder 1 show how fair values have been derived. financtal instruments are classified based on a hierarchy of valuation
cchniques:

Level [ - valuation technigue using quoted market price: linancial instruments with quoted prices for identical irstruments in active markets that company
can access al the measurement date.

Level 2 - valuation technigue using observable inputs: Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant, are derived from directly or
indircctly abservable market daia availuble over the eatire period of the insrument's life,

Level 3 - valuation technigue with significant unobservable inputs: Those thi inctude one or more unohservable input thal is significant 1o Lhe
measurement as whole.

Reler note 4.10 for more details on [air value hierarchy
478 Valuation poverance Framework

The Company's fair value methodology and the governance aver ity models includes a number of controls and other procedures to ensure appropriate
safeguards are in phice to ensure its gualily and adequacy. All new product initiatives (including their valuation methodologies) are subject to approvals by
varieus Munctions of the Company including the risk and finance funcuons

‘Where fair vaives are determined by relerence (o externally quated prices or shservable pricing inputs to models, independent price delermination or
validation is used . For inactive markets. Company sources allemnative market information. with greater weight given to information that is considered 1o
be more relevant and refiable.

The responsibility of ongoing measurement resides with the business and product hme divisions. However Finance depariment 1 also responsible for
establishing procedures governing valuation and ensuring fair values are in comphance with accounting standards

47.C  The followinp table shows an analysis of Apancial instruments recorded at faie value by level of the fair value bierarchy

As at March 31,2020 Level | Level 2 Level 3 Totat

Assets measured 1 fair valse ona recurring basis

Derivative financial instrumenis

Exchange-traded derivatives 63.50 12547 18903

Embedded derivatives in benchmark-tinked debentures - - 1.391 a6 1.3491 .66
Totaf derivative Tnanctal instroments - A 63.56 12547 1.391.66 1.580.6%
Financiud assets held for trading

Other debt s¢cunties - 491066 4910 66

Equity instrements 159.92 3942
‘Fotut financial assets keld for trading - B 159.92 3.910.66 - 3.070.58
Investments

tquity shares - - 2400 204 t0

Preference shates - - 3649 3689

Sccuniy receipts - - 10345 2703 45

Units of AIF - 206364 T16364

Unirs of vemure fund - - a2 e 02

Warrants - - 4250 5250
Tutal investments measured at fair vidue - - - 528970 5.289 70
Total (A+E+C} 32348 5,036.13 6.631.36 11,9097
Liabilitivs nwasored ut fair value o recurring buasis
Derivative fpancial instrunients

Exchange-traded denvatines 3986 10041 . 159 87

Embedded denvatives in benehmark-hnked debentures - 0905 19 415

39.80 1401 10905 208,92




Edclweiss Finvest Private Limited

Notes to the linancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(Currency: Indian rupees in miflion)

47.  Fair Value measurement: {Continued)

As at March 31,2019 Lovef 1 Lovel 2 Levet 3 Total

Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Derivative financial insirumments

Exchange-traded derivatives 41369 - - 413.69
Embedded derivatives in benchmark-linked debentures - B 327350 32750
Total derivative financial insiruments « A 41369 - 32750 Tl 9
Financial ussets held for teading
Qther debr securities - 1,142 87 “ £.142.87
Equiry insiruments . - - -
Mutual fund units - - - -
Total financial assets held for trading - 3 - 114287 - 114287
Investnients
Equity shates - - 6.58 6.58
Preference shares - 3727 vy
Sceurity receipls - - 845.69 Ba5 64
Uniws of AIF . - 29068 29068
Units of ventare fund - - 9165 91.65
Total investments meastired at fair value - C - - 1.271.87 1.271.87
Total (A+B+C) 413.69 1,042.87 1.599.37 315593
Liabifities measured at Bair valie una recurring basis
Der ¢ finarcial instruments
Exchange-traded decivatives 257 - - 257
Embedded derivatives in benchmark-linked debentares - - 42248 4229
.57 - 122.4% 425,06
Asat April{l, 2018 ) Eevel | Level 2 Level 3 Tota]
Assels measured at fair value on 3 recurring basis
Derivative financial instruments
Dervative financial instruments 150 - - 190
Embedded derivatives in benghmark-linked debentures - - 28767 287 67
Foral derivative financial instrunents - A 150 - 28767 280.57
Financial assets wld fer trading
Oiher debt secunties . 1¢3.01 - [01.03
Equizy instruments 10000 - - L 00
Mutual fund umits 149873 - - LA9E 73
Total financial assets held for trading - B 1.508.73 101.01 - [.69% 74
Investments
Equity shares - - 363 REES
Preference shares - 1509 . 2569
Sccurity receipls - - 369200 369200
Linits of AlF . - 12367 247
Units of venture fund - - 8237 8257
Total investments measured at fair vatue - C - - 403730 4027 36
Total (A+B+C) 1.600.63 10001 4.115.03 6.016.67
Eiabilities mvasured at fair value onu recurring busis
Perivative financial instruments
Denvative financial insteumcnts 2 - - 12
Embedded derivatives in benchmark-hinked debenures - . 21249 21233

11.12 . 21244 223.56




Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited

Notes 10 the finandial statensents for the year ended March 31, 2020
tCurrency: Indian rupees in million}
47, Fair Value measurement: (Confinteed)
[ Valuation technigues:
Dbt securities:
Fair vatue of debt secunities i denved based on ihe indicatice guotes of price and yields prevanlung i the maket as al the reporng date The Company has wsed guoted peree of nanapal

steek exchange wherever bonds ane traded octively 1o cases where debt secuaties ire nod aelivity traded. the Company has used CRISIL Corporate Bond Valuer medet for measunig
salue

Security receipls

The markel for these securities is am pchive. Therefore. the Company uses viduution techniques omeasure their fur wilugs. Since the secunsy reeenpts are less hyguid insirmemesns therefore
they are valued by discounted cash flaw models Expected cash Sow levels are estimated by using quantitative and qualiatinve measures regarding the ehavactenstics of the naderlying
assets including prepayment rates, default cutes and wther ecanemic deivers, Securitics receipls with ugnsficant unofservable viduation inpuls dre classified as Level 3

Eguity instruments, preference shares, warrants and vnits of mutvak lunds

The majonily of equity insirunients are actively traded on stock exchanges with ceadily avmlable sctive poces on a regular hasis. Such stuments are classified as Level 1 Unis held i
funds are measured based on their published net el value (NAV), taking into account redemptinn andfor other sesirictions. Suck instrumienls are also elassified as Level T Ungualed
equity instruments, preference shares and wamanis are inittally recognised 3t transaction price and re-measured a each reporiog dale ot valuation provided by extemal valuer 4 insirument
level. All ungueted insiruments are clussified ot Level 3

Units of ALF Fund and Venture Furd
Units held in AIF funds are measured hased on thesr published net asset value (NAV), tabong into account redemptaon andfor other restriclions. Such instruments ane classified ax Level 3

Embedded derivative:
An embedded derivaive is a component of a hybnd insteument that atss includes 3 non-derivanve host contract wuh the effect 1aai some of the cash Nows aof the cambined 1nsrument
vary in a way similir to a stand-alone ders ative

Company uses valuatinn models which calculale the present value of expected fiuture cash Nows, based upon "o T ples. Inputs to madels ane determined from
ohservable market (Indices) dala wherever possible meluding prices mvailable Tram exchanges. dealers. Brokers company elussify these embedded derivative as level 3 insnimentsy

Exchunge traded deriv

Exchange traded derivatlives includes indea/stiock epiiony. indeadsiock ftures, company tses exchange trded pnees to value these deavatve and elssafy these imstoument as lesel |

E. There have been no transfers between levels during the year ended Maceh 3, 2028 and March 31, 2009,
F. The Tollowing table shows a recenciliation of the opening batancys and the closing balances for Eair value measurements in Eovel 3 of the fair valoe hicearchy.
inancial yes Al 2 Seeurd oni i ‘eefurence
Finuncial year ended March 2020 ‘:L‘cu-nl_\ Uniits of ALF Lznits of . Equity 1 rfflrenc& Worrants Tatut
recelpts venture fund  istruments Shares
Invesiments - sl April 1, 2019 835.64 200 6% 9163 6.5% 27 27187
Purchase TO47 59 L780.05 256.97 15000 4.234.61
Sale / rederpnion [CRFREH] 24390 L1 - . {5.1L18.21)
Transfer imo level 3 . - - .
Transfer from: level 3 - - - - - -
Profit / Fair value change for lie year eecognised in profit or foss RIS AT 26y 2528 19 45) {0.25) (97 St (Y8573
Investmenty - at March 3, 2020 2703443 2.163.64 119,02 21410 3699 5250 5,284.70
Unrealised gain/ Lossy related 1o balances held ai the end of the year 157497) 35K T4 59131 160 (028 R 06 (T
nancixl ves A | Securi inits il Pre . . "
Financixl year ended March 20019 !wcu.nt_\ Unils of ALE Linits of i Equity [r}ferenct X ()lh‘&r Futat
receipds vendure fand  insiruments Shares Securitivs

Investments - at April |, 2018 369200 me? B2 A7 EXX) 2500 102738
Purchise 530221 U7 533418
Sale / redemplion {8.350 50 {B.EE)
Transfer into level 3 .
Transfer fram level 3 . . . . -
#rofit / Fair vitue change for the year recogmised in profit or logs 201 98 im Y2K 295 1158 25683
Ivestments - at Aarch 31, 2019 845.69 29068 9[.@ 4,58 37.27 - 1.271.87
Unreulised giun/boss) related 1o balances held an ihe end of the yeur 26 3856 21.66 A4 84 2733 373.54

The fuliowing dable shows a veconciliation of the npening balances and the closing, Balances for Fuir value messurersents ie Level 3 of the Tair vslue bicrarchy .

Embedded Opliony

Assels Liabilithes Net Balancy
Financiul year ended March 2020
ab April 1, 2019 32050 423,49 (1.99)
Issuances 11 58 212 (5.H)
Seltlenents 16013y 61 53 {121.64)
Changes wn fair vafue recogiised o profit o foss 1.657 45 167 84y 21254

Investments - a¢ March 31, 2020

Assels Liabiligies Net Balaner
Fimanelal vear ended March 2019
at April 1, 2018 287.67 21244 7523
tssuances 23 HIBYL 3513
Settlements Trus 4220 29.66
Changes in far vabue recagnised 1n pridit or loss 276 16} [EIRET {23501
Atacch 31, 2019 12750 42249

1.391.66

109.05

Embedded Optiuns

1.282.6¢

94.99)
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Edelweiss Finvest Privaie Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2020
(Curreney: Indian upees s nitlion)

47, Fair Value measurement: {(Coutinued)

H. Fair value of financial instruments not measured at fair value:
The table below is a comparison, by class, of the carrying amounts and Fair values of the Company's finuncial instruments that are not carried a1 fair
value in the financial statements. This table does not include the fair values of non-financial assets and non~linancial ltabilities.

As at March 31, 2020 Carrying Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial Assets

Loans 6,237.76 - - 9,054,14 0.054,14
[nvestmenis 1.037.75 . 590.14 44761 1.031.75
Toial Financial Assets 10,275.51 " 590.14 9,501.75 10,091.89

Financiat Liabilitics

Debt securities 13,168.17 - [$.938.88 - 10.938.88
Borrowings tother than debt securitics) 352.11 . 361.69 - 361.69
Subordinuted Liabilities 161.0% - 174.00 - 174.00
Total Finnocial Liabilities 13,673.37 . 11,474.57 - 11,474.57

OIff balance-sheet items

Undrawn comniitments 1.639.8% - - 658.81 658.81
Totak Off balance-sheet items 1,639.8¢ - - 638.81 658.81
As at March 31, 2019 Carrying Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial Asscts

Louns 24.560.55 - - 24.817.0%8 24.817.05
[nvestments 560.14 - 59014 - 560,34
Total Financial Assels 235,1530.69 - 590,14 24,817.05 25,4017.19

Financial Liabilitics

Debt securilics 2227576 . 18.867.53 - 18.867 .53
Borrowings {other than debt securiticy) 3378 - 342.34 - 34234
Subordinued Lizbifitics 161.§7 - 169 78 - 169.78
Total Financial Liabilities 22,774.11 - 19,379.65 . 19,379.63

OIf balance-sheet items
Undrawn commitments 882344 - - 3.700.92 370002

Total Off balance-sheet items 2.823 .44 - - 3,700.92 3.700.92




Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2020

(Currency: Indian rupees m nulhon

47.

Fair Value measurement: (Continued)

Asat April 01, 2018 Carrying Value Level ] Eevel2 Level 3 Tutal

Financial Assels

Eouns 27971743 - - I7.904.85 2796485
Investmcnts 580,14 - 390.14 - 590,14
Total Financial Assess 28,567.57 - 390.14 27,904.83 28.494,99

Financial Liabilitics

Debt securities 17.970.76 - 15,883.42 - 15.883.42
Borrowings tuther than debt seeurities) 8,198.80 - 8.321.57 - 8,321.57
Subordinated Liabilines 161.26 - 80306 - 180.36
‘Folal Financial Liabilities 26,330,82 - 24,385.35 - 24,385.35

Off batunce-sheet items
Undrawn commitments §28.12 - - 29349 29349

Tolaf OFF balance-sheet items 228.12 - - 293.49 293.49

. Valuation AMethodologics af Financial Insteuments no! measured at Fair value

Below are the methedoiogies and assumptions used to determing fair volues for the above fnancial instruments which are not reeosded and measured af fair value in
the Company’s financial statcments. These i vatues were caleulated for disclosure purposes only. The below methodologes and assumiptions relale only 0 the
instruments in the above tables and, as such, may diffcr from the wechnigues and assumptions cxplained in notes

Short Term Financial Assets and Liabilities

Carrying amounts of cash and cash cquivalents, bank balances other than cash and cash cquivalents, trude and other receables, wade payubles approximate the
fair value becuuse of their short-term natwre. Difference between carrying amounts and fair values of other fnanciuls assers and other Enanciul liabifitics is not
significant in cach of the years presented

Financial asscts at amartised cost
The fair values finuncial assels measured at amorfised cost are estimated using a discounted cush flow maodel based vn conractual cush flows using scludl or
estimated yiclds and discounting by yiclds incorporating the courterparties” credit nsk

Issued Deht
Fhe Tair valee of issued debr s estimmed by a discounted cosh flow modet

OIT balance-sheet

Estinuzed fuir values of off-balunce sheet positions in (orm of undrawn commitment are eslinuted using a discounted cash flow model based on contructual
comniiticd cusl: fows aficr upplying the credit coversion fuctor, using actual or estimated yields and discounting by vields mcorporating the counterpartivs” credit
risk




Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited
Naodes to the financial stutements for the year ended March 31, 2020
1Curneney: Indian supees i mlbon

44, Risk Management

A. Introduction and risk profile
Rusk is an inherent pars of Company s busimass avtnaties When the Company eatends a corporite of relail loae. huys o sells secunbies in market. or offers wther prodincty vr wisnes the
Company takes 0n swome degres of mk. The Compunys overtdl shycetive is to manzge s businesses, ard the avaciated ks,
g investors snd protets the safety and sonndness wf the Company

afances werang e etests of iy cisteicr

The Company believes thit effective risk mEN3ZCIMent reguires

13 Acc

ance of responsthilit won nd e

udeng denulic

nion af risk issues, by all individuals within the Compuay,

3y Qwnerdip of risk iden

Hian, ssensment, duta ad munagement within cach of the

o5 of business wnd Corporute, and
3 Firmwide stnucinres [or nisk gevermance

The Company strives oz coninuab improvement through efforts 1o enbance controls, vagoing employee oy and developnient and other meinutes

13. Risk Managentent Structure

We have o well-defined risk management poficy K for risk identification, assessment and control o effectively manage nsks sxsociated with the sarious busnes sctnibes The nak
function is monitared primarify by the business 2k group The Edebweiss Group has also establishied a Global Risk © thatis ibfe for ging 1he risk wring out sl vaions
husiness activities 1 & contral kevel

Our risk nrnagenient podicy ensuies that the margn reguirements are consenalive to he shlz to withstand market volatlily and scenurios of sharply declining poces As xreaall, we Toflow
conservative fending norms The Edeiweiss Group ceatralises the risk monitoring sysiems 1o monitor sur clenl’s eredit exposure which is in addition to the monitormg uedenaken by 1he
respective husinesses

The Company’s board of drecturs has pverall zosy ity for the and aversight of the Campany’s sk msnapement framework. The bourd hus esablished the Risk
Management Commitiee. which is responsible G developing and monitaring the Company’s 2isk managenient policies The Committee holds regular meetings and report 1 buard oo iy
aclivities

The aodit comahillee aversees hina mlanagemen monitoes compliance with the Company’s gisk pabies umd fures, and revse
frumiework m relation L the ks Taced by the Company. The audit commitee is assisted in s oversight roke by inkernal audie Internat sudit unde
eisk managenient controls and procedures, the resales of which are reported o the andit comminee.

5 the sdequacy ol the fsk many,
~ both regular and ad o re

C. Risk mitigation and risk culture

The Company's husiness p SR ol Jepend: ul i and o segreg of tesponsibibnes. Credit sppraial & credit contral processes, ceniralised vperanons uait,
independent audit unil for check pl with the p ihed policies und upproving loans gt rensaction fevel as well as our fisk Management processes and pohic

multiple checks snd verificitons Our key business procexses are regularly monitored by the head of oo bustness or operahions, Qur loar approval and slmi ures. collection

and enforcement p 4 are 4 i 1o deli and maaimtise ecoverics.

SEFAtion pro

Al all levels of the Company™s operabons, spectheadly 1allored risk repons are preparcd and distriboled 18 order 16 cnawre that adl busioess deviswons have acoess o eabensive . acvessary and
up-lo-dule infunmunm.

1t ix the Compauny™s policy that a monthiy brichng  poven o the Board of Directors und all other relevant members of the Company in the ulisatwn of mazket b, propagtisy snsestments
and liguiday, plus any other risk developrients

B is the Comgany's palics e ensure thiv o robust rish awareness i enthedded in its organisational risk culiore Employees are expected 1o lake owaenhip and be aveountuble for e tsks the
Company i~ exposed to The Compiay's ¢ raning and develog emphasises that emp are niade aware of the Company’s risk appeiite ind they are suppoeted 1 ther roles
and zaspomsibiiities v monitor and keep thar cxposure 1o risk within the Compuny's nisk appetile oty Complunce breaches and intereat audst Undings and smportant elemants of
ampleyees” unnuzl rings amd Femineratian resews

D. Types of Risks

Fhe Company's risks are generally categorized in the Tollowing risk types:

Nutes  [Risks Arising from Measurement. monitering and management of risk
1|Credit risk
Creedil risk is the risk of finuncad toss i a Arises principally from financing, Measured as the ammount that could be lost i o customer or
custonier or counterparny fails 1o meet an deating in Corporate Bonds. Envestments jcounterparty fuils to make repayments:
obligation under a contract in Muruat Fund, Equity, but also from
certain other products such ws Muntured using vanoeas internal risk management measares and
guarantees and derivatives within himits approved by individuals within o framework of

dekegated autherities: and

Managed through a robust nisk contral framework, which outhnes
clear and consistent pubicies., principles and goidance for nsk

nanagers
2|Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that we do not have Liguidity risk arises from mismatches in fMeasured using o range of metrics. including Asset Liabilit
sufficient finuncial the 1iming of cash fows imismatch. Debt Eguity Ratio
resaurces 10 mneed our ohhigations
s they Toil due or that we can only de se at an Arises when illiguid asset positions Regalur monitonng of funding levels 1o ensure 10 mreet the
eXcessive Cost cannot be funded at the expeeted teems Jrequirement for Business and mowrny of our Habildies
and when required
Maintain diverse seurces of Tunding aad hgud assets 16 Facititare
flexibility i meeting our bgmdity requirements of the Cempany
3ikiarket risk
Market risk 15 the rish that Exposure 1o market risk is Measured using sensitivitwes., detaled preture of potential gans
imovements in markel lactorssuch separsed Into two portfalios: trading  fand losses Tor a range of aurker movements and scenaros
us Interest rates. equity prices and [ndex priges,  [wmd non-rading,
will reduce our mcome of the vilue of vur Moritored using measures. meludmg the sensinany of net
portiolios INErest Income

Manayed wang risk hunits approved by the risk managemens
comimilicy
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48.00.1

Risk Management

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of [Tnancial foss 1o the Campany if 3 custemer or counterpany W a narcial instrament Inls w meet ks contrciuad ohligatans, and anses prnaipally from the
Company's Trade recervahles and Loans The Contpasts has adopied o policy of dealing with creditwonhy countemanies and obtains suflicien coftaten], where appropriste. as
meuns of mitgating the risk of I from defaults In case the loans are to be restructured. similar credil assessmenl process s followed hy the Company

The Company’s exposure o credit sk is influenced manly by the individual chareenstics of each customer, However, management also conxiders the faciors thai may inlluence
the credit risk of its customer buse, inchrding the default risk of the industry and country in which custorers operale.

The Company mznages and controly credit risk by setting mits on the amount of risk it is willing o accept for indwidual counterparies/Groups tSingle Bomrowang Limit/Group
Burmowing Lirmit) and lor industry concentrations, and by monitoring exposures in zelation to such hrus

Credit quality of a customet is assessed based on s eredil worthiness and hisworical dealings with the Company 2nd markez inelligence Ouistinding customer receivables are
regularly monitered. The credit quality review process aims to allow the Company 10 assess the potental loss as a result of the risks 10 which @ 15 exposed and ke comective

actians.

Derivative Gnancial Instrusments:

Credit risk arising from derivative financial instromenis is, al any time, limited 1o those with positive (air values, as recerded on the balance sheet. With gross-settled denvatives,
the Company Is also exposed (o a setlement nisk. being the risk that the Company honours i15 obligation. but the counterpany faily 1o deliver the counter value

Impairment A e
The Company applies the expected credit loss model lor recognising impaimient loss. The expected redit loss allowance 1s computed based an a provision matnx which wkes o
account historicat eredit loss experience and adjusted for Torward-looking infoermatian

The expected credit loss i 3 product of expesure al defzull, probability of default and loss given delash. The Company has devised an internal mexle? (o evaluate the probability of

defaalt and loss given delauls hased on the parameters set out in Ind AS. Accoerdingly, the loans are ¢la: d ilo vanous stages as follows

Internal rating prade Internak prading description Stages
Perfurming
High grade 0dpd snd 1w 30 dpd Stage 1
Standard prade 311090 dpd Stage 2
Nos-performing
Individually impaired 90+ dpd Stage 3

Credit Joss is the dilference between all comzactual cash [Tows that are due to an entity in accondance with the contract and all the cash fows that dwe entiy expects o recewve (te.,
ali cash shortfalls), discaunted at the ongima? EIR. Expected Credit Loss (ECL) computatton i~ ot doven by any single methodology, how ever methodology and approach used
reflect the lollowing'

1} An unbizsed and probabihity wesghted anuunt that evaluates a minge of possible outcomes

21 Reasonable and supportsble information that i< available withoul ondoe costand elfort at the reporting date abaut past events, cumrent coadibtons and lorecasts of future
economic conditions;

3) Time value ol moaey

Whike the ume valuz of money element 1s comently being lactored into ECL measurement while discounting cash Jows by the ENective Interest Rate (EIR), the objechve of
developing a macroeconomic model using rxopenous macroeconamic variables (MEVS) is 1o address the lirst lwo requinemients: This has been achieved by using the made) output
w0 adjust the PO risk companeot i order 1o make it forward looking and probability-weighted

Signifieant inerease in eredit sk {SICR

Company censiders a fisancial instrument defaulted, ciassified as Stage 3 (credut-impaired) for ECL caleulauons, in all cases when the bormoser becomes 90 days past due.
Classification af axsets form stage 1w stage 2 han been carried out hased on SICR crilerion. Accounts which are miore than 30 days past due hive been identilicd as accounts
where signilicant increase in credit fisk has been observed. These accounts have been classilicd ax Stage 2 assets. When such events vecur. the Company carelully considers
wiiether the event should resuit in treating the customer ag defaulted and therelore assessed as Stage 3 Yor ECL caleulations or whether Stage 2 n appraprsale

Prohability of Defyuly

Probability of default (FD) i an estisnate of the Theliood ol delauk over a given lime henzon PD estimaion process s done hased vn hisoncat intemal dota avinlable with the
Cempany. While amiving &t the D, the Company also ensures that the factars that affects the maersy cconomic trends are consdered to o reasonable extent. wherever necessary
Company calcufules the |2 month PD by takang mio account the past histonical trends of the Loass/pontolio and its credit performance In case of assels where there v @ significant
merease i coedit fisk Jezedit impained assets, Metime PO has heen applied

The LGD represents expected Tosses o the EAD given the ¢vent of default, waking into account. amnng otier aunbutes, the mitgranng elteci of colfiteral value acthe lime it s
expected 10 be reahised and the ume value of money . The Loss Geven Default (LGD} has been compuled with worhoul methoadatugs Workout LGEY s walely eonsudered o be the
most Mlexible, transparent and togieal approach W bndd an LGD model Aleng with actual recovenes, value of the underlypng colimeral been fcwred in o esunate {uire

recovenies i LGD computatan Workow LGD compotatian imaalves the actual recoveries as well as future 7ecovenes (ax a pan ol the worhaut processi on i partadar Tacility, as
was assessed,

& percentage of balzrce oulstarding at the ume of DelwlRestrucwring. The assessment of workeut LGD was then performed  Principal sulstanding lor each 1oz
m has heen done for each segment and sub-segment separately
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48.0.2

Risk Management feoutinued

Credil Risk (contiicd)

E i Defunlt1EAD}

The amount which the borreseer will vwe w the portfoho at the time of default tx defined as Exposure it Delanlt (EAD). While the drawnn cradit hine reflects the exphicit exposure
for the Company, there might be vanable expouure thay may increase the EAD, These exposures are of the aatre swhere the Company provides future commiunients. th addition 1
the current credit. Therefore, the exposure will contain both on and ofl balance sheet values. The value of exposure 15 given by the following formula

EAD = Drawn Credit Ling + Credi Consetsion Eacen ¥ Undrawn Credit Line
Where,
Drawn Credit Line = Curment oulstanding amount
Credit Conversion Facter {CCF) = Expecied futune drawdown as o proportion of undrawn amount

tndrarwn Credit Line = Dillerence between the total amount whick the Company has commitied and the drawn credit line While the draswn exposure and hims for the
customer are available, the modelling of CCF is required for computing the EAD

Forward lonking adjusiments

A measure of ECL is an unbiased probability-weighted amount that is determined by evalusting a range ol possible cutcomes and using reasonable and supporable wformatan
that i available without endue cost or eflort at the reporiing date about past evenus, cument conditions and lorecasis of future economic conditions ™

“To fullil the sbove requirenen: Company has incorporuted lorward lookizg information into its measurement of ECL. The objecisve af developing a macroeconomie madel using
exogennus macroeconomic variables (MEVS] is 1o address the requirements of unbiased, prohability weighted outcomes while wking imo aecount current conditions as well as
Tuture econemic condiions This wil! be achieved by using the model ontput wa adjust the PD risk component in order to nuake it fonvard fooking and probabilin: weiphted

Exapenous macroeconnmic paramesers were used as independent {X} vanables to predict the dependemt {¥) vanable Keeping in mind Ing AS requirements aronnd oblumng
rehiable and supponable infermatior. withaul incuming undue cost or effan- based on advice of risk ca 3 bers and experts amnd feration ol a vanety of
external actual and forecast informaton. the Campany Formulates base case view of the fulure direction of relevanl economic variable as well ax a representauve range ol nther

possible farecast scenario. This process involves developing two or mere additional economic seenanios and considering e relative prebabilities of each outcome

The Comgany is expecied 10 obiain reasonable and supponable informiadon that is available withour undue cost or effon. Keeping 1z omnd the shove requirement mucrueconomig
inlormatian was aggeegated Irom Evonamie Intellipence Unit {E1U), Bloomberg, World Bank, R8I dalabase. The EILU data has a database of around {50 macroeconmme vanablkes
as well ax their forecasted vadues. Beyond 2022 maci- ie variables are d by mean reverung the values o theis long term average. External informanon includes

econromic dua and forecasws published by zovernmental bedies and movetary authontics in the country. supranational organisations such as the OECT and the IME. and selected
private seclor and academic larecasiers

To ineorporate macroeconamic impact i probabiiny -weiphted. each scenario has an associated probatnbiny In order to ensure consistency serss macrocconomie moxdels, these
probahilities were caleulated at an overal! level for hoth Retail and Non-Retail portfolios. keeping in nund that though the impact ol g seenann across dilferent pardnhos may diller
based on endogenous factars. the prohabidity ol a scenana unlolding is parely exagenous, and hence should not vary

The Company has wenntied and documented key drivers of eredit nisk and eredit fosses Tz cach panioli of financial msiroments and using ar analyas ol ustorical data, has
extimated relatienstip between marco-¢conomic variables and crediy risk and credit losses

Predicted relationship between the key indecators and defiult and Ioss rates on sarious portfolies of linancial assess have been developed based on anzlyung listoncal dats over the
past 5 vears

Risk Concentration
Concentzalions anse when a number of coumerpariies are engaged in similar business wativies, ar acovaues 1 the same geopraphical regian. or have sinslar econom fealures

that woukld cause thewr ability o meet comtractial obligalions to be similarly affecled by changes in econonue, political or other conditons Concentriions mdicive the relanve
nstiv ity of the Company’s perfarmance o develapments alTecting & particular indusiny or peographical locatuan

fnorder 1o avmd exeessave concentmawns ol risk, the Conipany’s palictes and procedures include speciftc guzdelines 1o Tocus on mamtaning 4 dives
comteentrattons & credn sisks are controlled and nranaged accardingly.

ed portivhio deatiticd

The tollowing Lable shows the nsk coscentraton by indusiry Tor the components uf the halumee ~Heet
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48, Risk Management {eomtinned)
Credit Risk {continucd)
48.0.2  Industry znalysis - Risk concendrution as st 3 March 2020

Sta c Central u
Purticntars Fiaancial Services (“_"‘:‘r:r;’"'n’t" Agriculture fadutey Iteal Estate  Servicr Seetar  Retoll Loans  Others Totul
o

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 1415 29 - - - - - -

Denvative financial instruments 1,563.67 - - - - - - -

Securities held for trading 4.923.39 - - - - - 14719

Trude receivables - - - - . - - 260

Other receivables 278 - - - - - -

Loans 222512 - - 221818 . - 5.142.32 - $585.62
Investments 106615 - - - 2677159 - - 258371 632745
Otdrer financial assets 53440 - - - - B - . 53440
‘Total Assels 11,731,380 - - 2,218.18 2,677.59 - 514232 273350 2450239
Industry unalysis « Risk concentration as at 31 Macch 2019

Particulars Finm!dul Seate & Central Agriculture Tndustry Reul Estate Serviee Retail Loans  Others Tatal
Serviees GCovernment M Sector

Financial Assels

Cash and cash eguivalents 4.670.11 - - - . - - £.6710.11
Derivative financial instnzments 706.83 - - - - - - - .85
Securiries held for trading 114286 - - - - - . 1.142.36
Trude receivables - - - - - 2134 2034
Gther receivables - - - - . - - 2646 26.46
Loans 1.620.97 - 493686 1016595 300873 330869 - 2504220
Investments 1.733.04 - - - - - - 12892 186241
Orher financiaf assets 668,12 - - - - - - 06812
Total Assets 10,542.400 - - 4,936.86  10,165.95  A409.73  5308.6% 176,72 3413945
Industry analysis - Risk concentration us at 31 Mareh 2018

Particulurs Z’:‘::::' ”‘E‘;i::::" Apeicultere  Industey Rl Estate bst:l::: Retait Louns  Others ot

Financial Asscts

Cash and cash equivalents 36375 - - - . - . 36375
Derivative financial instruments 8T - - - - - 28770
Securities held for trading 1.699.73 - - - 1.699.73
Trade receivabies . B . . - 1285 1285
Other receivables . - - - B . 10.60) 10,66
Louns THLO7 - - 6.025.60 1485934 535239 1.837.06 - 28.822.11
Investments 4509 44 - - - 10800 A617.50
Other financial assets 1933 - - - - - A3
Total Assets 7.627.02 - - 6,025.60 14,859.3% 5,352.3% 1,837.46 131.51 5433587

48.03  Colfuteral nrd other credit enhancements
The atnount and e of collaeral reyuized depends onan assessment of the credit sk of the counterparty. Guudehnes are i place covening the scceplablity and valuaton of cach tpe ot vollaeril
The atain 1ypes of collateral obtnned ane charges ovet ceid cxtite prupertics, inventory, teade receivables, mortgages aves \ | properties. Secur M, sty the ket vlae
of cafbiteral and will request additionad coflateral 1n scentdanye with the anderying agreement

The 1ables belaw shaws the maximum exposure o eredit risk by class of financial assel slung with details an callaterads held against exposure.
Maximum exposure 1o crdll risk

Asat Asat Asal

Pringipal 6 pr of coltteral
March 31,2020 March 31,2019 March 31, 2018 Ll

Finunclal assers

Cunh and cash equivalents 141529 F67001 30375
Dervative Binsncialt instrumenis 156367 706 85 237708
Securities hekd for trading S470.58 L1250 1699 74 The Compans mvestin high ried Corperate Bonds and hagad Bquay Shares
Trade recewvables 264 2134 1285 Jhese are recenables maely Irom Cleanng hanses Group Carryny
nnnamum nsk
Chher receivithles 2T 2646 1060
Lasumia,
N Corpone Crody 144332 19.733 81 27000 3% Lguiy Sharcs Mol Fund anits £and Properts Progect Futuee
Revepable ok
i Retail Credn 514230 5.308.69 L52198  Bguuy shares and Mutual s unis Bonds. et
Investments 632735 Ly62.01 1617 5
Other Mnancil waets SM0 603812 1431
Tatal Finsnclal Assets (A) 24.502.39 34.139.08 I5BAIEE
Loan commitnents 16398y 552344 H25 12 Loty Shurcs Mutual Famd unis Land Propery Propa Recenable o
R Total Commitments {15) 1639.89 882344

e
H

E i Toratiae® 2614238 FXTakD
ey
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48. Risk Munagement (continued)

48.D.3 Collateral and other credit enhancements (continued)

Financial assets that are stage 3 and related collateral held in order (o mitigate potenlial losses are given below:

Maximum exposure Lo eredit risk as at March 31, 2020

Carrying amount

Associated ECL

. Fair value of
Carrying amount

before ECL collateral .
ar Loans:
Corporate Credit * 756.10 186.53 569.57 835.91
Retatl Credit 52.84 1.86 50.97 8975
Total Financial Assets 508.54 188.39 620.34 945.66
* Secured by way of a pari pasu charge over collateral
Maximum exposure to credit risk as at March 31, 2019
Carrying amount Associated ECL  Carrving amount Fair value ol
before ECL ss0c Arrying collateral
a) lLouns:
Corporute Credit * 106.83 51.73 55.10 883.200 .
Retail Credit 4.30 1.23 3.07 321
Total Financial Assets 111.13 52.96 58.17 §86.41
* Secured by way of a pari pasu charge over collateral
Maximum exposure 4o credit risk as at March 31, 2088
Carrying amouni o e e Fair value of
betare ECL Associated ECL. Carrying amount collateral
a) Loans:
Corporate Credit # 506.20 493,29 1291 . 1.158.70
Retail Credit -
Total Financial Assets 506.20 493.29 12.91 1,158.70

* Secured by way of a pari pasu charge over collateral
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48. Risk Managenwent (Continued)
48, Liguidity Risk
Liguidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will encounter diflicuky w meeung obligations associated with linancial Fabiinies that are seiled by delwering cash or another finangal

assel, Liguidily risk urises because of the possibility that the Company might ke unable to meet it payment ebligations when they fall due as a resull of mismatches in the timing of the cash

fiows ander bath normal and stress clrcumstances.

Company has a Liquidity Contingency Poficy n place 10 easure vinous euihity parameters are defined and tracked repulardy. Liquedy Management Team is provided with updine on
expected liguidivy shostfalls in Nommal as well as Stress scenario

To manage the stressed cireumstances the Campany has ensured maistenance of a Liquidity Cushion in the form of [nvestments in Gosernment Secunties, Muteal Funds and Quoted Equity
Shares, Tiese assels carry minimal credit risk and can be liquidated in a very shor period of time. A lquidily cushion amounting to 5-9% of the barrawings is sought to be maniained
through such assets. These would be 1o lake care of immediate abligations while continuing 10 henour our commitments as a going concem. There are available Jincs of credit from banks
which are drawable an avuce which further augment the avatiable sources of Tunds. Funding is raised through diversified sources including Banks. Privale issue of Debt. Sub Debt ete 10
maintain a healthy mix.

Liquidity Cushion:

Asat Asat As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
1iquidity cushian
Debt Securities 4.910.66 1,342.87 H K]
Mutual Fund [nvesiments - - 1.498.73
Quoted Equily Instruments 15992 - HKLOD
Total Liguidity ceshion 5,070.58 1,142.87 169974
Financing Arrangment
The Company kad aceess 1o the following undrawn barzowing frcilines an the enid ol the reponing year
Asat Asat As af
31 March 2020 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Cammitted Lines [rom Banks - 45.00 45.00

As at March 31, 2020 - Analysis of contractual maturities of financial assets and liabilities *

Upto 3 3teb 6 Monthsto  1yearto3  Morethan .
On Demand odal
Months Months 1 year YLUrS Years
Financial Assets

Cash and cash cquivalents 1.415.29 - - . - 1.415.2%
Derivative financial instruments - 1.563.67 - - 1.563.67
Sccusitics held for trading - 15092 276.71 4,633 95 - 5.070.58
Recgivables

{1} Trade recervables - 2.60 . . 2.60

{ii) Other receivables - 278 - . - . 278
Loaas 2132512 247859 31345 1,E04.86 4.388.18 . 10.510.20
Investamenlts - - - 447 61 2,282,465 A597.19 632745
Other financial assets - 534.40 - - 534.40
Total vndiscounted financial asscts 3.640.41 4,741.96 34%0.16 6,186.42 6,670.83 3,597.19 25426.97
Financial Liabilitics
ta) Derivative financiad instruments - 236,46 - - 236.46
¢t} Trade payables - 226.45 - . - 22645
(c} Dbt securitics - 910.98 2.576.59 159.94 731374 2,198.95 13.160.17
(d) Borrowings {other than debt sccurines) 132,75 30.68 30.08 58.19 135.24 - 386,94
(c} Subordinated Liabilitics - - 16,55 66.05 166.50 249,10
(£} Onher financial ablitics - 045 - 045
Total undiscounted finuncial liabilitivy 132.75 1.4065.02 2,623.22 218.10 7.515.03 2,365.45 14,259.57

Tota) net financial assets f (liabilities) 3,507.66 3,336.94 (2,033.06) 5,968.32 (844.24) 1,231.74 11.167.40
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48, Risk Management (Continted)

48.E Liguidity Risk {Comtinued)

As at Murch 31, 2089 - Analysis of contractual maturitics of linancial assets and liabilities

On Demund Upte 3 3wd 6Monthsto  EPyearte5  Morcthan 5 Total
Months Months 1 vear years YEUrs

Financial Asscts
Cash and cash equivalents 120.11 4.500.00 - 50.00 - 4.670.11
Derivative firancial instruments 706.85 - - - T06.85
Sceuritics held for trading - 1.142.86 - - - 1.142.86
Reccivables

(i) Trade reccivables 21.34 - - - 21.34

(if} Otlrer receivables - 2646 - . - - 26.46
Eoans - 2,363.81 1,537.40 4.4832.87 23.730.63 1.137.45 33,252.16
Investments - - - 1.862.01 1.862.01
Other financial asscis - 668.12 - - - 668,12
Total undiscounted finarcial assels 120,11 9.429.44 1,537.40 4,532.87 23,73.63 2,999.46 42,349.91
Financial Liabilitics
(@) Derivative financial instruments 422 49 - - - 422.49
(b) Trade payables - 323.8% - - . - 32389
(c) Debt sceurities - 4.613.34 1.384.83 4,566.83 9.605.55 2,171.33 22.341.88
(d) Borrowings (other than debt securitics) 12.40 RERK] 3252 63.07 254.19 . 393531
() Subondinated Liabilitics - 16,45 - 66.05 183.05 265,55
(g) Other financial liabilities 274 - - - - 22,74
“Total undiscounted financial liabilitics 12,49 5,415.59 1.433.80 4,629.90 9.9235,79 2,354.38 2377186
Total net financial ussets / (liabilities) 107.71 4,013.85 103.60 {97.03) 13,804.84 645.08 18.578.05
Asg at March 31, 2018 - Analysis of contractual maturities of linancial assets and liabilities

On Bemund Upto 3 36 6 Monthsto  1yearte3  Morethan 5 Total
Monthy Months 1 year Nears YEHTS

Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalenss 363.75 . - - 6375
Derivative financel instruments 287.70 - 287.70
Securitics held for trading 1.699.74 - 1,699.74
Reccivables

(i} Trade recoivables - 12.85 - 12.85

(ii} Other receivables - 10.60 - - . - 10.60
Loans 502.33 1.132.50 2.219.55 3271516 1.728.01 3889755
Investments - 1.617.50 4617350
Other financial assets - 19.33 - - 19.33
Total undiscounted financial assets 363.75 2,532.55 1,132.50 2,919.55 32.715.16 6,345.51 46,009.02
Financial Liabilities
(2} Derivauve financial mstrumenis - 21244 20244
(B Trade payables 345,54 - - - 3554
{c) Debt secunties - 1.051.21 369711 2.504.87 9.290.92 1.613.73 i8.057.84
{d) Borrowings (other than debt securities) 737417 37.31 31.08 843.40 igron - 9.06K8.88
{) Subordwmnated Liabihitics i6.55 - 66.08) 199 55 28210
(g) Other financial lisbilities 16.54 - 1654
Total undiscounted financial Habilities 7.374.17 £,.663.04 374474 3,348.27 9.739.84 1,813.28 28.0183.34
Total net financial asseds f (Habilities)* {7.410.42) 869.51 (2,612.24) (428,72} 22.975.32 4,532.23 17.925.68

¥ The Company had taken temporary loan from related parties aggreganng 10 Rs. 7.761.96 million leading to a mismateh as at March 31. 2018, The Company as
part of its ALCO activities has ruised long teems funds during the financial year 2018-19 and has a positive ALM position as at March 31, 2019
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48, Risk Management {Comsinued)
48.E Liquidity Risk (Continwed)

Contractual expiry of commitments
The table below shows the contractual expiry by maturity of the Campanys commitments

As at March 31, 2020

Less tha 2 .
Particukurs On Benund 'e;;n:';: b 3tu 12 months 1t 5 yeurs Osver 5 Years Total

Estimated amount of coniracts capital agcount . - . R
Lindrawn committed credit lines - . 1.639.89 - - 1,639.89
Uncalled commitments an invessments in AIF Ventre Fuand

- 3.345.13 - - 3.345.13
- - 4,983.02 - - 4,985.02
As at March 31, 2019
Particulurs On Demand Less than 3 3 (o E2 owmths 110 5 yeurs Over £ Years Totul
mondlys
Estimated amount of contracts capital account - 0.06 - 0436
Undrawn committed credit lines - 8.823.44 . 8.823.44
Uncatled commitments on investments in Al Venture Fund 23187 ) A 23387
233.87 - 8,823.50 - - 9.057.37
As at March 31, 2018
Particulurs On Demand Less thun 3 3 to 12 months b to 5 yeary Over S Years Tutak
maonths
Estimated amount of contracss capital account - - 1.96 - 1,94
Undrawn committed eredit lines - 82812 828.12
Lincalled commitments on imestments in AIF Venture Fund 4884 269.84
269.84 - 830,08 - - 1.099.92

The Company expeets that noi ali of the conungent babilites or commitments wilt he drawn before expiry of the commiiments
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Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited
Notes ta the financial stutements for the year ended March 31, 2020
pCurrency lndean rupees su mallaony
48, Risk Manasgement
A8.F Alarket Risk {continued)
Interest Rate Risk
The principal risk Lo which non-trading porifohas arc cxposed 13 the nisk of toss from fnctoatons in the futre cish Nlows or far vakes of financl

instruments becacse of u change in markel interest rates, Iilerest rate tisk is managed principslly through monitoring interest rate gaps and by having pre-
approved limits for repricing bands.

ALCO is the moniloring body for compliance with these limits. ALCO reviews the micrest rate gap statement and the mix of floating and fixed rate assets
ard liabilitics. Balance Sheet Management Unit is in-charge for day 10 day managerment of snterest rae risk.

Interest rate risk arises frons the possihilizy that changes in interest rates will affect future cash flaws or the fair values of financial instrurnents. The Board
has cstablished limits on the non-trading interest rale gaps for stipulated periods. The Company « policy is th monitor positions on a daily basis and
hedging strategics are used (o cnsure positions are maintained within the estahlished limis.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity 1o a reasonably possible change 1 interest rates €all other variables being constant} of the Company’s
statement of profit and foss and equity. The semsitivity of the statement of profic and loss is the effect of the assumed changes in interest sates on the profit
or loss for 2 year, based on the Roating rate noo-trading financial asscis and financial Habilitics held a1 31 March 2020 and at 31 March 2019

48.G

Interest rute sensitivity
As at Mareh 31, 2020

Increase in Sensitivity of  Semsitivity of  Decreasein Sensitivity of  Sensitivity
basis points Prafit Equity basis points Profit of Equity
Bank borrowings 25 111 36) 25 0.56
Corporate debz securities 25 (236 a5 12.28
As at March 31, 2019
Increase in Scnsitivity of  Scnsitivity of  Decreuse in Sensitivity of Sensitivity
basis paints Profit Eqguity basis peiats Prufit of Equity
Bank borrowings 25 1051 25 0.81
Corporale debl securities 25 1286 I5 286
As at March 31, 2018
Inerease in Sensitivity of  Sensitivity of  Decrease in Sensitivity of Sensitivity
Dusis points Profit Egutity basks points Profit of Equity
Bank borewings 25 1106 25 1.06
Corporate debi securities 235 25 25 025

Price Risk

The Company's exposute 1o securitics price rish arises from investments hekd in Equity Shares classified in the balance sheet at fair valuc through pmfii
or loss. To manage its price nsk arising wrom such investments, the Company diversifies 1t portfoho. Further these are all debt hise securities for which
the expostre is primarily on account of inlerest rute risk, Quotes INAVY of these investments are sxailable from the mutual fund houses

kquity price risk s the risk that the foir vilue or fulure cash flows of a financiat instrument will luctuate because of changes in the level

investment in cquity share pricss

As at March 31, 2020

of ndindnal

Increase in Sensitivity of  Sens cof  Decreasein  Sensitivity of  Sensitivity
price { %) Profit Equity price { %) IPradfit uf Equity
Benvative insiruments 5 S18 5 518
Equity instruments 5 S0 5 £300)
As at March 31, 2019
Increase i Sensitivity of  Sensitivity of  Decrease in Sensitivity of Sensitivity
price () Profit Equity price (%) Prafit of Equity
Denrvaiive snsimiments 5 BTETS 3 (171 754
As at March 31, 2018
Increase in Seasitiviey of  Sensitiviny of  Beerease in Sensitivity of Sensitivity
prive (%) Profil Expuity price (5¢) Profit of Equity
Dervatve instruments 5 1632y b Q32
Equity instruments 5 SO0 5 13
Muzual fund unis 5 T 3 174943

Prepayment Risk

Prepayment nsk is the nsk that the Company wadl ineur a financaal losy because sty customery and counlerpartes repay of request repayment sarher o

aler than expeeted, such as fixed rate Laans/horrowings in the Mlling imerest rale seenano



Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

(Currency: Tndian rupees in miliion)

49  Regulatory disclosures - RBI

The following additional information is disclosed in the terms of Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically
Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 issued vide Master Direction

DNBR. P, G08/03.10.119/2016-17 dated September 01,2016 as amended.

49.01 Investments

As at March 31, As at March 31,
2020 2019
I) Value of Investments *
i) Gross Value of Investments
a) In India 6,693.80 1.503.04
b) Ouetside India - -
ii) Provisions for Depreciation
a} in India 366.35 (358.97)
b} Outside india . -
iti) Net Value of Investmenis
a) In India 6,327.45 1,862.01
b} Qutside India - M
2) Movement of provisions held towards depreciation / (Appreciation) en investments.
i} Opening balance (358.97) (225.71)
ii) Add: Provisions made during the year 725.32 {133.26)
iii) Less : Write-off / writc-hack of excess provisions during the year - -
iv) Closing batance 366.35 (358.97)
* It includes only investments {Refer Note 13C)
49.02  Capital to Risk Assets Ratio (CRAR)
As at March 31, Asat March 31,
2020 2019
i)  CRAR (%) 19.85% 28.44%
il CRAR - Tier I capital (%) 19.05% 26.64%
CRAR - Tier IF Capital (55) 0.80% 1.80%

Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier-11 capilal

Amount raised by issue of Perpetual Debt Instruments




49.03  Exposure to real estate sector, both direct and indirect

C

As at March 31,

2020
Direct Exposure
(i} Restdential Mortgages -
Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential property that is or wili be accupred by -
the berrower or that is rented:( hixdividual housing Joans up to .15 Jakhs may be shown
sepazately)
(ii} Commercial Real Estate -
Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real estates (office buildings. retnil space, -
multipurpose  commercial premises. multi-family residential buildings. muiti-tenunied
commercial premises, industrial or warehouse space, hotels, land acquisition, development
und construction, ete). Exposure includes non-fund based (NFB) limits.
{iii) Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities {MBS) and other securitised exposures *
- Residential -
- Commercizl Real Estate 2.677.59

Indirect Exposure
Fund based and non-fund based exposures on National Housing Bank (NHB) and Housing -
Finance Companies (HFCs)

QOthers (net covered above) -

Asat March 31,
2019

14,178.15

* Represeats fnvesunent in Secnerlty Receipts having nnderiving exposure in Conrercial Real Estate

49.04  Securitisation/ Direct Assigmment;

Disclosuzes i the notes o the accounts in respect of financial assets sold to Securitisattor /Reconstruction Company purseant to Reserve
Bank of kndia notification DNBR (PD) CC.Ne)29/03.10.001/2014-15 dated [Oth April 2015

a. Detanls of Financial Assets sold 1o Securitisation / Reconstruction Company for Asser Reconstruction

Particulars 2019-20 2018-19
1) No. of accounts 9 -
i) Aggregate value (net of provisions} of accounts sold to SC / RC 4 .870.24 -
i) Apgregate consideration 4.850.90 -
wvy Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred in carlier years Nil -
v) Aggregate gain / loss over net book value (19.34) -
b Detasls of non-performing financials assets puschased / sold
Dunng the year the Company has not purchased non-performing financials assets. (Previous year - Nil)
A. Details of non-performing financial assets purchased :
As at As at
Murch 31, 2020 March 31. 2019
t (2) No.of accounts purchased during the year - -
(by Aggregmic outstanding -
2 (@) Of these, number of accounts restruciured during the year - -
(b)_Aggregate oulstanding - -
B. Details of Non-performing Financial Assets sold:
Asat As
March 31, 2020]  March 31, 2019
i No. ef accounts sold 2 -
2 Aggregate outstanding 108.80 -
3 Aggregate consideration received 108.80 -




Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited

Noles Lo the financusl statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(Currency: Indian rupees in miliion)

39 Regulatory disclosures - RBI (Contined)

4905 Fxposure to Capital Market

As at March  As at March
31,2020 31, 2019
iy direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible debentures and umits of 504.24 596.72
equity-oriented mutual funds the corpus of which is not exclusively invested n corporate debt
it} advances against shares / bonds / debentures or other securities or on clean basis w indviduals 4.603.32 307458
for investment in shares (including IPOs / ESOPs). convertible bonds, convertible debentures.
and units of equity-orieated mutual funds
1it) advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible bonds or conventible debentures or 221818 6,845.75
units of equity oriented mutual funds are taken as primary security
1) advances for any other purposes lo the exient secured by the collateral security of shares or - -
convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of eguity oriented muteal funds Le. where
the primary security other than shares / convertible bonds / convertible debentures / units of
equity eriented mutual funds ‘does not fully cover the advances
v} secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guarantees issued on behalll of . -
stockbrokers and market makers
vi} loans sanctioned to corporates against the security of shares / bonds / debentures or other . -
securities or on clean basis for meeting promoier’s contribution 1o the equity of new companies
in anticipation of raising resources
vii) bridge loans to companies against expecied equity flows / issues - -
viit) all exposures ta Venture Capital Funds {both regisiered and unregistered) 119.02 91.63
1x) others (not covered above) - -
Total Exposure 7,834.76 10,608.70
4906 Asser Linbility Management -Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities
As at 31 Murch 2020 *
Liabilitics Assets
Particulars Borrowings Market Inter- . Sccurities held
R Loans (Gross)  Investments N
from Banks  Dborrowings corporate loan for trading
1 day to 30/31 days (One montl:) - - 13275 222512 - -
Over One months to 2 months - 160.67 - - - [59.92
Over 2 months up to 3 months 25,00 744,31 . 221820 - -
Over 3 months to 6 months 25.00 3.587.68 - 1140.08 . 276.71
Over 6 months 1o § year 50.00 159.91 . 837.04 447.61 4.633.93
Over 1 year o 3 years 119 36 6.979.91 - 417518 228365 -
Over 3 years 10 5 years - 33383 - - - -
Qver 5 years - 2,348.95 - - 3.597.18 -
Total 219.36 13,32E.26 132.75 9,385.62 6,327.44 5,070.58

* The Company have cumulative positive mismatch across ime buckets

As al 31 March 2019

Liubilities Assels
Particulars Borrowings Market inters . ~ Securities held
N L.oans (Gross) Investments .
from Banks  borrowings corpurate luan for trading
i day to 30/31 days {One month) - 3.618.50 1240 83435 - 1.142.86
Over One months 10 2 months - 81678 - 146,95 -
Over 2 mamhs up 10 3 months 25.00 139.2¢ - R79.80 . -
Over 3 months to 6 months 25.00 1.395.31 . SU1L.90 . -
Over 6 months o 1 year S50.0¢ 4.56(0.96 - 286412 -
Over | year to 3 years 20004 6.636.87 - 5 131.07 B
Over 3 years to 5 years 2478 2.951.62 - 148662 -
Over 5 years - 2328 - 8Y7.39 1.862.01 -
Total 324,78 22,436.93 12,40 25,042.2( 1.862.01 1,142.86

Further, the Company had tempararily deployed s exces hiquidity aggregating to Rs. 4,50£.92 milhon as at March 31 2018 in the hont
. ‘term fixed deposit with the bank. Accordingly. the Company s well poised 1o meet ity contractual oohgations over all the matenty due
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49 Regulztory disclosures - RBI {Contined)
44,07 Movements of siage 3 assets!

The following table sets forth. for the periods indicated, the details of movement of stage 3 assets . stage 3 assets net of stage 3 provision
and stage 3 provision,

Asat March  As at March
31,2020 31,2019
i) Stage 3 assets net of stage 3 provision to net advances (%} 6.60% 0.23%
iiy Movement of Stage 3 assets *
a) Opening Balance I3 5006.20
b) Additions during the year 5.676.85 106.84
) Reductions during the year® 4.979.04 501.91
&) Closing balance 808,94 11113
iti) Movement of Stage 3 assets net of stape 3 provisions
ut Opening Balance 58.17 12.9%
b) Additions during the year 5.500,02 65.44
¢} Reductions during the year 4.937.64 20.18
di Closing balance 620.55 58.17
iv) Movement of stage 3 provisions: (excluding provision on Stage 1/Stage 2)
a) Opening Balance 52.96 493.29
b) Addstions during the year 176.83 41.40
¢) Reductions during the year 41.40 481,13
d) Closing balance 188.3% 52.90
*  Includes stage 3 assets wrilten off during the year Rs Nil. (Previous year: Rs 483.55 million}
49,08 Details of 'Provisions and Contingencies’
Breakup of provisions and contingencies shown in the Statement of Profit 2019-20 2018-19
and loss
iy Provisions for gepreciation on Invesiment . -
i) Provision towards Stage 3 assets {net) 135.43 (440.33)
i} Provision made towards Income tax (net) 216.37 670.17
iv) Provision for Stage 1/Stage 2 assets (269.22) 77.30
vy Other Provision and Contingencies
a} Provision for grawity 1.28 4,49
by Provision for compensated abseaces (1.37) 1.99

49.09 Concentration of Deposils, Advances, Exposures and NPAs

As at March  As at March

31,2020 31,2019
A} Concentration of Advances
Total Advances to twenly largest borrowers 8.637.92 15.718.14
% of Advanees to twenty Jargest borrowers 1o Totat Advances 90.1 1% 62.77%
B} Concentration of Exposures
Total Exposures to twenty largest borcowers / Customers $.637.92 15.718.14
% of Exposures 10 twenty Jargest borrowers / Customers to Total Advances 90.11% 62.77%
C) Concentration of NPAs
Towl Exposures 1o 1op Four NPAs 805.17 56.23

12) Sector-wise NPAs

% of NPAS to Total Advances

Sectors/Particulars :
in that seefor

I Agriculture & athed aclivitics - -

2 MSME - -

3 Corporate borrowers 17.02% 0429
4 Services

5 Unsecured personal loans -

Auta loans - -
Other louns 1.G3%
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Notes o Lhe financiil shtements kor the year ended Marel 3, 2020
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49 Repubatory disclosures - RBE (Conrired)

4900 Note 1o the Balunce Sheer of a non-deposit takiag non-banking financid vompany (as requieed in et of Patagraph 18 ol Non Banhosg Fianciat (Non-Deposi
Aceeptiag or Hokling! Companies Prudeatial Noms (Reserve Bank) Directions. 2007

Liabilities Side:

Amount Outstanding Amoeunt Overdue
Particulars Asal March As ot March As at March As at March
31,2620 312019 31,2024 3172019
1) Loans and advances availed by NBEC inclusive of inferest accrued fhereon but
1) Dehentures:
(other than those falling within the meaning of Public deposin
i) Securcd 13,138 76 19.286.04 - -
iy Unsecured 3.182.50 LIS039 - -
h) Deferred Credits - . - .
<3 Ferm Loans 219.30 378 - -
4)  liver-corperate loans and borrawing -
) Commercia! Paper -
f) Other loans
{i) Inter varporate foan - 1240 - -
(i#) From Refated parties 13275 - - -

Assels sider

Amount Ouistanding
As at March A at¢ March
31, 2020 31.2019
2y Break up of Louns and Advances including hills receivables
totber than those included in (31 below)
a)Secured 6.503 52 22.365.26
b)Unsecured 108211 2,676.94

3} Break up of Leased Assets and stack on hire and other assets counting towards AFC aclivities NA Na
Ay Lease issets including lease rentals under sundry deblors

G} Financiad fease

iy Operanng Lease

b3 Stack on hire inchuhing hire charges under sundry deblors
{1} Assets on hire

(i} Repossessed assets

«} Other foans counting towards Asset Financing Company activities
i) Loans when assets have Been repossessed
iy Other loans .

4) Break up of Investments

Curzent Investmens

4) Quoted

i) Shares Equry 15992
Preference -

0 Debentures and Bunds 491060 1.142.86

it Units of Mutuat Funds -

(ivy Government Seeurities -

) Others

Linguoted:

{1} Shares Eyuity

b

Preference
{31y Debenrares and Bonds
iy Units of Muomal Fiods
(ivy Govermment Seeuritios
(v Others (8 through corticdtes)




Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited
Notes 1o the fismncial statemenis fur the year ended March 31, 2020
tCaerency: [ndian rupees in antlion)

4v Regulatory disclosures - RBI (Contiped)

49,10 Nore wo the Balance Sheet of a non-deposit tahing non-bauking fineucial company tas requiced in tenns of Paragraph 18 of Nen-Bandwe Financial (Non-Deposit
Accepting or Holding} Compames Prudentiod Norms (Reserve Bank) Directians, 2007.1Continieed)

4) Break up of fnvestments (Continned) Amount Quistanding
Asat March 31, A<acMarch 31,
2020 me
Long-Term: Investments ¢ Net of Provisien }
a) Quoted:
(i} Shares: Eyuity > -

Preference .
i) Debentures and Bonds R
i) Umits of Muzl Fands . N
{iv) Govemment Securiles .

v} Others .
by Ungnoted:
(i) Shares: Equity 80424 596,72

Preference 454 60 3727
(i1) Debentures amd Bomls - .
(iit)  Units of Mutid Funds - -
(iv) Govemment Securitics -

(v) Others
- Investments in security reeeipis of srusts 170345 845.69
-tnvestments in wants of funds 1282460 382.33
-investments in wamants 32.50 -
5} Borrower group-wise classification of assels financed as in (2} and (3) above
Asat 31 March 2020 As ut 31 March 2014
Antouni net of provisions Amount net of provisiens
Pacticulars Secured Unsecured Total Secured Unsecured Total
1. Reluied Parties**
(2) Subsidiaries - - - . .
() Companies in the same group B 222306 2.225.06 - 1422 14 1422.44
¢y Qther relaled partics - . - - -
2. Other thun related panics 6.196.82 K15 88 7012770 21.885.18 125323 23,135.41
TOTAL 6,196.82 304094 9.230.16 21,885.18 2.675.37 24.560.55
6) Investor growp-wise classifieation of all investments (current and long-term) in shares und securities (both quoted and unguoted)
Particulors Mlarket Value / Break up Book Value
frtieula or fuir value or NAY (Net of Pravisions)
Asat March 31, Asat March 31, Asat dMacch 38 Axatl Mareh 31,
2020 219 20240 2019
1} Refuted partics*
{u) Subsidiaries . - . .
{b} Companies 1 the same group 3.789.33 88082 5.789.31 858G 82
icy Other related parties - . - .
2) Gither than related parties 5608.70 212408 5.008.70 212405
TOTAL 11,398.03 3,004.87 11.398.03 3,00-L87
== As per Ind AS 24 - Related Party Disclosures
7) Other InTormmation
Particulars Asal March 310 Asat March 31,
’ 202 2019
i) Gross Srape 3 assers
1} Related parsics
21 Other thun relaled pasties 808 94 [REE R
by Stage 3 Assets Net of Provision
17 Related partics -
2) Oxher than related panies 620 55 N7
) Asaels acgired 0 satnfuction of debt - -
Nutus:
1 A defined w paragraph 201381y of the Non-Banking Financial Compinies Acceptance of Public Depastis (Resen e Bank) Directions. 998

2 Markel valuetBreatup Value or Fair Value or NAV is taken as seme as ook salie s case 11 unguoted shares in absenve ot market s alae £ breakup saboe or Lar
wilue o NAY
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44

49,11

4912

49.13

49.14

49,13

49.16

49.17

49.18

49,19

Regulitory disclosures - RBE(Cuntined)

Registration obtained from ather financid sector regulutors - Nil
The Company has not restructured any foans and advances during the year ended 31 Magch 2020 and 33 March 2019,

Disclosure of Penalties imposed by RB1 and ather regulators- Nit (Previous year - Ni)

Overseas Assets - Nil (Previous year - Nil)

Details of finuncing of parent vompany products - Nil {Previous year - Nily

Off-Balance sheet SPV sponsored - Nil (Previous year - Nil}

Draw Down frem Reserves: Nil (Previous year - Nil)

Note 1o the Balance Sheet of a non-banking financial company as required in terms of Chapter I paragraph 5 of Monitoring of frauds in NBFCy

(Reserve Bank) Directions. 2016 - Nil (Previous Year - Ni)

Details of ratings assigned by credit rating agencies
As al 31 March 2020

Instrument category Brickworks CARE CRISHI. ICRA
i) Leng Term [nstruments
Rating AA [ Negative AA- I Stable AA-{ Stable AA-F Nepgative
Amount 3,00000 1,500.00 12.000.00 13,000
i1)  Short term instruments
Raling - Al+ Al+
Amount - 40,000.00 2.000.00,
iii) Market linked debentures
2 Short Term
. PP-MLID IC -
. LI AA / Negative PP- MLD AA- PP- MLD AA-T/ Stable PP-MLD {ICRA] AA d
Raling Negative
Amount 300000 587520 21,000.00 10074
b Long Term
Rating PP - MLD Al+r PP-MLD ICRAJA T+
Amoun: - - 5.000.00 1,500.00
As at 31 March 2019
Instrement calegory Brickworks CARE CRISIL ICRA
iy Leng Ferm Instruments
Riting A+ AA AAStuble AA
Amounl 3.000.00 1,500.00 12.000.000 13,000.00
ti) Short term insiruments
Rating Alr Al+
Amoznt - 10,000.00 12.000.00
1ity Market linked debentures
a4 Short Term PP- MLD PP-MLD ICRAJAT+
Rating 500000 1.506.00
Amount
b Long Term
Rating PP-MLD AA+ PP MLD-AA PP MLD AA e/Stzble PE-MLE {ICRAJAA
Amount 3.000.00 689320 2950000 10.070.00

A2G¢  Details of Single Burrower Lamit and Barrower Group Limit exceeded by the Company;
Dunng the vear ended 3t March 2020:and 31 March 2019, the Company™s credit exposire to smgle orms e and group borraw ers sere wathin the it

preserited by the RB1
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49.21

19,22

4923

4924

4925

49,26

1927

Regulistory discloseres - BB (Contined)

L ustomer Complaints

1926 203K-19
) Nooof complints pendimg i the begining of the year - N
thy  No.of comphints eecived duning the year - -
(<) Ne. ol complaints fedressed dunng the year - -
() No.of complaints pending i the end of the yer - .

Details of transaction with mon executive directons

T'he Company his nal uadertaken any transiction with ws nof-execulive dreatons during (he year caded 31 March 2020 tPrevous year Nl eacept 28 dickied m Nate 45

Funding Conceal ration hased an slgnificant cupaterparty (both depusits snd borrowingsh
As a1 March 31,

420
Nambar of Signilicant Counter Parties * 1}
Number of Sipnificant Casnter Parties - Ouistandiog Amaunt * 335600
1 Sigmificant Counter Panies a3 % of Total Deponts NA
it} Srganificsnl Counter Parties us % of Total §jabibties=*» 23 3%
* Sigaifie et conmterpart” iy defined an  single cosnterparty or gronip of canttecied or affitioned commenuirnies acconnting ot aggregale for more thu 1% of the
XRFC-NDSFs barrswings tprmepeal amoun)”
*< The Compan 1s don deposit foking NBFC, au ardimphy ehis rato s nert opplicable 1o the Compurniy
srn <Totaf atfies © refers o total externa fobihies e exelidimg vl vauin )
Concentration of Deposits
Tutal Depostis from (wenty fargest lenders NA
G of Deposits from swenty Girpest lenders 1o Total Deposits NA T
* The Campony o nen deposit kg NBFC. scnrdingdy this ratin iy ot applicodle te the Chnpan
Concentratien of Berrowings
Lotul Borrow ings Irom Top Ten keaders 23660
7 of Bomrowmngs from Top Ten lenders o Total Borrawiags 2155
Funding Concentration based on significant instrumentproduct *
As a1 March 3, 2020
Nan Nume of the Instrument { Praduct Amouat .p{ -u‘l'.'l'ulal
Liubilities *=
a1 Alarkel Sorrowings 1333 26 ul s
B Fenn Laans 21916 1435

* “segneficant astramentfproduct b defitied o a single inscamienvprodacs of geenp of sudar imsirnelEVprodie s s i Jaggregare aaotit iy ian 15 of
the NBEC-NDSES totaf Belnlitees

2x ~Lapaf babifittes ™ sefees 1o hital extersal habilities fie. ¢ v heding teatal equin

st March 3
Stuck Ratios As at Macch 3L

2020
a1 Commtercal Papers (vet Outstanding)
1) Comimercial Papers i % o winl pabhe funds (Rt i)
1) Commercial Papers i 7 ol Tl Liabiliies #** B
i Comaterctl #apers as 5 nl Tond Assets 00
I Noromeruble debentures toripmel maturny of Jess than one ywar)
1) Non convenitde debentures sy % of wtal public fonds ¥ RS
1 Noe convertible debentures ax G of Total Luhilites ** = 13
1) Nen-vonvertible dehentures s % of Tatal Assets D1
<t Othet Shoetems habiiimes =* 13278
13 Otber Shart term habilises as % ol wilal puhlic lunds * HuT
2} Other Short lerm Kablities as % o Towat Lixbtlites =7 B4l
1) Other Short term Trshilnies 5 ab Tokal Assets (540

etk puebdic fundy ™ refers wo the angregate of Debt secnrtses, Berroautg ot tian debt venites sad Sabordvnased lubittivs

.

Dcher vhortdeemn liabafifves refers (o the Borrowiag moiors (et i nghisre

Total liabiiines  refers o fmal exsternad ebdines tee e fuding toral cqats ¢
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Notas o e Branciof satements tor the vear cicded Magch 31 2020
WChmeney fndm rupees i milluon

4y Stepulatory disclusures - RBLiCantined)

49,28 Instituticaal sct-up for ligquidig visk mamagement
The Berd of Ditectirs ol 1he Company his constipied 1he Assl Lty Mlamagement Commilies and the Rish Munagenens Commtice
The Asset Lindility Management Commuittee, intes alia

ra) Imgl and ad ter guidelines on Assl-Linbliny Management approved by the Board and its 1evision, il any

i) Monitar the ssset Tubility gip snd overcome the asset-Bubibty mivatches., interest risk exposure, ofc ;. Simtegize acion 1o milaite rik asociated with (e ax
fiabiby gap.

(3 Develop nisk policics and procedures and verify adherence o vanous risk paramcters and prudenti fimits; review the risk mondorng system and emute etfective 1ok
manggement; and

(Y Ensure gl the credil and investoent eapinsure Lo any patts 7 Compamy / group of parties o companizs does not execed the miemifiy set limit as well i statatory
Lty us prescribed by Reserve Bank of India (ronm fime o hme

The Company ersures sufficient Liguidity Cushion i muntuncd m ihe fors of Cash and eush eguivakents and Investments in figund securitios. These wssets carry maniiat
credit rink and con he fiquidated in @ very shon period of ume This lakes care of Lt bl while £ 10 huouur our cammitmenls a5 a going concern
The Company contitues o ocus on developing i diversified funding wodel 10 achieve an oplimum cost of lunds while bafancing Tquiddity

49.29 Prudeatial Floar For ECL.

As reguired in torms of paragraph 2 of cirenlar RBI2019-2001 70 DOR (NBFCLOC PD.No, 109/22,20.10672019-20 dated March 13, 2020 - Non-Wasking Finuncul
Company - Implementation ul Indian Accounting Standinds

As ut Mayceh 31, 2020

DifTerence
N Loss Allowssiees 3 .
N Gross Carrying N . - P'rovisions between IndAS
- . . Asset Chassilication (Provisiuns) as Net Carrying i
Al Classification as per RBI Norms - Amuounl as per reyuired as per | H9 provisions
as per IndAS 189 reguired under Amount .
Ing AS 1HACP norms and IRACI
Ind AS 109
BOrms
1 2 3 4 Fw3-4 [ T=d-60
Performing Assets
Standand 6,350.53 0.57 0,344 95 2540 (24 83
2426.55 158 90 2,267 25 970 149 20
Sub Total 8,776.68 159.47 8.607.20 RER3 124.36
Non Performing Assets (NPA)Y
Substandard Stupe-3 801.12 $86.67 61445 *£0.11 106 56
Doubtful - up 1o 1 year Stuge-3 295 . 208 159 UE
103 Years Stape-3 486 tn 114 1.36 02
Maey thun 3 wears k] N _
Sub {otal for Daubtful 1.81 172 6.09 2,08 0331
Loss Stage-3
Sulsturat for NI'A 808.94 188.39 20,54 8216 106,23
. Other itemy
Other sems suck s gustanices, loun Siage-1
commments, eie. which are i the soope af Ind
AS 10 hut nuot coverad ubder cotrent Invoame
Recugniton, Asset Classilficatson and
Pros iswning (IRACP) noro Stuge-? . . :
Stage-3 .
Subtutal -
Tatal Stage- 1 6,350.53 0.57 63495 2530 [N T
Stage-2 436.15 15890 2,267 25 970 49 20
Stage 3 U894 188.39 651 5116 foe 23
Tatat D.585.62 347.86 923714 117.26 2M.60
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Notes 1o the fiancial sitemenis for the vear ended Mareh 31 2020

(Currency. ndian rupecs s mtibon)

30
300

Ouer Disclasures
Foreipa Currency
The Company has not undertaken any foreign currency tramsacthion during ihe year ended March 31,2020 (Previows year: Rs Nily

50.02 There ¢re no amounts due and owstanding 10 be eredited 10 Investor Educatzon and Protection Fund as at March 31, 2020

Disclosures pursuant to RBI sotification - RBU2019-202220 DOR.No. BP.BC.SY2Z1.04.048/2019-20 duted 17 April 2020 SMAjoverdue

The company has extended moratorivny deferment of tenn loan wstallments faliing duc in moratorivm perod to as eligible customers who have opted
for momatorum under RBI circalar on COVIND-I9 - Regulawry Package' dated March 27, 2020 and 'COVIDIY Regulatery Package - Aseer
Classification and Provisioning' duled April 17. 2020 The aggregating amaunt of customers in SMAS Overdue calegories as at March 382020 Ry

Asset clussification has been extended for an apgregate amount of Ry Nil and provision mads during Q4 FY2020 as per paragraph 5 of the aborve

As of date of sigaing of fimancial statement, the Company has all KMP's s per the Companies Act, 2035 excepr Chief Finaneial Cificer (CFOY and
Company Secrctary (08) The TS resigned cffective March 31, 2030 and CFO resigned effective May 4, 2020. The Company is in the process of filing

The Company has a process whereby perodically ali long term contracts (inchwding derivative comracts) are assessed for material foreseeable lowes
Al the year cnd, the Contpany has reviewed and ensured that adequate provision s sequired under any laws zecounting standards for material
foresceable losses on stch Jong 1erm contracis (including dervauve contracts) has been made in the books of accounrs.

51
catepories, where the moratoriunvdeferment was extended
il
mentioned RBI circutar is Rs. Nif
52
up the vacancics
53
54

Pursuant 1o the income tax assessment orders received. provisen for tax recarded in the books of accounts snd related income tax retwrns filed for
respective years, the Company has assessed a lax expense reversal of Rs E8.65 crs. Since these tax cxpense periams to carlier years 1. AY 2017-15 &
I 8-19 . the Company has recognised the impact of these fax oxpense reversal m its setained carnings. 5o as to provide refiable and mare relevant
information abowt the Company's financial position and ils performance. Accordingly, 24 per para: 42 of Ind-As & . the company has changed the
respective yeor financial statements to give effect ta above adpntments, the impact of such adjustment on the financial posinon and financial
perfarmance is given below:

As at March 31, As at April 01,
N - S 2019 2018
Financial Statement line item
Increase Increase
/(Decrease) i(Decreass)
a. Other Equily 186.53
5. Current Tax Liabilities {(Net) {186.53)




Subseguent Event

A

Fhe Covid-£9 pandomic

The Covid-19 pandemic owthreak across the workd wcluding Incha has resulted I most conntres ainownetng lochdowns and guarsatine
measures thi b sharply stalied eeonomic actioty. The Compary v prrmarily eegaged i offering strugiured collieralined eredil to corparies
and real extate finance 1o developers and loan agains securniiies 16 5t retait eredit custonkrs. All of these segments were impacted over 1he past
few years amd comequent 1o COVID 19 pandemic are oxpected o be significantly impacted by reduced income andfor Jub losses of the
borrowers, reduced economic activilies and delay in completion and sale of real esiate projects. The Iadian Gerernment oo bas imposed
fockdowns starting fram March 24. 2020, The Indian ecanomy would be impactad by this pandemic and the reswltant lockdown, due 10 the
cantraction in imlusirial and services output across smali and farge businesses. The impact of the COVID 19 pandeanc on EFPL™ zesults.
including credit guality and provisions. remains uncertain and dependent on the current and further spread of COVID} -§9. sleps taken by the
government and the RE} to mitigate the ceonomic impact and alse the e it takes for cconormic activities ta resume and reach the nernal levels

fn accordance with the regulatory package announced by ahe Reserve Bank of India (RBD on March 27, 2020 and Aprl 17, 2020 the Company
has granted a moratorium of 3 menths znd extended the same Tor o further period of 3 months in accordance with the announcement by the RBL
on May 22, 2020 for the payment of all istalments falling due berween March 1. 2020 and August 31, 2020 1o alt eligible borrowers that have
opted o avail the same. tn respeet of accounts overdue bul standard as at February 28. 2020 where moratorium henefit has been granted. the
staging for the accounts is based on staging cxisting as a1 that date. As per the assessment dane by the Company, this staging standsull has not
been on its own considered 1o be triggering any substantial increase in credit risk. Based on the assessment of the Campany. tn the ahsence of
other eredit risk indicators. the grapting of the maratorium docs not itself resalt in accounts hecoming past duc and triggenng Stage 2 and Stage 3
classification eriteri.

The Company has assessed the impact of the COVI-E9 panderme on its liquidity and ability 10 repay its obligations as and when they are due.
Management has considered various stunuius packages announced by e Government of India which will directly or indirecsly benefit NBFC.
Company's lenders to seekfextend moratorium and various other financtal support from other hanks, agencies and its parent entity in deterntining
the Company’s liguidity pesition over the next 12 months. Based on the forcpoing ond necessary stress lests considering vardous scenarios,
management believes (hat the Company will be able (0 pay its obliganons as and when these become due in the foresceable future. The Company
would continue 1o focus on maintaining adeguate capirzl and csunng liquidity during current period and for the period gong forward

[n assessing the recaverability of loans. reveivables, srangible asseis, defemed Tax assets and investments. the Company has considered internal
anit external sources of information. including cred: repoans, econoniic forecasts and indusiry seports up 1o the dare of approvat of these financizl
statements. EEPL has also considered the impact of COVID-19 pandemic while cstimating the recoverability during the full year ended March
2020 Since the sitalion is Tpidly evelving. its effect an the operations of the Company may be different from that estmated as at the datc of
approval of these financial stateneats The Company will continue to clascly monitor material changes in markets and future cconomic
conditions.

Sale of certain financial assets

The Company had izmiated <ale of certan financial assets before March 31 2020 and for which <efinitive contracts were exceuted post the
balance sheet date. These financiat assets sold subscquent to March 31, 2020, amounted to Rs. 771.00 mitlion 10 alicranuve assets fumd. As per
nd AS 109, Financial Instruments, preseribed under seetion 133 of the Companics Act. 2013 significant judgement is involved in classitication
of assets which Tias heen accentuated on account of factars causcd by COVID - 19 pandemic. Accardingly, managerment assessed that such feans
that were sold by the Company subsequenl to March 31, 2020 had an increased risk but wese not credit impaired. As ar Mareh 31, 2020, there anc
n0 impact on the financal siarements af the Company other han expected credit loss recorded amounting fo Rs 398 7O mitlion

Preszaus year Tigures have been reciassified to confonm 1o ilus year s classificanon.

As per our report of cven date attached

For 8. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP Fer and on hehalf of the Board of Dircctors
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